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EB-2013-0079 

IN THE MATTER OF an application made by Hydro One 
Networks Inc. for leave to sell certain transmission assets made 
pursuant to section 86 of the Ontario Energy Board Act 1998, S.O, 
(“Act”) 

AND IN THE MATTER OF other related applications made by 
B2M Limited Partnership for electricity transmitter licensing 
authority made pursuant to section 60 of the Act and SON LP Co. 
for leave to acquire an ownership interest in B2M Limited 
Partnership made pursuant to section 86 of the Act.  

JOINT SUBMISSION 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This joint submission is made on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc., B2M Limited 
Partnership, and SON LP Co.  It is made in support of three interrelated applications for 
Ontario Energy Board (“OEB” or “Board”) approvals regarding the sale of certain 
transmission assets to a new transmitter, the licensing of that transmitter, and the 
purchase of up to a 30 percent partnership interest in the newly licensed transmitter by a 
third party.  The approvals sought are in respect of a commercial transaction 
contemplated by the parties involved.  Satisfactory approval of all three applications is 
necessary in order for the proposed transaction to take effect. 

1.2 Hydro One Networks Inc. (“HONI”), is applying pursuant to section 86(1)(b) of the Act 
for approval to sell certain transmission assets located between its Bruce and Milton 
transmission stations.  The proposed purchaser of these assets is a newly formed limited 
partnership, B2M Limited Partnership (“B2M LP”). 

1.3 B2M LP is seeking transmitter licensing authority in accordance with section 60 of the 
Act so that it may own and operate the transferred assets as its transmission system.  
Following the transfer of the transmission assets to B2M LP, the partners of B2M LP will 
be a subsidiary company of Hydro One Inc. (“Hydro One”) and a corporation formed by 
the Saugeen Ojibway Nation (“SON”) referred to as “SON LP Co.” The general partner, 
B2M GP Inc., will be owned and controlled indirectly by Hydro One Inc. through a 100 
percent controlled subsidiary.   

1.4 SON LP Co. is applying pursuant to section 86(2) of the Act for approval to purchase up 
to a 30 percent partnership interest in B2M LP. SON LP Co. will be owned and 
controlled by SON.  SON LP Co.’s investment in B2M LP is intended to provide SON 
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with an important economic opportunity that will be used to support the ongoing needs of 
its First Nation communities and their members.   

1.5 The purpose of these three applications is to give effect to a key commercial arrangement 
negotiated between the SON and Hydro One which has fundamentally allowed for the 
timely development, construction and in-service operation of HONI’s Bruce to Milton 
Transmission Reinforcement Project (“BxM Project” or “Project”). 

1.6 The BxM Project was approved by the Board pursuant to Proceeding  EB- 2007-0050.  
The Project comprises two 500 kV transmission circuits, now known as B501M and 
B502M.  Construction and operation of these facilities has provided necessary 
transmission system reinforcement capabilities for the Ontario bulk transmission grid.  
HONI’s success in developing and implementing this Project has, in part, been based 
upon the commercial efforts undertaken to address directly affected interested parties 
including the SON.  This approach has resulted in the Project proceeding through to in-
service in a timely and efficient manner and without any legal challenges being made 
regarding the development and implementation of the Project. 

1.7 This filing provides additional information regarding the proposed transaction.  It is 
organized as follows: 

• Section 2 describes the parties involved in the transaction. 

• Section 3 describes the transmission assets to be transferred. 

• Section 4 provides details of the proposed transaction and describes the 
transaction documents. 

• Section 5 examines the economic efficiency and viability of the transaction 
including the commercial rationale for the SON’s involvement in the transaction. 

• Section 6 examines the potential impacts that the transaction may have on 
consumers. 

• Section 7 describes the relief requested and timing considerations associated with 
the transaction.    

• Section 8 includes the OEB Form of Application made by HONI for Leave to Sell 
the BxM Project transmission assets to B2M LP in accordance with Section 86(1) 
of the Act. 

• Section 9 includes the OEB Form of Application made by B2M LP for a 
Transmitter Licence approval in accordance with Section 60 of the OEB Act. 

• Section 10 includes the OEB Form of Application made by SON LP Co., for 
Leave to Purchase up to a 30 percent partnership interest in B2M LP in 
accordance with Section 86(2) of the Act. 
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• Section 11 provides all supporting information referred to in the above as 
scheduled Appendices. 
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2.0 DESCRIPTION OF PARTIES INVOLVED IN THE TRANSACTION 

2.1 This section provides a description of the parties involved in the proposed transaction.  

A. Hydro One Networks Inc. 

2.2 HONI is the owner and operator of the BxM Project.  HONI is the largest transmitter and 
distributor of electricity in the Province of Ontario.  HONI and its regulated affiliates 
serve distribution and transmission customers throughout the province of Ontario. HONI 
owns 96% of the transmission assets in Ontario, with almost 29,000 km of high-voltage 
transmission lines transmitting 142 TWh of electricity [annually].  HONI also owns and 
operates 26 interconnections with neighbouring provinces and states, with a total export 
capacity of 6,000 MW.   The distribution system delivers electricity at lower voltages to 
homes, farms and businesses through its network of poles and power lines. HONI’s 
distribution network is the largest in the province, with over 123,000 km of wires serving 
1.3 million customers, mostly in rural areas.  

2.3 HONI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One Inc., which is a business corporation 
wholly owned by the Province of Ontario.  An organizational chart for the Hydro One 
group of companies is found in Section 11, Appendix 1.  

2.4 The audited Financial Statements of HONI Transmission for 2010, 2011 and 2012 are 
found in Section 11 Appendix 2.  All other information that Hydro One has filed with the 
Ontario Securities Commission for the past two years (i.e. annual information forms and 
financial statements) is available through SEDAR at www.sedar.com.    

B. B2M Limited Partnership 

2.5 B2M LP is a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario for purposes related 
specifically to the transaction.  B2M LP will be acquiring certain BxM Project 
transmission assets from HONI.  The business to be carried out by B2M LP will concern 
the provision of electric transmission service in Ontario that is provided by the 
transferred assets.  B2M LP confirms that it will comply with all applicable OEB licence, 
code and rule requirements following the completion and closing of the transaction. 

2.6 As B2M LP is a newly formed limited partnership, no historical audited financial 
information or statements are available.   

C. Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., B2M GP Inc., Hydro One B2M LP Inc. 

2.7 Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Hydro One and 
has been formed for purposes of this transaction.  Following certain intercompany 
transfer steps associated with the transaction, Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc. will have 
two subsidiary companies also formed for purposes of the transaction.  These are: B2M 
GP Inc. and Hydro One B2M LP Inc.   

2.8 B2M GP Inc. will hold the general partner interests and carry out the general partner 
responsibilities of B2M LP, and will also retain substantially all of Hydro One’s 
partnership interests in B2M LP.  B2M GP Inc. will be responsible for ensuring that the 
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BxM Project transmission assets transferred to B2M LP are operated and maintained in 
accordance with all applicable regulatory standards and HONI’s maintenance and 
operating practices.  B2M GP Inc. will carry out these functions through an operations 
and management services agreement with HONI.  HONI shall be required to ensure that 
all applicable OEB licence, code and rule requirements will be followed following the 
completion and closing of the transaction. 

2.9 Hydro One B2M LP Inc. and B2M GP Inc. will hold Hydro One’s interest in B2M LP.  
The aggregate partnership interest in B2M LP held by Hydro One (through its ownership 
of Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., the parent of Hydro One B2M LP INC. and B2M GP 
INC.) will be 70 percent and under the assumption that SON LP Co is able to obtain all 
necessary financing to acquire a 30 percent partnership interest in B2M LP.  

2.10 An organizational chart depicting the ownership structure of these entities following the 
intercompany transfer steps is found in Section 11 Appendix 3. 

2.11 As each of Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., B2M GP Inc., and Hydro One B2M LP Inc. 
are newly formed entities, no historical audited financial information or statements are 
available. 

D. Saugeen Ojibway Nation (“SON”) 

The Saugeen Ojibway Nations consist of the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and the 
Chippewas of Nawash Unceded First Nation. SON traditional territory extends east from 
Lake Huron to the Nottawasaga River and south from the tip of the Bruce Peninsula to 
the Maitland River system, 11 miles south of Goderich.  SON traditional waters include 
the lakebed of Lake Huron from the shore to the international boundary with the United 
States and the lakebed of Georgian Bay to the halfway point.  SON assert Aboriginal and 
Treaty rights throughout its traditional territory, including an established commercial 
fishing right in the waters of Lake Huron and Georgian Bay.  A significant proportion of 
the assets that comprise the BxM Project are situated within the area SON identify as 
their traditional territory. 

E. SON LP Co. 

SON LP Co is an Ontario corporation that has been formed specifically as the vehicle for 
SON to be able to participate in the B2M LP.  SON LP Co will have no assets other than 
its partnership interest in the B2M LP and no liabilities other than its proposed loan 
arranged through the TD Securities to fund its acquisition cost of the partnership interest.  
The loan will be comprised of two tranches, the first tranche for $50 million, will be 
guaranteed by the Province of Ontario through its Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program 
and a second tranche of $22 million.  Attached as Schedules are draft term sheets for the 
proposed financing to SON LP Co.  SON LP Co will acquire its interest in the 
partnership as bare trustee and agent for SON.  As a bare trustee and agent, SON LP Co 
will be a flow through vehicle for income tax purposes, allowing SON, as First Nations to 
receive the net profit from the B2M LP without diminution for income taxes and 
decreasing the cost to ratepayers by this amount. 
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SON LP Co confirms that all applicable licence, code and rule requirements will be 
followed following completion of the transaction.   

2.12 As SON LP Co. is a newly formed entity, no historical audited financial information or 
statements are available. 
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3.0 DESCRIPTION OF TRANSFERRED ASSETS 

3.1 The proposed transferred assets currently form part of the BxM Project.  All Project 
facilities were constructed and placed into operation in accordance with approvals made 
in respect of OEB Proceeding 2007-0050.   

3.2 The BxM Project involved the construction and operation of two 500 kV transmission 
circuits now known as B501M and B502M.  These circuits interface at the north west end 
with HONI’s Bruce A and B transmission stations and terminate at the south east end 
with HONI’s Milton transmission station.  The B501M and B502M circuits extend across 
parts of Bruce, Grey and Wellington Counties and the Regional Municipality of Halton. 
Each circuit is approximately 176 km in length and have a combined capacity of 
approximately 3,000 MW.  A map showing the location of circuits B501M and B502M is 
found in Section 11 Appendix 4. 

3.3 The BxM Project transmission assets to be transferred generally comprise the B501M and 
B502M circuits, namely, 717 steel-lattice transmission towers, the transmission lines and 
certain rights to HONI’s existing transmission corridor on which the circuits are located. 
(the “Transferred Assets”).  For clarity, none of HONI’s transmission station assets are 
part of the Transferred Assets.  Further details concerning the BxM Project,  including the 
Transferred Assets, may be found in the evidence filed by HONI during OEB Proceeding 
2007-0050, all of which is electronically available via the OEB website. 

3.4 The current net book value of the Transferred Assets is approximately $600 million.  

3.5 A final net book value calculation of the Transferred Assets will occur on the closing of 
the transaction and which amount will form the final basis for the transaction. 
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4.0 TRANSACTION DETAILS 

4.1 The overall objective of the transaction is to formalize a long-term cooperative 
commercial arrangement between HONI and SON and in so doing, provide the SON with 
the opportunity to invest in and acquire up to a 30 percent ownership interest in the 
Transferred Assets. 

4.2 The steps involved in the transaction are described in the Anishnaabeking Naagnigewin 
Agreement dated June 18, 2012 as supplemented by the side letter agreement of 
December 18, 2012 (collectively, the“AN Agreement”).  A copy of the AN Agreement is 
found in Section 11, Appendix 5.  

4.3 Under the terms of the AN Agreement, Hydro One will facilitate the creation of a limited 
partnership (B2M LP), incorporate and organize two entities that will hold the general 
partnership interest (B2M GP Inc) and a nominal limited partnership interest (Hydro One 
B2M LP Inc.) in B2M LP.  Hydro One will also incorporate and organize a corporation 
(SON LP Co.) that will subsequently be sold to the SON and used by the SON to hold the 
SON’s limited partnership interest in B2M LP. 

4.4 Upon receiving all necessary approvals, HONI will transfer the Transferred Assets to 
B2M LP.  Through a series of related party transactions, HONI and its parent, Hydro 
One, will receive from B2M LP consideration in the form of cash, a promissory note, and 
partnership unit interests which, prior to the investment by SON LP Co., will represent, in 
aggregate, the net book value of the Transferred Assets transferred to B2M LP.   

4.5 SON LP Co. will acquire limited partnership units in B2M LP which in total represents 
up to 30 percent of the value of the Transferred Assets.   

4.6 Valuation of the interests held by Hydro One (indirectly) and SON LP Co. in B2M LP  
will be based on the net book value of the Transferred Assets.  

4.7 Cash consideration paid by SON LP Co. to B2M LP for the acquisition of limited 
partnership units will, in the final step of the transaction, be used to reduce the level of 
debt that B2M LP will have owing to B2M GP Inc. such that a 60/40 capital structure is 
maintained for B2M LP.  

4.8 Based on the Transferred Assets having a net book value of approximately $600 million 
at the time of the transaction closing, the Transferred Assets will be financed by $360 
million in total debt and equity of $240 million.  The cost of the debt is expected to have 
an average interest rate and term similar to the outstanding debt of Hydro One or HONI 
allocated to the Transferred Assets, as may be adjusted from time to time. .  

An example outlining the closing steps, calculations and descriptions of  the transaction is 
found at Schedule A of the December 18, 2012 Side Letter Agreement (see Section 11 
Attachment C). 
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Transaction Documentation 

4.9 The AN Agreement describes the key terms to the transaction and describes the 
implementation steps to be taken by the parties in order to give effect to the transaction.   

4.10 The AN Agreement has been approved by the Board of Directors of Hydro One Inc. as 
well as through Band Council Resolutions from the SON.  Copies of these approvals are 
found in Section 11, Appendix 6.   

4.11 The transfer of the BxM Project transmission assets will be effected through an asset 
purchase agreement made between HONI and B2M LP. Preparation of this agreement is 
underway and a copy will be filed with the Board once it is finalized.  The filed 
agreement will be executed upon receipt of all necessary approvals on the closing of the 
transaction.  

4.12 Governance of B2M LP will initially be through a limited partnership agreement which 
has been executed (the “Limited Partnership Agreement”).  Upon closing, governance of 
the B2M LP will be effected through the execution of an Amended and Restated Limited 
Partnership Agreement. The form of the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership 
Agreement to be executed at closing  is found in Section 11, Appendix 7. 

4.13 The AN Agreement contemplates HONI and SON obtaining favourable tax rulings from 
both provincial and federal tax authorities.  The nature of these rulings are described in 
Attachment “A” to the AN Agreement and sections 10 and 11 of the Side Letter 
Agreement dated December 18, 2012 (see Section 11 Appendix 5).  Copies of all tax 
ruling applications are found in Section 11 at Appendix 8.  These applications are 
currently under review by the applicable tax authorities.  The parties will advise the 
Board of the outcome of these rulings in due course.  The parties are requesting that all 
regulatory approvals be granted on condition that satisfactory tax rulings are obtained and 
filed with the Board.  

4.14 The AN Agreement contemplates B2M LP entering into an operations and management 
services agreement with B2M GP Inc. and HONI for the provision of services for the 
ongoing operation and management of the Transferred Assets.  The form of the 
operations and management services agreement is attached as Schedule 4.3 to the 
Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement, found at Section 11 Appendix 7.  
This agreement will ensure that the transaction has no impact upon the manner in which 
the Transferred Assets will be managed and operated.   

4.15 Pro-forma financial statements for HONI Transmission and B2M LP for a period of five 
years following the expected closing of the transaction are found in Section 11, Appendix 
9.   
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5.0 ECONOMIC RATIONALE FOR THE TRANSACTION 

5.1 During the development phase of the BxM Project, Hydro One and SON carried out 
significant mutual engagement under a Protocol Agreement respecting the BxM Project 
and its potential impacts on SON Rights and interest.  The purpose of this engagement, 
and the Protocol Agreement itself, was to allow for the continued development, 
regulatory authorization and implementation of the BxM Project, while ensuring that 
SON long-term interest would be protected and accommodated.  The relationship and 
cooperation between SON and Hydro One was critical in ensuring timely and efficient 
completion of the BxM Project.   

5.2 Engagement in early phases focused on identifying and mitigating potential 
environmental impacts of the BxM Project.  Later discussions were aimed at identifying 
mechanisms for SON economic participation in the BxM Projects that would provide 
meaningful and lasting benefits to SON’s communities.    

5.3 The proposed transaction has achieved these objectives.  It provides SON with a 
commercial opportunity to invest in a major infrastructure project within its traditional 
territory.  It is consistent with SON’s overall objective of supporting and participating in 
projects that are carried out in a responsible way and are aligned with SON community 
interests.  SON’s investment in the BxM Project will result in a new and essential 
revenue stream to both SON First Nations which will help SON achieve its long-term 
objectives of creating strong, independent local economies and making a contribution to 
the essential infrastructure of the region. 

5.4 SON’s decision to make a significant financial investment in the Transferred Assets 
causes SON and HONI to have a long-term alignment of economic interests.  As partners, 
both SON and Hydro One have the incentive to ensure the Transferred Assets continue to 
be operated and maintained in a safe and reliable manner so as to ensure the investment 
produces a fair return on and of employed capital.   In so doing, both SON and Hydro 
One are aligned to act in the best interest of B2M LP and to ensure the long-term 
economic viability of the Transferred Assets. 

5.5 The initial capital invested by SON will be sourced from competing financial lending 
institutions in part guaranteed by the Province’s Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program. 
The cost to finance the acquisition of additional B2M LP partnership units will be paid by 
SON LP Co. using distributions that B2M LP provides from time to time to its partners.  
Such distributions are contemplated to occur based on achieved earnings from rates 
charged for regulated transmission service provided by the transmission assets owned by 
B2M LP. 

5.6 SON will use its share of the partnership profit to fund important community programs.  
SON participated in lengthy and complex negotiations with Hydro One and government 
officials to ensure that the construction of the transmission line through their traditional 
territories would provide economic benefits to the First Nations.  The participation of the 
First Nations in a limited partnership that would own the transmission line was selected 
as the most efficient method to achieve this objective.  It was intended that the 
partnership be in place prior to the transmission line becoming operational, so for each 
day that the transmission line is operated outside of the partnership structure SON is 
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missing out on the important benefits it was intended would be available to their 
communities. 

5.7 One of the key economic risks to the SON associated with the transaction concerns the 
timing of all necessary regulatory approvals.  SON’s economic interests in this 
transaction are directly related to its ability to obtain all necessary financing for the 
purchase of its ownership interest in B2M LP.  Currently, provincial government loan 
guarantee programs available to SON, such as the Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program, 
coupled with historically low capital market borrowing costs, provide a unique 
opportunity for SON to maximize their economic opportunity.  This however assumes 
that the transaction may proceed in a timely and expedited manner.  If regulatory 
approvals are delayed or provincial financing programs are curtailed or significant 
changes occur in capital market borrowing costs, the financial ability of SON to 
participate in the transaction is put at risk. 

5.8 Barring exceptional circumstances, a substantial portion of the income of B2M LP is 
expected to be distributed to its partners annually, subject to the requirements of prudent 
operation and management of the Transferred Assets.  As these facilities have just 
recently been placed into operation, there is very little planned capital investment 
required for many years, and hence, there is no expectation that there will be a need to 
retain significant earnings or to issue new debt to fund capital improvements over the 
short to medium term. 

5.9 Furthermore, it is expected that, barring unforeseen events such as major storm damage 
which would necessitate material capital replacements, the annual depreciation expense 
for the Transferred Assets will generally exceed capital expenditures.  As such, rate base 
for B2M LP will generally decline over time, along with the underlying debt and equity 
amounts needed to support it.  This will require cash distributions to the partners in order 
to keep debt and equity amounts aligned with the OEB approved 60/40 capital structure. 

5.10 Nonetheless, any and all activities, including the distribution of partnership income by 
B2M LP, will be in keeping with the maintenance of the long-term financial stability of 
the regulated entity, as determined by the general partner. 
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6.0 POTENTIAL CONSUMER IMPACTS OF THE TRANSACTION 

6.1 The structure of the proposed transaction will not cause a material change in the manner 
in which the  Transferred Assets are operated and maintained.  HONI will remain the 
party primarily responsible for the ongoing operation and management of the Transferred 
Assets through the execution of an operations and management services agreement with 
B2M GP Inc. and B2M LP.   The operations and management services agreement will be 
cost of service based employing the same resources and standards used by HONI today in 
operating and managing the Transferred Assets.  In light of these circumstances, there is 
no expected material change in cost incurrence and the reliability and quality of service 
that will be provided by the Transferred Assets is expected to remain unchanged. 

6.2 The proposed transaction is structured so that favourable tax rulings regarding the taxable 
position of B2M LP and SON LP Co. can result in reductions to the rates that B2M LP 
charges for transmission service to customers over the long term.  The preliminary 
estimate of the net present value of the customer benefit associated with this transaction 
is $10 million, calculated over the life of the Transferred Assets. 

6.3 In the short term, the transaction is expected to cause a slight increase in rates during the 
first year following the completion of the transaction.  This result is largely due to 
incremental transaction and administration costs and the delayed benefit of tax 
deductions related to capital cost allowance.  However, after year 5, the favourable tax 
position of B2M LP is expected to cause B2M LP’s revenue requirement to fall below 
what would have otherwise been charged had the assets remained with HONI and thus 
provide a benefit to rate payers.   This favourable rate differential is expected to remain 
for the balance of the life of the assets. 

6.4 The current breakdown of the estimated incremental transaction and administration costs 
concern the following: 

• Costs incurred to negotiate and complete the transaction; 

• Costs associated with all necessary regulatory approvals; 

• Ongoing regulatory costs incurred by B2M LP; 

• Ongoing administration and management costs of B2M LP;  

• Incremental insurance costs incurred by B2M LP; and 

• Audit and accounting costs incurred by B2M LP. 

6.5 At the present time, the total preliminary estimate of incremental costs are $1 million 
(one time cost) and an average of $1.1 million every two years. 

6.6 The analysis depicting this result is found in Figure 1 below.  From a rate impact 
perspective, the expected Year 1 increase over the “HONI Status Quo Revenue 
Requirement” (approximately $3.7 million) would cause an estimated 0.02 cent or 0.53% 
increase in the 2014 Network UTR from $3.80/kW/month to $3.82/kW/month.   From the 
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perspective of a typical HONI distribution rate paying customer, this increase would 
result in an estimated total monthly bill increase of $0.03 for the first year after the 
completion of the transaction - declining thereafter. 

 

6.7 Details respecting all rate impacts of the transaction will be considered in applications to 
be made by B2M LP and HONI pursuant to section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 
1998.  These applications are expected to be filed following timely approvals of the 
current applications that approve the transaction and in any event prior to year end 2013.  
The section 78 applications will establish the B2M LP initial revenue requirement for the 
Transferred Assets and adjust the provincial Uniform Transmission Rates (“UTR”).  
HONI will concurrently make application for a revised Rate Order for its approved 2014 
revenue requirement to remove the costs (including return) for the Transferred Assets. 
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7.0 REQUESTED RELIEF & TIMING CONSIDERATION 

7.1 The parties to the transaction respectfully request the OEB to approve the contemplated 
asset transfer by HONI to B2M LP, the granting of a transmitter licence to B2M LP and 
the purchase by SON LP Co. of up to a 30 percent ownership interest in B2M LP. 

7.2 In the collective view of the parties, the transaction is in the public interest and is 
consistent with the objectives found in the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.  The 
proposed transaction will not cause harm to transmission rate payers.  The transaction 
will not proceed unless favourable tax rulings are obtained and the parties are prepared to 
have all requested approvals made conditional to ensure of this outcome.  Under this 
assumption, transmission rates to customers are not adversely affected in the long term 
and in fact a positive rate impact is expected in the medium to long-term. 

7.3 The proposed transaction will ensure that the Transferred  Assets are operated in a safe 
and reliable manner and without any change to the manner and conduct that they are 
managed today by HONI. 

7.4 The proposed transaction establishes a new and important benchmark for the parties.  In 
particular, Hydro One and SON will become commercial partners with a common 
alignment of economic interests.  This is an important step towards creating co-operative 
economic opportunities for First Nations and establishes a structure and model that may 
be used in the future for other large-scale transmission projects. 

7.5 Timely consideration of these applications is essential to the parties.  SON and Hydro 
One have been engaged for over 6 years in a process that would allow the BxM Project to 
be developed, approved and implemented in a timely way, while protecting SON’s long-
term interests.  It is because of this engagement that the BxM Project has proceeded so 
efficiently and is now operational.   The proposed transaction is a critical component of 
the relationship between SON and Hydro One that has made this possible and it is 
essential that this transaction is now brought to conclusion.  More specifically, SON 
requires expedited consideration to ensure financing steps can be taken at a time while 
borrowing costs in capital markets remain at an all-time low, and provincial government 
loan guarantee programs remain in effect that are intended to promote First Nation 
economic opportunities in the development of Ontario transmission projects. 

7.6 For clarification, the assumptions throughout this application that underpin the success of 
the transaction are based upon a final execution date of January 1, 2014.  In order to meet 
this closing date, the parties are seeking approval of the 3 applications on or about August 
31, 2013.  This timing will accommodate the filing of the Section 78 Revenue 
Requirement proceeding such that approvals can be obtained prior to the proposed 
execution date. 
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8.0 APPLICATION BY HONI FOR LEAVE TO SELL  
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9.0 APPLICATION BY B2M LP FOR TRANSMITTER LICENCE IN THE 
PROVINCE OF ONTARIO 
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Ontario Energy Board 
Commission de l'Énergie de l'Ontario 

 
Application for Electricity 
Transmission Licence 

Ontario Energy Board 
2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4 
Telephone: 1-888-632-6273 
Facsimile: (416) 440-7656 

Commission de l'Énergie de 
l'Ontario 
2300 rue Yonge 
C.P. 2319 
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4 
Téléphone: 1-888-632-6273 
Télécopieur: (416) 440-7656 

 
 
 
 
1. Purpose of this form 

Application Instructions 

 
The purpose of this form is to collect information to determine whether the Applicant will be granted a licence to 
transmit electricity. 

 
2. Structure of the Application Form 

 
This form contains the following sections: 
A General Information; 
B Corporate Information; 
C Notice and Consent; 
D Acknowledgement 

 
Note: The Board shall keep confidential the information in Item 10, Section B of this form, with the exception of the names and 
positions held of key individuals.   All other information filed as part of this application will be considered public.  Where the 
applicant objects to public disclosure of the information, the applicant must follow the Ontario Energy Board’s approved 
Guidelines for Treatment of Filing made in confidence, effective March 19, 2001. 

 
3. Completion Instructions 

 
PRINT CLEARLY or TYPE all information in BLACK. Please send the completed form and two copies of all attachments 
to: 

Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319, 26th Floor 
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4 

 
4. Licence Fees: 

 
Application Fees: 
A non-refundable application fee is required to process your application. Please enclose a cheque or money order made 
payable to the ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD.  

 
Note: 
The Licencee may be required to pay an annual fee. 

 
5. Important Information: 

 
As a licenced Electricity Transmitter, the licencee may be subject to additional obligations as required by the 
Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) and as established under section 70 of the Ontario Energy Board 
Act, 1998. 

 
The issuance of an electricity transmission licence does not guarantee accreditation by the IESO or connection to a 
transmission or distribution system. 

 
 
REMARQUE: 
Ce document est disponible en français. 
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Please provide the following information about the Applicant 
 

Full Legal Name of Applicant 
 

B2M Limited Partnership 

 

Ontario Corporation Number, Canadian 
Corporation Number or Business 
Registration Number 
230303174 

 

Date of Formation or 
Incorporation 
 
March 22, 2013 

Business Address: 
483 Bay Street  

 

City 
Toronto 

 

Prov. 
Ontario 

 

Country 
Canada 

 

Postal/Zip Code 
M5G 2P5 

Phone Number 
416-345-5444 

FAX Number 
(416) 345-4141 

E-Mail Address (if applicable) 

mike.penstone@b2mlp.ca 

 

 
Ontario Energy Board 
Commission de l'Énergie de l'Ontario 
Application for Electricity 
Transmission  Licence 

 
Ontario Energy Board 
2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4 
Telephone: 1-888-632-6273 
Facsimile: (416) 440-7656 

Commission de l'Énergie de l'Ontario 
2300 rue Yonge 
C.P. 2319 
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4 
Téléphone: 1-888-632-6273 
Télécopieur: (416) 440-7656 

 
 
 

 
For Office Use Only 

Application Number  
Date Received  

 
 
A. General information 

 
1. Type of Application 

 

New licence  
 

Renewal 
 

Amendment to an existing Licence 
 
 
 
2. Applicant 
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Please provide the following information about the Primary Contact for this Application: 
 

  Mr.  Mrs.    
Miss    Ms.  
Other:    

 

Last Name: Penstone 
 

Full First Name: Michael 
 

Initial: D 

Position Held: Managing Director 
 

Contact Address (if R.R., give Lot, Concession No. and Township) 
483 Bay Street, 6th Floor 

City 
Toronto 

Province 
Ontario 

Country 
Canada 

Postal/Zip Code 
M5G 2P5 

Phone Number 
416-345-5444 

FAX Number 
416-345-4141 

E-mail Address (if applicable) 
mike.penstone@b2mlp.ca 

 

  

 
3. Primary Contact for this Application 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Transmission Facilities 

 
Please provide a description of the transmission facilities involved in this Application: 

 
The Applicant is a newly formed limited partnership which does not currently own or operate transmission 
facilities in Ontario.  Subject to various tax and regulatory approvals, including this transmission licence 
application, the Applicant has entered into an agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc. (“HONI”) to purchase 
transmission line assets (“The Line”) recently completed and placed in-service. These line assets are part of 
HONI’s Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project. The purchase does not include any of the station 
assets constructed as part of the Bruce to Milton project nor the optical fibre sky wire affixed to the towers.  A 
Leave-to-Sell application under s. 86 of the OEB Act, 1998 will be filed with the Board shortly to seek approval 
for the proposed sale of The Line.   
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B. Corporate Information 
 
 
Organizational 
5. Business Classification 

 
Please indicate the Applicant’s Business Classification (check appropriate type below):  

 Sole Proprietor 
 

  Partnership 
 
 Corporation 

 
 Other (describe)__________________  

 
 
 
 
 
6. Business Activities 

 
Please provide a description of the Applicant’s business activities: 

 
The Applicant is a newly-formed Ontario limited partnership which is currently 100% owned by Hydro One Inc., 
through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Applicant intends to engage in activities that are related to the ownership 
of The Line.  Accordingly, the Applicant’s business activities, under the direction and management of the general 
partner, are expected to generally be limited to the operation, maintenance and administration of that facility, as 
well as financing and recovery of costs and prudent investments through the Board’s established transmission rate 
setting process.  
 
Subject to tax and regulatory approvals, Hydro One Inc. has signed an agreement with a corporation owned by the 
Saugeen-Ojibway Nation (“SON”), two First Nations over whose traditional lands The Line crosses, to enable the 
SON to buy up to a 30% equity interest in the Applicant.   
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a) Please provide the following information for all Affiliates of the Applicant: 
 

Full Legal Name of Affiliate Company 
Hydro One Inc. 
Hydro One Networks Inc. 
Hydro One Remote Communities Inc. 
Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc.  
Hydro One Telecom Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Business Address: 
483 Bay St., 15th Floor, Toronto, ON  M5G 2P5 

 

City 
Toronto 

 

Prov. 
Ontario 

 

Country 
Canada 

 

Postal/Zip Code 
M5G 2P5 

Phone Number 

416-345-6800 
FAX Number 

416-345-6058 
E-Mail Address (if applicable) 

sandy.struthers @hydroone.com 

Description of Business Activities: 
 Following the enactment of the Electricity Act, 1998 and the restructuring of the former Ontario Hydro, Ontario 
Hydro Services Company Inc. was incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act on December 1, 
1998 and commenced business on May 1, 1999.  On May 1, 2000, the company’s name was changed to Hydro 
One Inc. in accordance with Section 48.1 of the Electricity Act, 1998, as amended.  Hydro One Inc. is a holding 
company operating through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Its principal subsidiary, Hydro One Networks Inc., is 
the largest electricity transmitter and distributor within Ontario. 
 
In accordance with the Affiliate Relationships Code (“ARC”), when Hydro One Transmission, as a separately 
regulated business within HONI, provides services to, or purchases services from affiliates, it does so in 
accordance with service level agreements. 
 
Hydro One Remote Communities Inc. carries on all business relating to ownership, operation, maintenance and 
construction of generating and distribution assets used in the supply of electricity to remote communities 
throughout Northern Ontario that are not connected to the transmission grid. 
 
Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. carries on all business relating to the ownership, operation and 
management of electricity distribution systems and facilities in Brampton, Ontario.  
 
Hydro One Telecom Inc. carries on all business relating to leasing dark fibre and providing lit capacity to other 
telecommunications carriers, large corporations, government, health care and education institutions.  

 
 

b) Please attach a Corporate organization chart describing the relationships between the Applicant and its Affiliates 
and, if applicable, the respective ownership percentages by the Applicant in each Affiliate. 

Please refer to Section 11, Appendix 1 of the Supplementary Application Form. 

 

    

 
7. Affiliates of the Applicant 
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a) Please provide the following information for all Affiliates of the Applicant: 
 

Full Legal Name of Affiliate Company:   
Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc 
Hydro One B2M LP Inc 
B2M GP Inc 
B2M Limited Partnership  
 
 
 

 
Business Address: 

483 Bay St., 6th Floor, Toronto, ON  M5G 2P5 
 

City 
Toronto 

 

Prov. 
Ontario 

 

Country 
Canada 

 

Postal/Zip Code 
M5G 2P5 

Phone Number 
416-345-5444 

FAX Number 
416-345-4141 

E-Mail Address (if applicable) 
 mike.penstone@b2mlp.ca 

Description of Business Activities: 
 Subject to OEB approval, the B2M Limited Partnership (“B2M”), which is seeking a transmission licence via 
this application, would own, operate and maintain the transmission line assets of the recently completed and in-
service Bruce to Milton Line, under the direction and management of the general partner, B2M GP Inc.   
 
It is the intention of B2M GP Inc. to arrange for the operation and maintenance of The Line to be carried out by 
HONI under an operations agreement with B2M GP Inc. as agent for B2M. This will be reflected in a service 
level agreement between HONI and the Applicant. 
 
Activities of the B2M Limited Partnership will be directed and managed by B2M GP Inc. – the General Partner 
– on behalf of the Transmitter.   This entity will coordinate, supervise and manage all activities relating to the 
Partnership. 
 
 
 
 

 

b) Please attach a Corporate organization chart describing the relationships between the Applicant and its Affiliates 
and, if applicable, the respective ownership percentages by the Applicant in each Affiliate. 

Please refer to Section 11, Appendix 3 of the Supplementary Application Form. 
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Has the Applicant or an Affiliate undertaken any energy sector activities 
in Ontario or any other jurisdiction? 
 
If yes, please provide the following information for each: 

 
Yes  No 
 

Full Legal Name of Company: 
Hydro One Networks, Inc. 
Hydro One Remote Communities, Inc. 
Hydro One Brampton Networks, Inc. 

Licence/Registration Number: 
870865821 
870836269 
864867635 

Jurisdiction: 
Across the Province of Ontario 

Type of Business Activity (e.g. 
Generation, Transmission, 
Distribution): 
 
Hydro One Networks:  
Transmission, Distribution  
 
Hydro One Remote 
Communities: 
Generation, Distribution 
 
Hydro One Brampton Networks:  
Distribution 

 

  
8. Energy Sector Activities 

 
 
 
 

 
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a)     Please describe the applicant’s technical ability to carry out the activities applied for including the Applicant’s specific 
experience in Ontario and in other jurisdictions. 

The Applicant is a newly formed Ontario entity that has been established for the purpose of operating, 
maintaining and administering an electricity transmission facility in Ontario.  Units of B2M will be held by each 
of the two limited partners and one general partner.  The limited partners are Hydro One Inc. indirectly through 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, and the SON through a corporate entity.  The general partner, B2M GP Inc., 
through its affiliation with HONI, brings significant skills, resources and experience to the limited partnership, 
including technical, financial and stakeholder relationship capabilities. Each of the limited partners brings 
financial capabilities and stakeholder relationship capabilities.   

 
B2M, through its general partner, intends to sign an operations agreement with HONI, which will then be 
responsible for carrying out the maintenance and operation of the assets under the supervision of the general 
partner. 

 
b)     If the Applicant intends to utilize the capability of others by contracting transmission activities, please 
indicate below which activities and to whom they will be contracted: 

Design Contracted 
  

Contracted to: 

Construction Contracted to: 

Customer Connection Contracted to: 

 Inspection & Maintenance Contracted to: Hydro One Networks 

  Operation Contracted to: Hydro One Networks 

 
Other (describe) 

 

Contracted to: 

 

 
Technical Capability and Experience 
9. Technical Ability 
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Mr.  Mrs.  
Miss  Ms.  

Other:    

Last Name:  
Penstone 

Full First Name:  
Michael 

Initial:  
D 

Position Held: 
Managing Director 

Please explain the person’s experience in the electrical transmission business and in the energy field in general. 
Mr. Penstone joined Hydro One in 1998 and has over thirty years of diverse experience in Ontario’s electricity 
sector. Since joining Hydro One in 1998, he has held a variety of management positions in its planning and 
operating functions. At present, he is Vice President of Network Development and Regional Planning and is 
accountable for transmission planning, load and generation connections, project development of transmission 
expansions. Past recent roles included accountabilities for asset management and government relations.  Mr. 
Penstone is currently on the Board of Directors of the Northeast Power Coordinating Council and the Members 
Representative Committee of the North American Electricity Corporation.  He previously was a member of the 
Canadian Electricity Association’s Transmission Council, IESO’s Technical Panel and the Canadian Standards 
Association’s Strategic Committee on Power Engineering.  He has a Bachelor of Applied Science in Electrical 
Engineering from McMaster University. He will be the Managing Director of B2M GP Inc., responsible for 
overseeing, directing and managing the B2M business activities. 

 
 

a)  Has this person been a proprietor, partner, officer or director of a business that was granted a licence under Part IV or Part V Yes No 
of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.  

 
If yes, provide business names and licence number(s) and describe the individual’s specific related experience. 
Michael Penstone is a Vice-President with Hydro One Networks. 

 
 
 

b)  Has this person been a proprietor, partner, officer, or director of a business that was registered or licenced under this or any Yes No 
other acts or legislation? 

 
If yes, identify the business name, the legislation, licence number(s), date of the licencing or registration and the individual’s 
specific related experience. 

Michael Penstone is a Vice-President with Hydro One Networks.  
 
 
 

c)  Has this person been a proprietor, partner, officer or director of a business that had a registration or licence of any kind Yes No 
refused, suspended, revoked or cancelled? 

 
If yes, please provide company name and describe the situation, including the jurisdiction and type of licence. 

 

 
  

 
 
10. Information About Each Key Individual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: 
Attach a copy of Item 10 for each Key Individual: Officer and Director, Partner or Sole Proprietor. 

 
 
 

 

 

 
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11. Financial Information 

 

 
Please attach financial statements of the Applicant for each of the past two fiscal years. This may include audited financial statements, annual 
reports, prospectuses or other such information. 
 
B2M is a newly formed entity and as such does not have financial statements available. 

 
 
Transmission Facilities Information 
 
12. Facilities 

 

Please indicate whether the Applicant’s transmission facilities are: 
 

New assets to be constructed? Proposed In-service date:    
 

Please attach a statement explaining the financing arrangements. 
Existing assets presently owned by the Applicant? 

 

 Existing assets not presently owned by the applicant (i.e. to be purchased)? Please indicate from whom assets will be purchased: 
 

Hydro One Networks 

 
 

 

Other (describe) 

 
13. Purpose of Facilities 

 

 
Please indicate the intended purpose(s) of the Applicant’s transmission facilities: 

 
To provide a connection between a generator and a transmission system. 

 
To provide a connection between a transmission system and a load customer.  

 To provide a connection between one transmission system and another  

To provide a connection between a generator and a load customer. 
 

To import or export power 
 

Other (please describe):    
 
 

If parties other than the Applicant are involved, please indicate the specific names of the participants (generator, load customer, transmission system(s): 
 

 The B2M line will interconnect with the HONI transmission system at both ends of The Line.  Please see 
Section 14 for more details.  
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14. Location of Facilities 

 
Please indicate the location (township or other such description as appropriate) of the Applicant’s transmission facilities and attach a single-line diagram 
indicating the length (km), capacity (MW) and operating voltage (kV) of each element. 
The B2M line includes the 500 kV circuits known specifically as B501M – energized May 7, 2012 and B502M 
– energized May 14, 2012.  They will interconnect at the north west end with Hydro One Networks’ Bruce A 
and B transmission stations and at its south east end with HONI’s Milton TS.  The B2M line is approximately 
171 km. in length and has a capacity of approximately 3,000 MW. 

 
 
15. Licensing History 

 

Has the Applicant obtained Ontario Energy Board, National Energy Board, Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any 
other regulatory approvals required for the acquisition, construction or operation of the transmission facilities? 

 
If no, please indicate the status and plans for seeking these approvals. 

 
 
Yes No 

 

These transmission facilities are currently in-service and operating as part of HONI’s licensed transmission 
system.  Request for regulatory approvals related to the proposed sale of the assets to B2M, and the subsequent 
investment by the SON of a minority interest in B2M, resulting in a corresponding decrease of Hydro One’s 
investment in B2M, are expected to be filed concurrently with or shortly after this application.  An initial revenue 
requirement and rate application for B2M will be filed following approvals of this Licence application, pending 
receipt of various tax rulings that are being sought by the partners. 

 
 
16. Service to other parties 

 

 
If the transmission facilities are to be used to deliver electricity to a party other than the Applicant please attach the following: 
a)     a summary of business plans relating to the Applicant’s proposed transmission business for the next five years. This should include the following: 

-     a forecast of annual peak demand (MW) and energy (MWH) transmitted and/or transformed. 
-     annual pro forma financial statements including forecasts of costs, revenues and project financing indicating the underlying assumptions on which the 

forecasts are based.  
 

b)     estimates of net annual cash flows for subsequent periods to demonstrate financial feasibility and security.  
 

c)     indication of the Applicant’s plans to seek Ontario Energy Board approval for rates for transmission services.  
 
All power delivered via the facilities is expected to be delivered to its affiliate, HONI. 

 
 
17. Proposed business transactions impact 

 

 
Please provide a brief summary of the expected impact of the proposed business transactions on the Ontario electricity market under the following headings: 

 
• Facilitate competition and enhance access to transmission services  
If approved, B2M will be a new transmitter in the Province of Ontario.  The existence of this entity supports the 
government’s stated mandate to increase ownership diversity within the Transmission sector in Ontario, and to 
foster participation by First Nations.  
 

• Improve reliability and quality of supply  

The B2M line is currently owned, operated and maintained by HONI.  After the sale, The Line will continue to be 
operated and maintained by HONI through a service level agreement with the limited partnership.  As such, there 
will be no impact on reliability or quality of supply as a result of the sale.  

 



Page 12 of 16 
 

 
 
• Promote economic and efficient electrical energy supply  

The participation of the SON as an owner in these transmission facilities crossing its traditional lands is expected 
to foster ongoing harmony and co-operation, and as such, allow for the continued economic and efficient supply of 
energy from the Bruce Nuclear complex to the provincial grid. 
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Other Information 
18. Ontario market activities 

 

 
Please indicate whether the Applicant intends to be involved with other electricity sector activities in the Ontario market?  

 
 

Buy or Sell (Wholesale) electricity Yes No 
 
 

Distribute electricity Yes No 
 
 

Retail electricity Yes No 
 
 

Generate electricity Yes No 
 
 

If yes to any of the above: 
 

a)    If affiliates have not yet been established, please indicate when this is planned    
 
 

b)     Has Applicant or an affiliate applied for an Ontario Energy Board Licence? 
 

- If no, when planned?    
 

Hydro One Networks is a licensee under the Ontario Energy Board. 

Yes No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
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C. Notice and Consent 

 
 
 

AS REQUIRED BY THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF INDIVIDUAL PRIVACY ACT 
 

In order to complete or verify the information provided on this form, it may be necessary for the Ontario Energy Board to collect additional information from 
some or all of the following sources: federal, provincial/state and municipal governments; licensing bodies; banks; professional and industry associations; and 
former and current employers. Only information relevant to your application will be collected. 
 
The public official who can answer questions about the collection of information is: 
Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
2300 Yonge Street, P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, Ontario M4P 1E4 

 
Note: The issuance of an electricity transmitter licence does not guarantee accreditation by the IESO, or connection to a transmission or 
distribution system. 

 
 
 

 
NOTE: This application must be signed by the proprietor or by at least one partner, officer or director of the organization. 

 
WARNING: It is an offence to knowingly provide false information on this application. 

 
I/We consent to the collection of this information as authorized under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998. Yes 

 
 

I/We understand that this information will be used to determine whether I am/we are and remain qualified for the licence for which 
I am/we are applying. Yes 

Print Name and Title 
Michael Penstone, 
Managing Director 

Signature of Applicant(s) 

 
Original Signed by Michael Penstone 

Date Signed 

 
March 28, 2013 

 
 
 
 

 

 
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D. Acknowledgement 

 
 

NOTE: This acknowledgement must be signed by the proprietor or by at least one partner, officer or director of the organization. I 

understand and acknowledge that, as a licenced electricity transmitter, I will be required, unless otherwise exempted: 

• To provide non-discriminatory access to all persons wishing to connect to the transmission system. 
 

• To comply with all licence conditions including the provisions of: 
S     The Ontario Energy Board Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity Distributors and Transmitters 
S     The Ontario Energy Board Transmission System Code 
S     The Market Rules made under section 32 of the Electricity Act. 

Print Name and Title 
Michael Penstone, 
Managing Director 

Signature of Applicant(s) 
Original Signed by Michael Penstone 

Date Signed 
March 28, 2013 
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CHECKLIST 

 
Have You: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1. Properly and fully completed this form? (Illegible, incomplete or improperly completed forms do not qualify 
for registration and will be delayed or returned.) 

 
2. Enclosed a cheque or money order payable to the ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD in the amount prescribed? 

3. Attached two copies of all financial information specified in Section B? 

4. Attached Section C, the signed “Notice and Consent” form, as specified? 

5. Attached Section D, the “Acknowledgement” form, as specified? 

 

Please send the completed form and all attachments to: 
 

Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 , 26th Floor 
Toronto, ON  M4P 1E4 

 

NOTE: You are not required to return the cover page or this checklist to the Ontario Energy Board. 
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This section is provided as material answering the specific questions provided in the Section 86 
Application form for EB-2013-0080.  The primary body of evidence submitted in support of this 
application remains the Supplementary Application Information filing filed concurrently with this 
application.  Certain answers contained herein refer to that document for further information. 
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1.3. Description of the Business of Each of the Parties 

1.3.1. Please provide a description of the business of each of the parties to the 
proposed transaction, including each of their affiliates engaged in, or 
providing goods or services to anyone engaged in, the generation, 
transmission, distribution or retailing of electricity (“Electricity Sector 
Affiliates”). 

 

Please refer to Section 2 of the Supplementary Application Information filing for a description of the 
parties involved in the transaction.   

  

1.3.2. Please provide a description of the geographic territory served by each 
of the parties to the proposed transaction, including each of their 
Electricity Sector Affiliates, if applicable. 

 

HONI Transmission delivers electricity to very large customers and LDCs at high voltage.  Customers 
served are located across the province of Ontario except the far north.   

HONI Distribution distributes electricity to residential, commercial and industrial customers at low to 
medium voltage.  The customers are located in rural and urban areas across the province of Ontario 
except the far north.   

Hydro One Remote Communities generates and distributes electricity to customers not connected to 
the transmission grid in the far northern regions of Ontario. 

 

1.3.3. Please provide a description of the customers, including the number of 
customers in each class, served by each of the parties to the proposed 
transaction.  

 

The transmission assets to be owned and operated by B2M LP together with HONI’s  transmission 
system and HONI’s regulated affiliates will serve transmission and distribution customers throughout 
the Province of Ontario.  The assets to be owned and operated by B2M LP will remain as an integral part 
of the bulk transmission system in Ontario.  As a result, these facilities will continue to serve, directly or 
indirectly, all the customers in Ontario. 
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1.3.4. Please attach a corporate chart describing the relationship between 
each of the parties to the proposed transaction and each of their 
respective affiliates. 

 

Please refer to Section 11 Appendices 1 and 3 of the Supplementary Application Information filing for 
diagrams outlining the corporate relationships of the parties involved in this transaction.   

 

1.4. Description of the Proposed Transaction 

1.4.1. Please provide a detailed description of the proposed transaction. 
 

Please refer to Section 4 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.   

 

1.4.2. Please provide the details of the consideration (e.g. cash, assets, shares) 
to be given and received by each of the parties to the proposed 
transaction. 

 

Please refer to Section 4 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.   SON LP Co. will be paying 
cash for all partnership units acquired in B2M LP.  

 

1.4.3.  Please attach the financial statements (including balance sheet, income 
statement, and cash flow statement) of the parties to the proposed 
transaction for the past two most recent years. 

 

B2M LP and SON LP Co. are newly formed entities and as such no historical audited financial statements 
are available.   

 

1.4.4.  Please attach the pro forma financial statements for each of the parties 
(or if amalgamation, the one party) for the first full year following the 
completion of the proposed transaction. 
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Please see Section 11 Appendix 9 of the Supplementary Application Information filing for the pro-forma 
financial statements of B2M LP for the first five years following the closing of the transaction.  
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1.5. Documentation 

1.5.1. Please provide copies of all annual reports, proxy circulars, 
prospectuses or other information filed with securities commissions or 
similar authorities or sent to shareholders for each of the parties to the 
proposed transaction and their affiliates within the past 2 years. 

 

B2M LP and SON LP Co. are newly formed entities.  Neither entity has filed information with securities 
commissions or similar authorities.  SON LP Co. is owned and controlled by SON.  Band Council 
Resolutions in respect of the proposed transaction have been obtained, copies of which are included in 
Section 11 Appendix 6 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  B2M LP is indirectly owned 
and controlled by Hydro One Inc.  Information which Hydro One Inc. has filed with the Ontario Securities 
Commission is publicly available through SEDAR (www.sedar.com).   Hydro One Inc. Board of Director 
approvals concerning the transaction are also included as part of Section 11 Appendix 6 of the 
Supplementary Application Information filing.  

 

1.5.2.  Please list all legal documents (including those currently in draft form if 
not yet executed) to be used to implement the proposed transaction. 

 

Please refer to Section 4 of the Supplementary Application Information filing for a description of the 
transaction and the transaction documentation.   A copy of the Anishnaabeking Naagnigewin Agreement 
approved by the Board of Directors of Hydro One Inc., and the SON Band Council’s is found at Section 11 
Appendix 5 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  The current draft of the Amended 
Restated Limited Partnership Agreement concerning B2M LP is found at Section 11 Appendix 7 of the 
Supplementary Application Information filing.   

 

1.5.3.  Please list all Board issued licences held by the parties and confirm that 
the parties will be in compliance with all licence, code and rule 
requirements both before and after the proposed transaction. If any of 
the parties will not be in compliance with all applicable licences, codes 
and rules after completion of the proposed transaction, please explain 
the reasons for such non-compliance. (Note: any application for an 
exemption from a provision of a rule or code is subject to a separate 
application process.)  

 

http://www.sedar.com/
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An application for a transmitter licence for B2M LP has been submitted for approval under docket 
number EB-2013-0078.  A copy of this Application is found at Section 9 of the Supplementary 
Application Information filing. 

B2M LP and SON LP Co. confirm that they will each comply with all licence, code and rule requirements. 

 

1.6. Consumer Protection 

1.6.1. Please explain whether the proposed transaction will cause a change of 
control of any of the transmission or distribution system assets, at any 
time, during or by the end of the transaction. 

 

SON LP Co. will be acquiring up to a 30 percent ownership interest in B2M LP.  The remaining 70 percent 
of B2M LP will be held (indirectly) by Hydro One Inc.  The general partner of B2M LP will be owned and 
controlled by Hydro One Inc.  B2M LP’s general partner intends to enter into an operating agreement 
and service levels agreement with HONI for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the transmission 
facilities owned by B2M LP.  In light of this structure, the proposed acquisition of up to a 30 percent 
interest in B2M LP by SON LP Co. will not cause a change of control of any of the transmission assets to 
be acquired by B2M LP during or by the end of the transaction.    

 

1.6.2.  Please indicate the impact the proposed transaction will have on 
consumers with respect to prices and the adequacy, reliability and 
quality of electricity service. 

 

SON LP Co.’s acquisition of up to a 30 percent ownership interest in B2M LP is not expected to have any 
adverse impact on consumers with respect to prices and the adequacy, reliability and quality of 
electricity service.  Overall the involvement of SON LP Co. In this transaction is expected to have a 
favourable impact to ratepayers through a reduction in rates over the long term.  For further 
information regarding this topic, please see Section 6 of the Supplementary Application Information 
filing.   

 

1.6.3. Please describe the steps, including details of any capital expenditure 
plans, that will be taken to ensure that operational safety and system 
integrity are maintained after completion of the proposed transaction. 
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After completion of the proposed sale of a 30% interest in B2M LP to SON LP Co.,  the assets owned by 
B2M will continue to be maintained and operated by HONI in the same fashion and to the same 
standards, and will be subject to the same IESO market rules, as is currently the case.  Operational safety 
and system integrity standards will be unaffected.  The ongoing costs to operate and maintain the assets 
owned by B2M LP  will be recovered through periodic revenue requirement applications made pursuant 
to section 78 of the Act.  

 

1.6.4. Please provide details, including any capital expenditure plans, of how 
quality and reliability of service will be maintained after completion of 
the proposed transaction. Indicate where service centres will be located 
and expected response times. 

 

The assets owned by B2M LP will continue to be maintained and operated by HONI in the same fashion 
and to the same standards, and will be subject to the same IESO market rules, as they are currently.  
Thus quality and reliability of service will be unaffected.  HONI’s existing service centres currently used 
to operate and maintain the assets will continue to be used following the close of the transaction.  
Response times to serve the B2M LP assets are not expected to change as compared to the time taken 
by HONI today to operate and maintain the assets. As such, the sale of a 30% interest in B2M LP to SON 
LP Co. will not have an effect on quality and reliability of service. 

 

1.6.5. Please indicate whether the parties to the proposed transaction intend 
to undertake a rate harmonization process after the proposed 
transaction is completed. If yes, please provide a description of the plan. 

 

A rate application under section 78 will be filed by B2M LP later in 2013 to establish its initial revenue 
requirement as of 2014 and to adjust the provincial Uniform Transmission Rates (“UTR”).   

 

1.6.6. If the application is for an amalgamation, please provide a proposal for 
the time of rebasing the consolidated entity in accordance with the five-
year limit set by the Board. 

 

N/A 
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1.6.7. Please identify all incremental costs that the parties to the proposed 
transaction expect to incur. These may include incremental transaction 
costs, (i.e., legal), incremental merged costs (i.e., employee severances), 
and incremental ongoing costs (i.e., purchase and maintenance of new IT 
systems). Please explain how the new utility plans to finance these costs. 

 

Please refer to Section 6 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  

 

1.6.8. Please describe the changes, if any, in distribution or transmission rate 
levels (as applicable) and the impact on the total bill that may result from 
the proposed transaction. 

 

Please refer to Section 6 of the Supplementary Application Information filing. 

 

1.6.9. Please provide details of the costs and benefits of the proposed 
transaction to the customers of the parties to the proposed transaction. 

 

Please refer to Sections 6 and 7 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  

 

1.7. Economic Efficiency 

1.7.1. Please indicate the impact the proposed transaction will have on 
economic efficiency and cost effectiveness (in the distribution or 
transmission of electricity). Details on the impacts of the proposed 
transaction on economic efficiency and cost effectiveness should include, 
but are not limited to, impacts on administration support functions such 
as IT, accounting, and customer service. 

 

Please refer to Sections 4 through 7 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  
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1.8. Financial Viability 

1.8.1. Please provide a valuation of any assets or shares that will be 
transferred in the proposed transaction.  Provide details on how this 
value was determined, including any assumptions made about future rate 
levels. 

 

Valuation of the partnership units to be acquired by SON LP Co. from B2M LP will be based on the net 
book value, which approximates fair market value, of the assets that are transferred from HONI to B2M 
LP.  The transaction contemplates SON LP Co.’s acquiring up to a 30 percent of ownership interest in 
B2M LP based on the net book value of the transferred assets.  SON LP Co.’s actual take up of 
partnership interests will be dependent upon its availability to finance this purchase, which in turn is 
dependent upon provincial loan guarantee programs and the prevailing long term cost to borrow funds 
as determined in the capital markets.  

 

1.8.2. If the price paid as part of the proposed transaction is significantly more 
than the book value of the assets of the selling utility, please provide 
details as to why this price will not have an adverse effect on the 
economic viability of the acquiring utility. 

 

The parties have agreed that the price of the sale will be based upon the net book value of the assets, 
which the parties agree, approximates fair market value. 

 

1.8.3.  Please provide details of the financing of the proposed transaction. 
 

Please refer to Section 4 of the Supplementary Application Information filing. 

 

1.8.4. If the proposed transaction involves a leasing arrangement, please 
identify separately any assets in the service area that are owned, from 
those assets that are encumbered by any means, e.g., subject to a lease or 
debt covenant. 

 

A leasing arrangement is not involved in this transaction. 



11 
 

 

1.8.5. Please outline the capital (debt /equity) structure, on an actual basis, of 
the parties to the proposed transaction prior to the transaction and on a 
pro forma basis after completion of the proposed transaction. In order to 
allow the Board to assess any potential impacts on the utility's financial 
viability, please include the terms associated with the debt structure of 
the utility as well as the utility's dividend policy after the completion of 
the proposed transaction. Please ensure that any debt covenants 
associated with the debt issue are also disclosed. 

 

B2M LP and SON LP Co. are newly formed entities and as such no historical audited financial statements 
are available.  Please refer to Section 11 Appendix 9 of the Supplementary Application Information filing 
for Pro Forma statements. 

The debt for the entity will be in the form of a note payable by B2M LP to GPCo.  The financing to 
support this debt will be provided, indirectly, by Hydro One Inc. through a collateral agreement identical 
in nature to that currently held by Hydro One Inc. with all of its subsidiaries including HONI.  This debt is 
expected to have an average interest rate and term that is similar to that currently held by HONI’s 
Transmission Business in relation to the Bruce to Milton line. 

The equity will ultimately be held by 3 parties in total:  

• Hydro One B2M LP Inc. – 0.1%  
• B2M GP Inc. – 69.9%  
• SON LP Co. – 30%  

See Section 1.3.5 above for illustration of the corporate structure. 

Barring exceptional circumstances, a substantial portion of the income of B2M LP is expected to be 
distributed to its partners annually, subject to the requirements of prudent operation and management 
of assets transferred to B2M LP.  As the transferred assets comprise newly built 500 kV transmission 
towers and circuits, there is very little planned capital investment required for many years, and hence, 
there is no expectation that there will be a need to retain significant earnings or to issue new debt to 
fund capital improvements over the short to medium term.  

Furthermore, it is expected that, barring an extraordinary event such as major storm damage which 
would necessitate material capital replacements, the annual depreciation expense for The Line will 
generally exceed capital expenditures.  As such, rate base for B2M LP will generally decline over time, 
along with the underlying debt and equity amounts needed to support it.  This will require cash 
distributions to the partners in excess of partnership income in order to keep debt and equity amounts 
aligned with the OEB-approved 60/40 capital structure. 
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Nonetheless, any and all activities, including the partnership distributions made by B2M LP, will be in 
keeping with the maintenance of the long-term financial stability of the regulated entity, as determined 
by the general partner. 

 

1.8.6. Please provide details of any potential liabilities associated with the 
proposed transaction in relation to public health and safety matters or 
environmental matters. These may be matters that have been identified 
in the audited financial statements or they may be matters that the 
parties have become aware of since the release of the most recently 
audited financial statements. If there are any pre-existing potential 
liabilities regarding public health and safety matters or environmental 
matters for any party to the proposed transaction, provide details on how 
the parties propose to deal with those potential liabilities after the 
transaction is completed.  Specify who will have on-going liability for the 
pre-existing potential liabilities. 

 

Acquisition of up to a 30 percent interest in B2M LP by SON LP Co. is not contemplated to in any way 
cause public health, safety or environmental issues, liabilities or concerns. On-going liability of the assets 
to be owned and operated by B2M LP will be the responsibility of its general partner, who in turn, is a 
wholly owned and controlled subsidiary of Hydro One.   

 

1.9. Other Information 

1.9.1. If the proposed transaction requires the approval of a parent company, 
municipal council or any other entity please provide a copy of 
appropriate resolutions indicating that all such parties have approved 
the proposed transaction. 

 

Please see Band Council Resolutions enclosed as part of Section 11 Appendix 6 to the Supplementary 
Application Information filing. 

 

1.9.2.  Please list all suits, actions, investigations, inquiries or proceedings by 
any government body, or other legal or administrative proceeding, 
except proceedings before the Board, that have been instituted or 
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threatened against each of the parties to the proposed transaction or any 
of their respective affiliates. 

 

No legal action against the parties related to this transaction is currently in progress or reasonably 
foreseen to materialize within the exercising of this transaction 

 

1.9.3.  Regarding net metering thresholds, the Board will, absent exceptional 
circumstances, add together the kW threshold amounts allocated to the 
individual utilities and assign the sum to the new or remaining utility. 
Please indicate the current net metering thresholds of the utilities 
involved in the proposed transaction. Please also indicate if there are any 
special circumstances that may warrant the Board using a different 
methodology to determine the net metering threshold for the new or 
remaining utility. 

 

N/A.  The parties and assets involved in this transaction are not involved in any net metering 
transactions. 

 

1.9.4. Please provide the Board with any other information that is relevant to 
the application.  When providing this additional information, please have 
due regard to the Board's objectives in relation to electricity. 

 

Please refer to Sections 1 through 9 of the Supplementary Application Information filing.  
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Directors of Hydro One Networks Inc.  
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One 
Networks Inc.), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, the statement of operations and 
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial statements have been prepared by management 
in accordance with the basis of accounting in Note 2 to these financial statements. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 

Management of Hydro One Networks Inc. is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the basis of accounting in Note 2 to these financial statements; this includes determining that the 
basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of these financial statements in the circumstances, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
 

Opinion  
 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One Networks Inc.) as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with basis of accounting as set out in Note 2 to 
these financial statements.  
 

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use 
 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to these financial statement, which describes the basis 
of accounting and composition of the Hydro One Networks Inc. that comprise Transmission Business.   In 
particular, in preparing these financial statements, corporate long-term debt, shared functions and services costs and 
payments in lieu of corporate income taxes have been allocated to the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro 
One Networks Inc.) using the method of allocation described in Note 2 to these financial statements. As a result of 
this basis of accounting, these financial statements may not necessarily be identical to the financial position, results 
of operations and cash flows that would have resulted had the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One 
Networks Inc.) historically operated on a stand-alone basis.  These financial statements are prepared to assist Hydro 
One Networks Inc. to comply with its reporting requirements of the Ontario Energy Board. As a result, these 
financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.  Our report is intended solely for Hydro One Networks 
Inc. and the Ontario Energy Board and should not be used by parties other than Hydro One Networks Inc. or the 
Ontario Energy Board. 

 
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
Toronto, Canada 
April 2, 2012         
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
 

Years ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Revenues    
Transmission tariff (Note 16) 1,353 1,287 
Other  37 20 
  1,390 1,307 
   
Costs   
Operation, maintenance and administration (Note 16) 434 426 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 301 273 
  735 699 
   
Income before financing charges and provision for  
  payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 655 608 
Financing charges (Notes 4 and 16) 198 195 
   
Income before provision for payments in lieu 
  of corporate income taxes 457 413
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate 
  income taxes (Notes 5 and 16) 77 40 
Net income and comprehensive income 380 373 
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
BALANCE SHEETS 

 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Assets   
Current assets:   
    Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful  
      accounts - $2 million; 2010- $2 million) (Note 16) 150 135 
    Regulatory assets (Note 8) 10 15 
    Materials and supplies  16 13 
    Future income tax assets (Note 5) 10 16 
    Other  8 2 
  194 181 
Fixed assets (Note 6):   
 Fixed assets in service 12,410 11,666 
 Less: accumulated depreciation 4,463 4,234 
  7,947 7,432 
 Construction in progress 1,123 1,111 
 Future use land, components and spares 89 89 
  9,159 8,632 
Other long-term assets:   
    Regulatory assets (Note 8) 691 660 

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization) (Note 7) 113 119 
 Other 13 2 
  817 781 
Total assets 10,170 9,594
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

 
 

2011 December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 
Liabilities   
Current liabilities:   

Inter-company demand facility (Note 16) 181 83 
Accounts payable and accrued charges (Notes 13 and 16) 281 241 
Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 7 20 
Accrued interest 52 51 
Long-term debt payable within one year (Notes 9, 10 and 16) 276 324 

  797 719 
   
Long-term debt (Notes 9, 10 and 16) 4,388 4,201 
   
Other long-term liabilities:   

Future income tax liabilities (Note 5) 570 522 
Employee future benefits other than pension (Note 12) 442 416 
Environmental liabilities (Note 13) 90 124 
Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 47 24 
Asset retirement obligations (Note 14) 12 7 
Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities 6 5 

  1,167 1,098 
Total liabilities 6,352 6,018
   
Contingencies and commitments (Notes 18 and 19)   
   
Excess of assets over liabilities (Notes 11 and 15) 3,818 3,576 
Total liabilities and excess of assets over liabilities 10,170 9,594 
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
 
 
On behalf of the Board:  
 
 
 
 
          
          
 

Laura Formusa Sandy Struthers 
Chair Director 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 
 

2011 2010 Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 
Operating activities   
Net income 380 373 
Environmental expenditures (7) (7)
Adjustments for non-cash items:   
 Depreciation and amortization (excluding removal costs) 281 259 

Regulatory asset and liability accounts 10 (12)
 Future income taxes (7) (1)
   Gain on interest rate swap agreements (4) (7)
   Asset retirement obligation 4 4 
   Other 6 - 
 664 609 
Changes in non-cash balances related to operations (Note 17) 47 21 
Net cash from operating activities 711 630 
   
Financing activities   
Allocated long-term debt issued 455 750
Allocated long-term debt retired (324) (403)
Payments to Hydro One Inc. to finance dividends (138) (63)
Other (3) -
Net cash (used in) from financing activities  (10) 284
   
Investing activities   
Capital expenditures   

Fixed assets (792) (928)
Intangible assets (18) (8)

 (810) (936)
Other assets 11 21 
Net cash used in investing activities  (799) (915)
   
Net change in inter-company demand facility  (98) (1)
Inter-company demand facility, January 1 (83) (82)
Inter-company demand facility, December 31  (181) (83)
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
 
Hydro One Inc. (Hydro One) was incorporated on December 1, 1998, under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) 
and is wholly owned by the Province of Ontario (the Province). The principal businesses of Hydro One are the 
transmission and distribution of electricity to customers within Ontario. These businesses are regulated by the 
Ontario Energy Board (OEB). 
 
Hydro One Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks or the Company) was incorporated on March 4, 1999 under the 
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One. The Company owns and 
operates Hydro One’s regulated transmission and distribution businesses.  The regulated transmission business 
(Transmission Business) operates a high-voltage electrical transmission network that represents almost all of the 
licensed transmission capacity in Ontario. 
 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies summarized below.  These 
policies are consistent with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as contained in Part V of the 
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook - Accounting. These financial statements have been 
prepared for the specific use of the OEB. Consolidated financial statements of Hydro One for the year ended December 
31, 2011 have been prepared and are publicly available. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a carve-out basis to provide the financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows of the Company’s regulated Transmission Business on a basis approved by the OEB. The 
financial statements are considered by management to be a reasonable representation, prepared on a rational, systematic 
and consistent basis, of the financial results of that business. As a result of this basis of accounting, these financial 
statements may not necessarily be identical to the financial position and results of operations and cash flows that would 
have resulted had the Transmission Business historically operated on a stand-alone basis.   
 
These financial statements have been constructed primarily through specific identification of assets, liabilities (other 
than debt), revenues and expenses that relate to the Transmission Business. The Company’s long-term debt is allocated 
based on the respective borrowing requirements of the Company’s transmission and distribution businesses. A portion 
of the Company’s shared functions and services costs is allocated to the Transmission Business on a fully-allocated 
basis, consistent with OEB-approved independent studies. Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (PILs) have been 
recorded at effective rates based on income taxes as reported in the Statements of Operations and Comprehensive 
Income as though the Transmission Business was a separate taxpaying entity.  Certain other amounts presented in these 
financial statements represent allocations subject to review and approval by the OEB.  
 
Rate-setting 
 
The rates of the Company’s electricity Transmission Business are subject to regulation by the OEB. 
 
Hydro One Networks filed a transmission rate application for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008.  On May 28, 
2009, the OEB issued its decision with reasons in respect of this application.  The decision, which was effective July 
1, 2009, resulted in revenue requirements of $1,180 million and $1,240 million for 2009 and 2010, respectively.  
The OEB decision disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million for 2010, but the OEB agreed to 
reconsider these projects if additional evidence was provided.  On September 4, 2009, Hydro One Networks filed 
the additional evidence on two projects amounting to approximately $160 million in capital expenditures.  The OEB 
approved the supplemental evidence for inclusion in Hydro One Networks’ 2010 rates.  This resulted in a revised 
revenue requirement of $1,257 million for 2010, on the basis of an updated return on equity of 8.39%. 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
 

On May 19, 2010 Hydro One Networks submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued 
support of its aging critical infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives 
and initiation of investments in support of the Green Energy Act (GEA).  This application sought the approval of 
revenue requirements of approximately $1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million for 2012.  On December 23, 
2010, the OEB issued its decision with reasons effective January 1, 2011, which resulted in approved revenue 
requirements of $1,346 million for 2011 and $1,658 million for 2012. The approved 2012 revenue requirement was 
higher than that applied for, reflecting OEB direction to Hydro One Networks to adopt a modified International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) cost capitalization policy.  
 
On September 6, 2011, the Company submitted its evidence to the OEB in support of its request of approval to 
adopt US GAAP as its approved basis for rate-setting, regulatory accounting and reporting. On November 23, 2011, 
the OEB approved Hydro One Network’s request to adopt US GAAP and approved a revised revenue requirement 
for 2012 that effectively removed the impact of adopting the modified IFRS cost capitalization policy. 
 
Regulatory Accounting 
 
The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specific 
period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have applied in an 
unregulated company.  Such change in timing involves the application of rate-regulated accounting, giving rise to 
the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Transmission Business’ regulatory assets represent certain 
amounts receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is 
probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the Transmission Business has recorded regulatory 
liabilities, which represent amounts incurred in different periods than would be the case had the Transmission 
Business been unregulated. The Company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory 
assets and continues to believe that it is probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the 
setting of future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB will 
include a specific regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in its 
results of operations in the period that the assessment is made.  The specific regulatory assets and liabilities 
recognized at December 31, 2011 are disclosed in Note 8.   
  
Revenue Recognition 
  
Transmission revenues are collected through OEB-approved rates, which are based on an approved revenue 
requirement that includes a rate of return.  Such revenue is recognized as power is transmitted and delivered to 
customers.  
  
Revenue also includes amounts related to sales of other services and equipment. Such revenue is recognized as 
services are rendered or as equipment is delivered. 
  
Corporate Income and Capital Taxes 
 
Under the Electricity Act, 1998, Hydro One Networks is required to make payments in lieu of corporate taxes to the 
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules for 
computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the 
Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) (Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), prior to 2009) as modified by the Electricity Act, 
1998, and related regulations. 
 
Current Income Taxes 
 
The provision for current taxes and the assets and liabilities recognized for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amounts receivable from, or payable to, the OEFC.  
 
Future Income Taxes  
 
Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method and are recognized on temporary differences 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
 

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable income. 
 
Future income tax liabilities are generally recognized on all taxable temporary differences and future tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that they are more likely than not to be realized from taxable income available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.   
 
Future income taxes are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled 
or the asset is realized, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date. Future income taxes are charged or credited to the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive 
Income. 
 
The carrying amount of future income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that all or part of the future income tax assets have not met the “more likely than not” criterion.  Previously 
unrecognized future income tax assets are re-evaluated at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent 
that they have become more likely than not of being recovered from future taxable income. 
 
The Company has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow 
through the rate-setting process. 
 
Inter-Company Demand Facility 
   
Hydro One maintains pooled bank accounts for its use and for the use of its subsidiaries and, implicitly, by the 
regulated businesses of these subsidiaries. The inter-company demand facility represents the cumulative net effect of 
all deposits and withdrawals made by the Transmission Business to and from the pooled cash accounts. Interest is 
earned on positive inter-company balances based on the average of the bankers’ acceptance rate at the beginning and 
end of the month, less 0.02%. Interest is charged on overdraft inter-company balances based on the same bankers’ 
acceptance rate, plus 0.15%. 
 
Materials and Supplies 
  
Materials and supplies represent consumables, spare parts and construction material held for internal construction 
and maintenance of fixed assets. These assets are carried at lower of average cost or net realizable value.  
 
Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises materials, labour, engineering costs, overheads, depreciation on 
service equipment and the OEB-approved allowance for funds used during construction applicable to capital 
construction activities. 
  
Fixed assets in service consist of transmission assets, communication, administration and service assets and 
easements.  Fixed assets also include future use assets such as land, major components and spare parts, and 
capitalized development costs associated with deferred capital projects.  
  
Transmission  
  
Transmission assets include assets used for the transmission of high-voltage electricity, such as transmission lines, 
support structures, foundations, insulators, connecting hardware, grounding systems, and assets used to step up the 
voltage of electricity from generating stations for transmission and to step down voltages for distribution, such as 
transformers, circuit breakers and switches.  
  
Communication, Administration and Service  
  
Communication, administration and service assets include telecommunications equipment, towers, buildings 
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HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
 

associated with communication assets, administrative buildings, major computer systems, personal computers, 
transport and work equipment, tools, vehicles and minor fixed assets.  
 
Easements  
  
Easements include statutory rights of use to transmission corridors and abutting lands granted under the Reliable 
Energy and Consumer Protection Act, 2002, as well as other amounts related to access rights. 
  
Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets primarily represent computer applications software.  These assets are capitalized at cost, which 
comprises purchased software, labour and consulting, engineering, overheads and the OEB-approved allowance for 
funds used during construction applicable to capital construction activities. 
 
Construction and Development in Progress 
  
Overhead costs, including corporate functions and services costs, are capitalized on a fully-allocated basis, 
consistent with an OEB-approved methodology. Financing costs are capitalized on fixed assets under construction 
and intangible assets under development, based on the OEB’s approved allowance for funds used during 
construction (2011 - 4.20%; 2010 - 4.34%). 
  
Depreciation and Amortization 
  
The capital costs of fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated or amortized on a straight-line basis, except for 
transport and work equipment, which is depreciated on a declining balance basis.  
  
The Company periodically initiates an external review of its fixed asset and intangible asset depreciation and 
amortization rates, as required by the OEB and Canadian GAAP. The last review resulted in changes to rates 
effective January 1, 2007. A summary of depreciation rates for the various classes of assets is included below:  

 
 Depreciation rates (%) 
 Range Average 

Transmission    1% - 2%           2% 
Communication, Administration and Service      1% - 15%           6% 
Easements                   1%           1% 
 
Intangible assets are primarily included within the communication, administration and service classification above and 
these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis.  The amortization rate for computer applications software and other 
intangible assets is approximately 11%.  Depreciation rates for easements are based on their contract lives. The 
majority of easements are held in perpetuity and are not depreciated. 
 
In accordance with group depreciation practices, the original cost of fixed assets or intangible assets that are normally 
retired is charged to accumulated depreciation or amortization, with no gain or loss reflected in current results of 
operations. Gains and losses on sales of fixed assets and losses on premature retirements are charged to results of 
operations as adjustments to depreciation expense. Depreciation expense also includes the costs incurred to remove 
fixed assets.  
 
The estimated service lives of fixed or intangible assets are subject to periodic review. Any changes arising out of such 
a review are implemented on a remaining service life basis consistent with their inclusion in electricity rates.  
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Financial Instruments 
 
Recognition and measurement 
 
All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments; loans 
and receivables; held-for-trading; other liabilities; or available-for-sale. All financial instruments, including 
derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheets except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments and other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost. Held-for-trading financial 
instruments are measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in financing charges in the period which 
they arise. Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value with revaluation gains and losses 
included in other comprehensive income (OCI) until the instrument is derecognized or impaired. The Transmission 
Business has classified its financial instruments as follows: 
  
Assets / Liabilities Classification Measurement 

   
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost 
Accounts payable 
Inter-company demand facility 

Other liabilities Amortized cost 
Amortized cost Other liabilities 

Long-term debt (unless otherwise specified) Other liabilities Amortized cost 
Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps Not classified Fair value 
Floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps Held-for-trading Fair value 
$150 million of a $250 million note matured on March 3, 2011 Not classified Fair value 
$150 million of a $500 million note due November 19, 2014 Not classified Fair value 
$150 million of a $500 million note due September 11, 2015 Not classified Fair value 
 
In March 2008, January 2010 and January 2011, Hydro One issued notes for long-term financing under its Medium-
Term Note (MTN) Program in the amounts of $250 million, $500 million and $250 million, respectively.  The first 
$250 million issue, $250 million of the $500 million issue and the second $250 million issue were mirrored within 
Hydro One Networks through the issuance of inter-company debt with $150 million of each issue allocated to the 
Transmission Business.  These amounts were designated as part of a hedging relationship. As at December 31, 2011, 
derivative instruments include fixed-to-floating interest-rate swap agreements with a total amount of $300 million to 
convert $300 million of fixed-rate debt into three-month variable-rate debt as well as floating-to-fixed interest-rate 
swap agreements with a total amount of $330 million that locks in the rate resets on $330 million floating-rate debt 
for 2012.  These long-term debt issues, and related hedging instruments, are not classified. 
 
All financial instrument transactions are recorded at trade date.  
 
Discounts and Premiums on Debt 
 
Discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the related debt using the effective interest rate method.   
 
Transaction Costs  
 
Transaction costs related to Hydro One Networks’ proportionate share of the relevant Hydro One transaction, for 
financial assets and liabilities that are other than held-for-trading, are added to the carrying value of the asset or 
liability and amortized over the expected life of the instrument using the effective interest method.  
 
Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting 
 
All derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheets unless 
exempted from derivative treatment as a normal purchase and sale or when it is deemed that the economic 
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks 
of the host contract.  The Company does not have any significant embedded derivatives in contracts that require 
separate accounting and disclosure.  
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All changes in fair value are recorded in financing charges unless cash flow hedge accounting is used, in which case 
changes in fair value are recorded in OCI to the extent that the hedge is effective. The gain or loss related to the 
ineffective portion, if any, is recorded in financing charges. 
 
The Company does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities. 
 
Hydro One periodically develops hedging strategies for execution taking into account risk management objectives. 
At the inception of a hedging relationship, Hydro One formally documents the hedging relationship between the 
hedged item and the hedging instrument, its risk management objective for establishing the hedging relationship, the 
nature of the specific risk exposure being hedged, and the method for assessing effectiveness of the hedging 
relationship. Hydro One also assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the 
hedging items that are used are effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.  
 
Comprehensive Income 
 
Comprehensive income is comprised of the Transmission Business’ net income and OCI. OCI includes the 
amortization of net unamortized hedging losses on the Company’s proportionate share of Hydro One’s discounted 
cash flow hedges, and the change in fair value on the Company’s proportionate share of existing cash flow hedges to 
the extent that the hedge is effective.  The Company amortizes its unamortized hedging losses on discontinued cash 
flow hedges to financing charges using the effective interest method over the term of the allocated hedged debt.  
 
Financial Instrument Disclosures  
 
All financial instruments measured at fair value are categorized into one of the three levels of hierarchy.  Each level 
is based on the transparency of the inputs used to measure the fair values of assets and liabilities: 
 
Level 1 – inputs are unadjusted quoted prices of identical instruments in an active market; 
Level 2 – inputs do not have quoted prices but are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and 
Level 3 – inputs that are not based on observable market data.    
 
The fair market value of the Company’s long-term debt is determined using the fair value hierarchy levels disclosed 
in Note 10. 
 
Employee Future Benefits 
 
Employee future benefits provided by Hydro One and its subsidiaries include pension, group life insurance, health care, 
and long-term disability. 
 
In accordance with the OEB’s rate orders, pension costs are recorded when employer contributions are paid to the 
pension fund in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario).  Actuarial valuations are conducted at least every 
three years.  Pension costs are also calculated on an accrual basis.  Pension costs are actuarially determined using the 
projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimate of the 
effect of future events, including future compensation increases, on the actuarial present value of accrued pension 
benefits. Pension plan assets, consisting primarily of listed equity securities as well as corporate and government debt 
securities, are valued using fair values. Past service costs from plan amendments and all actuarial gains or losses are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the employees covered. 
 
Employee future benefits other than pension are recorded on an accrual basis. Costs are determined by independent 
actuaries using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s 
best estimates. Past service costs from plan amendments and actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the expected average remaining service life of the employees covered.  
 
Employee future benefit costs are attributed to labour and charged to operations or capitalized as part of the cost of 
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fixed and intangible assets. 
 
Environmental Costs 
 
The Transmission Business records a liability for estimated future expenditures associated with the assessment and 
remediation of contaminated lands and for the phase-out and destruction of polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) 
contaminated mineral oil removed from electrical equipment, based on the present value of these estimated future 
expenditures. As the Company anticipates that the related expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future rates, a 
regulatory asset has been recorded to reflect the future recovery of these costs from customers.  The Transmission 
Business reviews its estimates of future environmental expenditures on an ongoing basis. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations 
 
When required by force of law or regulation, the Transmission Business records an asset retirement obligation based on 
the present value of the estimated fair value expenditures to remove certain assets and mitigate related sites. Where the 
Transmission Business anticipates that the related expenditures will be recoverable in future rates, a corresponding 
amount is capitalized as a cost of the related fixed assets. Some of the Transmission Business’ assets, particularly those 
located on unowned easements and rights-of-way, may have asset retirement obligations, conditional or otherwise. The 
majority of the Company’s easements and rights-of-way are either of perpetual duration or are automatically renewed 
annually. Land rights with finite terms are generally subject to extension or renewal. As the Transmission Business 
expects to use the majority of its facilities in perpetuity, no asset retirement obligation currently exists.  If, at some 
future date, a particular facility is shown not to meet the perpetuity criterion, it will be reviewed to determine whether a 
measurable asset retirement obligation exists.  In such a case, an asset retirement obligation would be recorded at that 
time. The asset retirement obligations recorded to date are primarily related to the estimated future expenditures 
associated with the removal and disposal of asbestos-containing materials installed in some of the Company’s 
facilities and the decommissioning of certain switching stations. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or 
the Province. 
 
Emerging Accounting Changes  
 
Accounting Framework 
 

The Company previously anticipated it would apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the 
Financial Statements of its regulated businesses for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.  In the 
absence of a definitive plan for a new project to consider the issuance of a rate-regulated accounting standard by the 
International Accounting Standards Board, Hydro One began evaluating the option of adopting US GAAP in lieu of 
IFRS in the first quarter of this year.  On July 7, 2011, Hydro One filed an application with the Ontario Securities 
Commission (OSC) for exemptive relief from the requirements of section 3.2 of National Instrument 52-107 
Acceptable Accounting Policies and Auditing Standards that would otherwise require it to file Financial Statements 
based on IFRS starting with reporting periods commencing after January 1, 2012. Hydro One’s application 
requested approval to instead adopt US GAAP, without becoming a Securities and Exchange Commission registrant, 
for its 2012, 2013 and 2014 fiscal years. On July 21, 2011, the OSC approved Hydro One’s application and granted 
it the requested exemptive relief. Hydro One’s Board of Directors has approved a resolution authorizing it to report 
under US GAAP.   
 
As a result, the Company, as a subsidiary of Hydro One, will prepare its December 31, 2012 Financial Statements 
prepared based on US GAAP with two years of comparative restatement.  The Company’s opening US GAAP 
Balance Sheet will be based on a retrospective application of US GAAP. The Company anticipates that its current 
application of Canadian GAAP for rate-regulated activities will generally be consistent with US GAAP.  Any 
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differences between Canadian and US GAAP and their impact on the Company’s Financial Statements will be 
assessed as part of the Company’s US GAAP conversion project. 
 
On September 6, 2011, the Company submitted its evidence to the OEB in support of its request of approval to 
adopt US GAAP  as the approved basis for rate-setting and regulatory accounting and reporting for its Transmission 
Business in preference to modified IFRS. On November 23, 2011, the OEB approved the Company’s request.  
 
 
3. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
 

2011 2010 Years ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 
Depreciation of fixed assets in service 250 231 
Amortization of intangible assets 22 21 
Fixed asset removal costs 20 14 
Amortization of regulatory and other assets 9 7 
 301 273 
 
 
4. FINANCING CHARGES 
 
Years ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Interest on long-term debt payable (Note 16) 242 242 
Interest on inter-company demand facility 1 (1)
Other 1 (2)
Less: Interest capitalized on construction and development in progress (46) (44)
 198 195 
 
 
5. PROVISION FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF CORPORATE INCOME TAXES  
 
The provision for PILs differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined Canadian Federal 
and Ontario statutory income tax rate. The reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rates is provided as 
follows: 

 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Income before provision for PILs 457 413 
Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate 28.25% 31.00% 
Provision for PILs at statutory rate 129 128 
  
Increase (decrease) resulting from:  
  
Net temporary differences included in amounts charged to customers:  

  
  Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization (27) (57) 
  Interest capitalized for accounting purposes but deducted for tax purposes (13) (14) 
  Overheads capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (7) (8) 
  Pension contributions in excess of pension expense (7) (7) 

    Environmental expenditures (2) (2) 
    Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash  payments 2 1 
  Other 1 (2) 

Net temporary differences  (53) (89) 
Net permanent differences 1 1 
Total income tax provision for PILs 77 40 
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(Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Current income tax provision for PILs 83 41 
Future income tax provision for PILs (6) (1) 
Total income tax provision for PILs 77 40 
Effective income tax rate 16.85% 9.69% 
The provision for payments in lieu of current income taxes of $83 million represents the amount payable to the 
OEFC with respect to current year income.  The outstanding balance due to the OEFC at December 31, 2011 is 
approximately $36 million (2010 - $6 million recoverable).  
 
The payments in lieu of future income taxes recoverable of $6 million reflects the decrease in the liability for 
payments in lieu of future income taxes that are not expected to be recovered from the Transmission Business’s 
customers through future rates.   
 
Future Income Tax Assets and Liabilities 
 
Payments in lieu of future income tax assets and liabilities arise from differences between the carrying amounts and 
tax bases of the Transmission Business’ assets and liabilities.  The tax effects of these differences are as follows: 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Future Income Tax Assets   
 Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 155 147 
 Eligible Capital Expenditure 36 37 
 Environmental expenditures 25 34 
Other 1 4 
Total future income tax assets 217 222 
Less: current portion 12 19 
 205 203 

 
Current future income tax assets 12 19 
Current future income tax liabilities (2) (3)
Net current future income tax assets 10 16 

 
Future Income Tax Liabilities   
 Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization 760 698 
 Amounts paid but not recognized for accounting purposes  17 29 
Other - 1 
Total future income tax liabilities 777 728 
Less: current portion 2 3 
 775 725 

 
 

Long-term future income tax assets 205 203 
Long-term future income tax liabilities (775) (725)
Net long-term future income tax liability (570) (522)
   

The increase in the liability for payments in lieu of future income taxes that is expected to be recovered from 
customers through future rates has resulted in an increase in regulatory assets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15 



HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
 

6. FIXED ASSETS 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Cost 
Accumulated
Depreciation

Construction 
in Progress Total 

2011  
Transmission  10,888 3,807 1,078 8,159 
Communication, administration and service 1,126 572 45 599 
Easements 485 84 - 401 

 12,499 4,463 1,123 9,159 
 

2010  
Transmission  10,186 3,623 1,070 7,633 
Communication, administration and service 1,086 529 41 598 
Easements 483 82 - 401 

 11,755 4,234 1,111 8,632 
 

Financing costs are capitalized on fixed assets under construction, including allowance for funds used during 
construction on regulated assets, and were $46 million in 2011 (2010 - $44 million).  
 
 
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Cost

Accumulated 
Amortization

Development 
in Progress  Total

2011  
Computer applications software 205 99 5 111
Other assets 4 2 - 2
 209 101 5 113

2010  
Computer applications software 190 77 4 117
Other assets 4 2 - 2

 194 79 4 119
 
 
8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate-setting process. The Transmission Business has recorded the 
following regulatory assets and liabilities: 
 

2011 2010 December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 
 Regulatory assets: 

Future income tax regulatory asset 583 522 
Environmental  100 134 
Pension cost variance  13 11 
Long-term project development cost  5 7 
Other - 1 
Total regulatory assets 701 675 
Less:  current portion 10 15 

 691 660
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2011 2010 December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

  
 

Regulatory liabilities:  
38 29 External revenue variance  
7 8 Future income tax regulatory liability 
3 3 PST savings deferral  
6 4 Other 

54 44 Total regulatory liabilities 
7 20 Less:  current portion 

47 24  
 
Regulatory Assets 
 
Future Income Tax Regulatory Asset and Liability 
 
Future income taxes are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.  The Company 
has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rate-
setting process.  In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the Company’s provision for PILs would have been 
recognized using the liability method and there would be no regulatory accounts established for taxes to be 
recovered through future rates.  As a result, the Transmission Business’ provision for PILs would have been higher 
by approximately $46 million (2010 - $76 million) including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax 
rates. 
 
Environmental  
 
The Transmission Business records a liability for the estimated future expenditures required to remediate past 
environmental contamination (See Note 13). Because such expenditures are expected to be recoverable in future 
rates, the Transmission Business has recorded an equivalent amount as a regulatory asset.  In 2011, this regulatory 
asset decreased by $32 million (2010 - $17 million) to reflect a revaluation adjustment in the Company’s PCB 
liability and decreased by $1 million (2010 - $1 million) for a change in the land assessment and remediation (LAR) 
liability.  The environmental regulatory asset is amortized to results of operations based on the pattern of actual 
expenditures incurred.  The OEB has the discretion to examine and assess the prudence and the timing of recovery 
of all of the Transmission Business’s actual environmental expenditures. In the absence of rate-regulated 
accounting, operation, maintenance and administration expenses would have been lower by $33 million (2010 - $18 
million).  In addition, amortization expense in 2011 would have been lower by $7 million (2010 - $7 million) and 
financing charges would have been higher by $6 million (2010 - $8 million).   
 
Pension cost variance  
 
The pension cost variance account was established to track the difference between the actual pension costs incurred 
by the Transmission Business and estimated pension costs approved by the OEB. The balance in this account 
reflects the excess of pension contributions paid compared to OEB-approved amounts. On May 28, 2009, the OEB 
announced its decision regarding the Company’s rate application in respect of the Transmission Business for 2009 
and 2010 rates. As part of this decision, the OEB approved recovery of the proposed balance in this account plus 
accrued interest for recovery over 18 months ending December 31, 2010. In the December 23, 2010 decision on 
2011 and 2012 transmission rates, the OEB approved the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, to 
be recovered over a one-year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. In the absence of rate-regulated 
accounting, revenue would have been lower by $1 million in 2011 (2010 - $8 million). 
 
Long-term project development cost  
 
On May 28, 2009 the OEB approved the creation of a deferral account to record the Transmission Business’ costs of 
preliminary work to advance certain transmission projects identified in its 2009 and 2010 transmission rate 
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application. On March 25, 2010, the OEB issued a decision amending the scope of the account to include the 20 
major transmission projects identified in the September 21, 2009 request from the Province. In its December 23, 
2010 decision, the OEB approved the recovery of the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a 
one-year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011.  In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, operation, 
maintenance and administration expenses would have been lower by $2 million (2010 - higher by $5 million). 
 
Regulatory Liabilities 
 
External Revenue Variance  
 
In its May 28, 2009 decision, the OEB approved forecasted amounts related to export service revenue, external 
revenue from secondary land use and external revenue from station maintenance and engineering and construction 
work.  These revenue sources are an offset to the Company’s revenue requirement, and as such, the OEB requested 
the establishment of new variance accounts to capture any difference between amounts factored into the approved 
revenue requirement and actual amounts received.  The balance reflects the excess of external revenue compared to 
the OEB-approved amounts.  On December 23, 2010, the OEB approved the disposition of the December 31, 2009 
balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011.   
 
PST savings deferral  
 
The Company is required to record the impact from the implementation of the HST sales tax regime from July 1, 
2010 to December 31, 2010. The variance amounts recognized in the account reflect Provincial Sales Tax (PST) 
amounts in approved revenue requirements after the implementation of the HST. These amounts will be refunded to 
ratepayers in future years. 
 
 
9. DEBT 
 
Debt represents the Transmission Business’ share of various notes payable by Hydro One Networks to Hydro One.   
  

2011 2010 December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 
Long-term debt 4,659 4,528 
Add: Unrealized marked-to-market loss1 14 3 
Less: Long-term debt payable within one year (276) (324)
          Net unamortized premiums 11 13 
          Unamortized debt issuance costs (20) (19)
 4,388 4,201 
 

1  The unrealized marked-to-market loss relates to the $150 million note which matured on March 3, 2011; $150 million of the $325 million note 
maturing November 19, 2014; and $150 million of the $300 million note maturing September 11, 2015, which are accounted for as fair value 
hedges.  The unrealized marked-to-market loss is offset by a $14 million (2010 - $3 million) unrealized gain on the related fixed-to-floating 
interest rate swap agreements. 

 
The long-term debt is unsecured and denominated in Canadian dollars. Such debt is summarized by the number of 
years to maturity in Note 10. 
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10. CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The carrying value of financial instruments as at December 31, 2011 is as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 

 
 
 

Derivatives Used 
for Hedging 

Other Financial 
Instruments Used 

for Hedging

 
 
 

Loans and 
Receivables 

 
 
 

Other Financial 
Liabilities 

 
Financial Assets 

    

Accounts receivable - - 150 - 
Other assets 14 - - - 
     
Financial Liabilities     
Inter-company demand facility - - - 181 
Accounts payable and  
    accrued charges1 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
236 

Long-term debt - 314 -  4,350 
 

1  Accounts payable and accrued charges do not include income taxes payable or dividends payable. 
 
The carrying amounts of all financial instruments, except long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of 
derivative financial instruments reflects the estimated amount that the Transmission Business, if required to settle an 
outstanding contract, would have been required to pay or would be entitled to receive at year end. The fair value of 
long-term debt, provided in the table below, is based on unadjusted year-end market prices for the same or similar 
debt of the same remaining maturities.  The fair value measurement of long-term debt is categorized as level 1 as the 
inputs used reflect quoted prices in an active market.  
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  2011  2010 

 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair 

Value 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair 

Value 
Long-term debt1 4,659 5,497 4,528 4,978 
 

1  The carrying value of long-term debt represents the par value of the notes and debentures, other than the amounts which are designated as part of a 
hedging relationship. 

 
Exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Company’s business.  
 
Market Risk  
 
Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates 
and interest rates. The Company does not have commodity risk. The Company does have foreign exchange risk as it 
enters into agreements to purchase materials and equipment associated with the Company’s capital programs and 
projects that are settled in foreign currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not material, although Hydro One could 
in the future decide to issue foreign currency denominated debt which will be hedged back to Canadian dollars 
consistent with Hydro One’s risk management policy. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as 
the regulated rate of return for the Company’s Transmission Business is derived using a formulaic approach which is 
based on the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond yields and the spread in 30 year “A” rated 
Canadian utility bonds over the 30 year benchmark Government of Canada bond yield. The Company estimates that 
a 1% decrease in the forecast long-term Government of Canada bond yield or the “A” rated Canadian utility spread 
used in determining the Company’s rate of return would reduce its Transmission Business’ results of operations by 
approximately $18 million.   
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Credit Risk  
 
Financial assets create credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. As 
at December 31, 2011, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial 
assets.    
 
In the year, the Transmission Business’ provision for bad debts was $2 million (2010 - $2 million). Minor 
adjustments and write-offs were determined on the basis of a review of overdue accounts, taking into consideration 
historical experience. As at December 31, 2011, approximately 1% of the Transmission Business’ accounts 
receivable was aged more than 60 days.  
 
Hydro One manages its counter-party credit risk through various techniques including, entering into transactions 
with highly rated counter-parties, limiting total exposure levels with individual counterparties consistent with the 
Hydro One’s Board-approved Credit Risk Policy, entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and 
the contractual right of offset, and monitoring the financial condition of counterparties.  The Company’s credit risk 
for accounts receivable is limited to the carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.  
 
Hydro One uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk.  Hydro One, and the Company, may 
enter into derivative agreements such as forward interest rate agreements, to hedge against the effect of future 
interest rate movements on long-term fixed rate borrowing requirements.  No such agreements were outstanding as 
at December 31, 2011. 
 
Liquidity Risk  
 
Liquidity risk refers to the Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due.  Short-term 
liquidity is provided through the inter-company demand facility from Hydro One and funds from operations. The 
short-term liquidity available to the Company should be sufficient to fund normal operating requirements.  
 
As at December 31, 2011, accounts payable and accrued charges in the amount of $236 million are expected to be 
settled in cash at their carrying amounts within the next year.  Long-term debt maturing over the next twelve months 
is $276 million. Interest payments over the next twelve months on the Transmission Business’ outstanding debt 
amount to $240 million.  
 
As at December 31, 2011, the Transmission Business’ share of the long-term debt of Hydro One Networks to Hydro 
One is $4,659 million and the required interest payments are $4,112 million. Principal outstanding, interest 
payments and related weighted average interest rates are summarized by the number of years to maturity in the 
following table:  
 

Years to  
Maturity 

Principal Outstanding on
Notes and Debentures

(Canadian dollars in millions)
Interest Payments 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rate 

(Percent) 
1 year 276 240 5.8  

2 years 370 224 5.0 
3 years 325 205 3.2 
4 years 330 195 2.9 
5 years 270 180 4.7 

 1,571 1,044 4.3 
6 – 10 years 585 771 5.0 

Over 10 years 2,503 2,297 5.8 
 4,659 4,112 5.2 
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11. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Transmission Business’ objective is to manage its capital structure consistent with the deemed capital structure 
for rate-setting purposes as prescribed by the OEB in its August 16, 2007 decision on transmission rates.  This 
deemed capital structure is 60% debt and 40% common equity.       
 
The Transmission Business considers its capital structure to consist of excess assets over liabilities, long-term debt, 
and the inter-company demand facility. The following table summarizes this capital structure: 
 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Long-term debt payable within one year 276 324 
Add: Inter-company demand facility 181 83 
 457 407 
   
Long-term debt 4,388 4,201 
   
Excess of assets over liabilities 3,818 3,576 
Total capital 8,663 8,184 
 
 
12. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
Pension 
 
Hydro One has a contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular employees of Hydro One and its 
subsidiaries, except Hydro One Brampton Inc.  The Hydro One Pension Plan does not segregate assets in a separate 
account for individual subsidiaries, nor is the cost of the benefit plans allocated to, or funded separately by, entities 
within the consolidated group. Accordingly, for purposes of these financial statements, the pension plan is accounted 
for as a defined contribution plan and no deferred pension asset or liability is recorded. 
 
Hydro One’s pension plan provides benefits based on highest three-year average pensionable earnings. For new 
management employees who commenced employment on or after January 1, 2004, and for new employees 
represented by the Society of Energy Professionals hired after November 17, 2005, benefits are based on highest 
five-year average pensionable earnings. After retirement, pensions are indexed to inflation. The measurement date 
used to determine plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation is December 31. Based on the actuarial valuation 
filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario in September 2010, effective for December 31, 2009, 
Hydro One contributed $152 million to its pension plan in respect of 2011 (2010 - $193 million), $148 million of 
which is required to satisfy minimum funding requirements (2010 - $145 million). Hydro One made an additional 
payment of $48 million in December 2010 and an additional payment of $4 million in 2011 related to a partial plan 
wind-up. Contributions are payable one month in arrears. All of the contributions are expected to be in the form of 
cash. Future contributions will depend on future investment returns, and changes in benefits or actuarial 
assumptions. 
 
For Hydro One, the actuarial present value at December 31, 2011 of the accrued pension benefits, based on a 
projection of the valuation at December 31, 2011, was estimated to be $5,461 million (2010 - $4,996 million). 
Pension plan assets available for these benefits were $4,682 million (2010 - $4,699 million). 
 
Employee Future Benefits other than Pension 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2011, $26 million of employee future benefits other than pension costs were 
charged to the results of operations of the Transmission Business (2010 - $22 million), and $18 million was 
capitalized as part of the cost of fixed assets (2010 - $15 million). Benefits paid were $18 million (2010 - $18 
million). The liability associated with employee future benefits other than pension for the Transmission Business at 
December 31, 2011 was $463 million (2010 - $437 million), including the current portion. 
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A detailed description of employee future benefits is provided in Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of Hydro One for the year ended December 31, 2011. 
 
 
13. ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES 
 

 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

Polychlorinated 
Biphenyls 

(PCB) 

Land Assessment 
and Remediation 

(LAR) 

  
 

Total 
2011   
Environmental liabilities, January 1  116 18 134 
Interest accretion 5 1 6 
Expenditures (6) (1) (7)
Revaluation adjustment (32) (1) (33)
Environmental liabilities, December 31 83 17 100 
Less: current portion  9 1 10 

 74 16 90 
    

 
 
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

Polychlorinated 
Biphenyls 

(PCB) 

Land Assessment 
and Remediation 

(LAR) 

  
 

Total 
2010    
Environmental liabilities, January 1  131 20 151 
Interest accretion 7 1 8 
Expenditures (5) (2) (7) 
Revaluation adjustment (17) (1) (18) 
Environmental liabilities, December 31 116 18 134 
Less: current portion  9 1 10 

 107 17 124 
 
Estimated future environmental expenditures for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2011 and in total 
thereafter are as follows: 2012 - $10 million; 2013 - $12 million; 2014 - $13 million; 2015 - $4 million; 2016 - $4 
million and thereafter - $78 million. Of the total estimated future expenditures, $104 million relate to PCB (2010 - 
$139 million) and $17 million to LAR (2010 - $20 million).  
 
Consistent with the Company’s accounting policy for environmental costs, the Transmission Business records a 
liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and destruction of PCB-contaminated 
insulating oils and related electrical equipment and for the assessment and remediation of chemically-contaminated 
lands. 
 
On September 17, 2008, Environment Canada published its final regulations governing the management, storage and 
disposal of PCBs. These regulations were enacted under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999. The 
regulations impose timelines for disposal of PCBs based on criteria including type of equipment, in-use status and 
PCB-contamination thresholds. All PCBs in concentrations of 500 parts per million (ppm) or more, except for 
specified equipment, had to be disposed of by the end of 2009. However, in 2009, the Company sought and received 
an extension until 2014 for the removal of PCBs from certain station equipment that could potentially be 
contaminated in excess of this threshold.  Under the regulations, PCBs in equipment in concentrations greater than 
50 ppm and less than 500 ppm, or greater than 50 ppm for light ballasts must be disposed of by the end of 2025.  
 
Management judges that the Company currently has very few PCB-contaminated assets in excess of 500 ppm. 
Priority will be given to targeting inspection and testing work toward identifying and removing PCBs in assets that 
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must be compliant by 2014.  Assets to be disposed of by 2025 primarily consist of light ballasts. Contaminated 
transmission station equipment will generally be replaced or will be decontaminated by removing PCB-contaminated 
insulating oil and retrofilling with replacement oil that is less than 2 ppm. 
 
There are uncertainties in estimating future environmental costs due to potential external events such as changes in 
legislation or regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Transmission 
Business’ environmental liabilities represent management’s best estimates of the present value cost required to meet 
existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers or volumes of contaminated 
assets, cost estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual cash flows may 
differ significantly from the Transmission Business’ current assumptions. In addition, for the PCB program, the 
availability of critical resources such as skilled labour and replacement assets and the ability to take maintenance 
outages in critical facilities may influence the timing of expenditures. Estimated environmental liabilities are 
reviewed annually or more frequently if significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate 
changes are accounted for prospectively. 
 
In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liabilities, the Company estimates the current cost of 
completing required work and makes assumptions as to when the future expenditures will actually be incurred, in 
order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used 
to express these current cost estimates as estimated future expenditures. Future environmental expenditures have 
been discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when 
increases in the obligations were first recorded.  
 
 
14. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
Consistent with the Company’s accounting policy for asset retirement obligations, Hydro One Networks records a 
liability for the present value of the estimated future expenditures associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets that the Company is legally required to remove. A corresponding amount is recorded as an asset 
retirement cost that is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related fixed asset.  
 
The Company has recorded a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and disposal 
of asbestos-containing materials installed in some of its facilities. The Company’s liability is based on 
management’s best estimate of the present value of the estimated future expenditures to comply with existing 
regulations. In 2010, the Company completed a study with the aid of an expert external consultant to estimate the 
future expenditures required to remove asbestos prior to facility demolition.   The present value of the estimated 
future expenditures is $4 million.  The amount of interest recorded is nominal and there have been no expenditures 
associated with this obligation.     
 
In 2011, the Company recorded a $4 million asset retirement obligation related to the future decommissioning and 
removal of one of its switching stations. Including the obligation recorded in respect of another switching station in 
2010, the present value of the estimated future expenditures to discharge these obligations is about $8 million. 
Interest recorded on this amount in the year was nominal and there have been no expenditures associated with these 
obligations to date. 
 
There are uncertainties in estimating future expenditures due to potential external events such as changing 
legislation or regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company’s 
asset retirement obligations represent management’s best estimates of the costs required to meet existing legislation 
or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cost estimates to 
perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual cash flows may differ significantly from the 
Company’s current assumptions. Asset retirement obligations are reviewed annually or more frequently if 
significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively.  
 
In determining the amounts to be recorded as asset retirement obligations, the Company estimates the current fair 
value for completing required removal and remediation work and makes assumptions as to when the future 
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expenditures will actually be incurred, in order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation 
assumption of 2% has been used to express these current cost estimates as estimated future expenditures. Future 
expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging from approximately 3% to 5%, depending on the 
appropriate rate for the period when expenditures are expected to be incurred.  
 
 
15. HYDRO ONE NETWORKS’ SHARE CAPITAL 
 
Hydro One Networks is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred shares and common shares.   
 
 
16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Province and Successor Corporations of Ontario Hydro 
   
The Province, OEFC, IESO, Ontario Power Authority (OPA) and Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG) are related 
parties of the Company and its Transmission Business. In addition, the OEB is related to the Company by virtue of 
its status as a Provincial Crown Corporation. Transactions between these parties and the Transmission Business 
were as follows:  
 
The Company received revenue for transmission services from the IESO, based upon uniform transmission rates 
approved by the OEB.  Transmission revenue for 2011 includes $1,366 million (2010 - $1,277 million) related to 
these services. 
 
The Company has service level agreements with Ontario Hydro’s successor corporations, primarily OPG. These 
services include field and engineering, logistics, corporate, telecommunications and information technology 
services. Revenues related to the provision of construction and equipment maintenance services to the other 
successor corporations were $10 million in 2011 (2010 - $13 million). Operation, maintenance and administration 
costs related to the purchase of services from these successor corporations were less than $1 million in both 2011 
and 2010. 
 
Under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, the OEB is required to recover all of its annual operating costs from gas 
and electricity distributors and electricity transmitters. In 2011, the Transmission Business incurred $4 million (2010 
- $3 million) in OEB fees. 
 
PILs, property taxes and capital taxes were paid or payable by the Company to the OEFC (Note 5). 
 
Hydro One and Subsidiaries  
 
The Company provides services to, and receives services from, Hydro One and its other subsidiaries. Amounts due 
to and from Hydro One and its subsidiaries are settled through the inter-company demand facility.  
 
The Company has entered into various agreements with Hydro One and its subsidiaries related to the provision of 
corporate functions and services, supply management, computer support and operational services such as 
environmental, forestry and line services. Revenues include $1 million (2010 - $2 million) related to the provision of 
services to Hydro One and its subsidiaries.  Operation, maintenance and administration costs include $15 million 
(2010 - $13 million) related to the purchase of services from Hydro One and its subsidiaries. 
 
The Company’s debt, including the portion allocated to the Transmission Business, is due to Hydro One.  Financing 
charges include interest expense on this debt in the amount of $242 million (2010 - $242 million). In addition, 
balances payable or receivable under the inter-company demand facility are due to or from Hydro One. Financing 
charges of the Transmission Business include interest expense on this facility in the amount of $1 million (2010 - $1 
million earned). 
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The amounts due to and from related parties as a result of the transactions referred to above are as follows: 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010 
Accounts receivable 118 110 
Accounts payable and accrued charges (74) (43)
 
 
17. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The changes in non-cash balances related to operations consist of the following:  
 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2011 2010
Accounts receivable increase (11) (14)
Materials and supplies increase (3) (1)
Accounts payable and accrued charges increase  40 8
Accrued interest increase  1 5
Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities increase (decrease)  2 (2)
Employee future benefits other than pension increase  26 17
Other  (8) 8

 47 21
 
Supplementary information: 2011 2010 
Interest paid 242 242
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 45 26
 
 
18. CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hydro One. As such, the assets of the Company’s Transmission 
Business are available for the satisfaction of the debts, contingent liabilities and commitments of the Company and 
Hydro One. 
 
 
19. COMMITMENTS 
 
The Company and Hydro One have numerous commitments. These commitments have not been specifically allocated 
to the Transmission Business. However, the net assets of the Transmission Business are available to satisfy the 
commitments of Hydro One. 
 
 
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On January 13, 2012, Hydro One issued $300 million in 3.20% notes under its MTN program with a maturity date of 
January 13, 2022.  On the same date, Hydro One Networks issued 3.22% notes payable to Hydro One in the amount of 
$280 million, with the same maturity date. The Transmission Business’ share of the offering was $154 million. 
 
 
21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 
The comparative Financial Statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to conform to the 
presentation of the December 31, 2011 Financial Statements. 
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To the Directors of Hydro One Networks Inc.  
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One 
Networks Inc.), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, the  statements of operations and 
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial statements have been prepared by management 
in accordance with the basis of accounting in Note 2 to the financial statements. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 

Management of Hydro One Networks Inc. is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in 
accordance with basis of accounting in Note 2 to the financial statements; this includes determining that the basis of 
accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of these financial statements in the circumstances, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
 

Opinion  
 

In our opinion, the financial statements as at December 31, 2010 are prepared, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One Networks Inc.) in accordance with basis of 
accounting as set out in Note 2 to the financial statements.  
 

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use 
 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statement, which describes the basis of 
accounting and composition of the Hydro One Networks Inc. that comprise Transmission Business.   In particular, in 
preparing these financial statements, corporate long-term debt, shared functions and services costs and payments in 
lieu of corporate income taxes have been allocated to the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One Networks 
Inc.) using the method of allocation described in Note 2 to the financial statements. As a result of this basis of 
accounting, these financial statements may not necessarily be identical to the financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows that would have resulted had the Transmission Business (a business of Hydro One Networks Inc.) 
historically operated on a stand-alone basis.  The financial statements are prepared to assist Hydro One Networks 
Inc to comply with its reporting requirements of Ontario Energy Board. As a result, the financial statements may not 
be suitable for another purpose.  Our report is intended solely for Hydro One Networks Inc. and the Ontario Energy 
Board and should not be used by parties other than Hydro One Networks Inc. or the Ontario Energy Board. 
 

 
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
April 18, 2011 
Toronto, Canada         
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Revenues    
Transmission tariff (Note 16) 1,287 1,120 
Other  20 27 
  1,307 1,147 
   
Costs   
Operation, maintenance and administration (Note 16) 426 436 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 273 242 
  699 678 
   
Income before financing charges and provision for  
  payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 608 469 
Financing charges (Notes 4 and 16) 195 176 
   
Income before provision for payments in lieu 
  of corporate income taxes 413 293 
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate 
  income taxes (Notes 5 and 16) 40 5 
Net income and comprehensive income 373 288 
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Assets   
Current assets:   
    Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful  
      accounts - $2 million; 2009- $3 million) (Notes 13 and 16) 135 114 
    Regulatory assets (Note 8) 15 12 
    Materials and supplies  13 12 
    Future income tax assets (Note 5) 16 12 
    Other  2 7 
  181 157 
Fixed assets (Note 6):   
 Fixed assets in service 11,666 10,852 
 Less: accumulated depreciation 4,234 4,012 
  7,432 6,840 
 Construction in progress 1,111 1,014 
 Future use land, components and spares 89 97 
  8,632 7,951 
Other long-term assets:   
    Regulatory assets (Note 8) 660 574 

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization) (Note 7) 119 130 
 Other 2 7 
  781 711 
Total assets 9,594 8,819 
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Liabilities   
Current liabilities:   

Inter-company demand facility (Note 16) 83 82 
Accounts payable and accrued charges (Notes 13 and 16) 241 227 
Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 20 39 
Accrued interest 51 46 
Long-term debt payable within one year (Notes 9, 10 and 16) 324 403 

  719 797 
   
Long-term debt (Notes 9, 10 and 16) 4,201 3,779 
   
Other long-term liabilities:   

Future income tax liabilities (Note 5) 522 415 
Employee future benefits other than pension (Note 12) 416 399 
Environmental liabilities (Note 13) 124 144 
Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 24 12 
Asset retirement obligations (Note 14) 7 - 
Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities 5 7 

  1,098 977 
Total liabilities 6,018 5,553 
   
Contingencies and commitments (Notes 18 and 19)   
   
Excess of assets over liabilities (Notes 2, 11 and 15) 3,576 3,266 
Total liabilities and excess of assets over liabilities 9,594 8,819 
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
 
 
On behalf of the Board:  
 
 
 
 
           
          
 

Laura Formusa Sandy Struthers 
Chair Director 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Operating activities   
Net income 373 288 
Environmental expenditures (7) (2)
Adjustments for non-cash items:   
 Depreciation and amortization (excluding removal costs) 259 232 

Regulatory asset and liability accounts (12) (1)
 Future income taxes (1) 2 
   Asset retirement obligation 4 - 
 616 519 
Changes in non-cash balances related  to operations (Note 17) 14 12 
Net cash from operating activities 630 531 
   
Financing activities   
Allocated long-term debt issued 750 775 
Allocated long-term debt retired (403) (268)
Payments to Hydro One Inc. to finance dividends (63) (138)
Other - 1 
Net cash from financing activities  284 370 
   
Investing activities   
Capital expenditures   

Fixed assets (928) (866)
Intangible assets (8) (52)

 (936) (918)
Other assets 21 7 
Net cash used in investing activities  (915) (911)
   
Net change in inter-company demand facility  (1) (10)
Inter-company demand facility, January 1 (82) (72)
Inter-company demand facility, December 31  (83) (82)
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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1. DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
 
Hydro One Inc. (Hydro One) was incorporated on December 1, 1998, under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) 
and is wholly owned by the Province of Ontario (the Province). The principal businesses of Hydro One are the 
transmission and distribution of electricity to customers within Ontario. These businesses are regulated by the 
Ontario Energy Board (OEB). 
 
Hydro One Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks or the Company) was incorporated on March 4, 1999 under the 
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One. The Company owns and 
operates Hydro One’s regulated transmission and distribution businesses.  The regulated transmission business (the 
Transmission Business) operates a high-voltage electrical transmission network that represents almost all of the 
licensed transmission capacity in Ontario. 
 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies summarized below.  These 
policies are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada (Canadian GAAP) as contained in Part 
V of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accounts (CICA) Handbook - Accounting. The financial statements have been 
prepared for the specific use of the OEB. Consolidated financial statements of Hydro One for the year ended December 
31, 2010 have been prepared and are publicly available. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a carve-out basis to provide the financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows of the Company’s regulated Transmission Business on a basis approved by the OEB. The 
financial statements are considered by management to be a reasonable representation, prepared on a rational, systematic 
and consistent basis, of the financial results of that business. As a result of this basis of accounting, these financial 
statements may not necessarily be identical to the financial position and results of operations that would have resulted 
had the Transmission Business historically operated on a stand-alone basis.   
 
The financial statements have been constructed primarily through specific identification of assets, liabilities (other than 
debt), revenues and expenses that relate to the Transmission Business. The Company’s long-term debt is allocated 
based on the respective borrowing requirements of the Company’s transmission and distribution businesses. A portion 
of the Company’s shared functions and services costs is allocated to the Transmission Business on a fully allocated cost 
basis, consistent with OEB-approved independent studies. Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (PILs) have been 
recorded at effective rates based on income taxes as reported in the Statements of Operations as though the 
Transmission Business was a separate taxpaying entity.  Certain other amounts presented in these financial statements 
represent allocations subject to review and approval by the OEB.  
 
Rate-setting 
 
The rates of the Company’s electricity Transmission Business are subject to regulation by the OEB. 
 
On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect of Hydro One Networks’ 2007 and 2008 transmission 
rate application.  As part of that decision the OEB approved the disposition of export and wheeling fees liability and 
the transmission market-ready regulatory asset, which was factored into rates and refunded to customers over the 
four-year period ending December 31, 2010. 
 
 On May 30, 2008, Hydro One Networks submitted an application to the OEB to adjust Uniform Transmission Rates 
(UTRs) effective January 1, 2009.   
 

7 



HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 
TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
 

To achieve the necessary funding in support of required infrastructure, Hydro One Networks filed a transmission 
rate application for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008.  The application sought OEB approval for revenue 
requirement of approximately $1,233 million and $1,341 million, based on a return on equity of 8.53% and 9.35% 
for 2009 and 2010, respectively.  On May 28, 2009, the OEB issued its decision in respect of this application.  The 
decision, which was effective July 1, 2009, resulted in a reduced revenue requirement of $1,180 million and $1,240 
million in 2009 and 2010, respectively, primarily due to a lower approved return on equity.  The OEB decision 
disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million for 2010, but agreed to reconsider the projects if 
additional evidence was provided.  On September 4, 2009, Hydro One Networks filed the additional evidence on 
two projects amounting to approximately $160 million in capital expenditures.  The OEB approved the supplemental 
evidence for inclusion in Hydro One Networks’ 2010 rates.  This resulted in a revised revenue requirement of 
$1,257 million for 2010, on the basis of an updated return on equity of 8.39% for 2010. 
  
On May 19, 2010 Hydro One Networks submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued 
support of its aging critical infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives 
and initiation of investments in support of the Green Energy Act (GEA).  This application sought the approval of 
revenue requirements of approximately $1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million for 2012.   
 
On December 23, 2010, the OEB issued its decision effective January 1, 2011 which resulted in a revenue 
requirement of $1,346 million for 2011 and a revenue requirement of $1,658 million for 2012.  The change in our 
2012 revenue requirement resulted in a higher revenue requirement than originally submitted due to the OEB 
directing Hydro One to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting for overheads 
capitalized resulting in a $200 million increase in 2012.   
 
The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specific 
period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have applied in an 
unregulated company.  Such change in timing involves the application of rate-regulated accounting, giving rise to 
the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Transmission Business’ regulatory assets represent certain 
amounts receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is 
probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the Transmission Business has recorded regulatory 
liabilities, which represent amounts incurred in different periods than would be the case had the Transmission 
Business been unregulated. The Company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory 
assets and continues to believe that it is probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the 
setting of future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB will 
include a specific regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in 
results of operations in the period that the assessment is made.  The specific regulatory assets and liabilities 
recognized at December 31, 2010 are disclosed in Note 8.    
   
Revenue Recognition 
  
Transmission revenues are collected through OEB-approved rates, which are based on an approved revenue 
requirement that includes a rate of return.  Such revenue is recognized as power is transmitted and delivered to 
customers.  
  
Revenue also includes amounts related to sales of other services and equipment. Such revenue is recognized as 
services are rendered or as equipment is delivered. 
  
Corporate Income and Capital Taxes 
 
Under the Electricity Act, 1998, Hydro One Networks is required to make payments in lieu of corporate taxes to the 
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules for 
computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the 
Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) (Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), prior to 2009) as modified by the Electricity Act, 
1998, and related regulations. 
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Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted amendments to the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 
(CICA) Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes and CICA Handbook Section 1100, Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles.  These amended sections establish new standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of future income tax assets and liabilities of rate-regulated enterprises.   
 
For transactions and events that cause temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for accounting purposes, the Company recognized future income tax assets and liabilities, and 
corresponding regulatory liabilities and assets, as a result of adopting these amended standards on January 1, 2009.  
 
As a result of adopting these amended standards, an adjustment to the retained earnings of Hydro One Networks of 
$15 million was recorded as at January 1, 2009 for the cumulative earnings impact of future income tax assets and 
liabilities as at December 31, 2008 that are excluded from the rate-setting process. The portion of the adjustment that 
pertains to the Transmission Business is $10 million, which is reflected in excess of assets over liabilities. 
 
Current Income Taxes 
 
The provision for current taxes and the assets and liabilities recognized for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amounts receivable from or payable to the OEFC.  
 
Future Income Taxes  
 
Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method and are recognized on temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit. 
 
Future income tax liabilities are generally recognized on all taxable temporary differences and future tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is more likely than not to be realized from taxable profits available against which 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.   
 
Future income taxes are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled 
or the asset is realized, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date. Future income taxes are charged or credited to the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive 
Income. 
 
The carrying amount of future income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that all or part of the future income tax assets have not met the “more likely than not” criterion.  Previously 
unrecognized future income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that 
they have become more likely than not of being recovered from future taxable profits. 
 
The Company has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow 
through the rate-setting process. 
 
Inter-Company Demand Facility 
   
Hydro One maintains pooled bank accounts for its use and for the use of its subsidiaries and, implicitly, by the 
regulated businesses of these subsidiaries. The inter-company demand facility represents the cumulative net effect of 
all deposits and withdrawals made by the Transmission Business to and from the pooled cash accounts. Interest is 
earned on positive inter-company balances based on the average of the bankers’ acceptance rate at the beginning and 
end of the month, less 0.02%. Interest is charged on overdraft inter-company balances based on the same bankers’ 
acceptance rate, plus 0.15%. 
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Materials and Supplies 
  
Materials and supplies represent consumables, spare parts and construction material held for internal construction 
and maintenance of fixed assets. These assets are carried at lower of average cost or net realizable value.  
 
Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises materials, labour, engineering costs, overheads, depreciation on 
service equipment and the OEB-approved allowance for funds used during construction applicable to capital 
construction activities. 
  
Fixed assets in service consist of transmission assets, communication, administration and service assets and 
easements.  Fixed assets also include future use assets such as land, major components and spare parts, and 
capitalized development costs associated with deferred capital projects.  
  
Transmission  
  
Transmission assets include assets used for the transmission of high-voltage electricity, such as transmission lines, 
support structures, foundations, insulators, connecting hardware, grounding systems, and assets used to step up the 
voltage of electricity from generating stations for transmission and to step down voltages for distribution, such as 
transformers, circuit breakers and switches.  
  
Communication, Administration and Service  
  
Communication, administration and service assets include telecommunications equipment, towers, buildings 
associated with communication assets, administrative buildings, major computer systems, personal computers, 
transport and work equipment, tools, vehicles and minor fixed assets.  
   
Easements  
  
Easements include statutory rights of use to transmission corridors and abutting lands granted under the Reliable 
Energy and Consumer Protection Act, 2002, as well as other amounts related to access rights. 
  
Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets represent computer applications software and other assets.  These assets are capitalized at cost, 
which comprises materials, purchased software, labour and consulting, engineering, overheads and the OEB-
approved allowance for funds used during construction applicable to capital construction activities within regulated 
businesses. 
 
Construction and Development in Progress 
  
Overhead costs, including corporate functions and services costs, are capitalized on a fully-allocated basis, 
consistent with an OEB-approved methodology. Financing costs are capitalized on rate-regulated fixed assets under 
construction and intangible assets under development, based on the OEB’s approved allowance for funds used 
during construction (2010 – 4.34%; 2009 – 5.89%). 
  
Depreciation and Amortization 
  
The capital costs of fixed assets and intangible assets, primarily consisting of applications software, are depreciated 
or amortized on a straight-line basis, except for transport and work equipment, which is depreciated on a declining 
balance basis.  
  
The Company periodically initiates an external review of its fixed asset and intangible asset depreciation and 
amortization rates, as required by the OEB. The last review resulted in changes to rates effective January 1, 2007. A 
summary of depreciation rates for the various classes of assets is included below:  
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 Depreciation rates (%) 
 Range Average 
Transmission 1% - 2% 2% 
Communication, Administration and Service 1% -15% 5% 
Easements 1% 1% 

 
The costs of intangible assets are primarily included within the communication, administration and service 
classification above and these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis.  The amortization rate for computer 
applications software and other intangible assets is approximately 11%.  Depreciation rates for easements are based on 
their contract life. The majority of easements are held in perpetuity and are not depreciated. 
 
In accordance with group depreciation practices, the original cost of fixed assets or intangible assets that are normally 
retired is charged to accumulated depreciation or amortization, with no gain or loss reflected in current results of 
operations. Gains and losses on sales of fixed assets and losses on premature retirements are charged to results of 
operations as adjustments to depreciation expense. Depreciation expense also includes the costs incurred to remove 
fixed assets.  
 
The estimated service lives of fixed or intangible assets are subject to periodic review. Any changes arising out of such 
a review are implemented on a remaining service life basis consistent with their inclusion in electricity rates.  
 
Discounts and Premiums on Debt 
 
Discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the related debt using the effective interest rate method.   
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 
Comprehensive income is comprised of the Transmission Business’ net income and other comprehensive income 
(OCI). OCI includes the amortization of net unamortized hedging losses on the Company’s proportionate share of 
Hydro One’s cash flow hedges, and the change in fair value on the Company’s proportionate share of existing cash 
flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.  Unamortized hedging losses on discontinued cash flow hedges 
are amortized to financing charges using the effective interest method over the term of the allocated hedged debt.  
 
Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 
All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans 
and receivables, held-for-trading, other financial liabilities or available-for-sale. All financial instruments, including 
derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments and other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost. Held-for-trading financial 
instruments are measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in financing charges in the period which 
they arise. Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value with revaluation gains and losses 
included in OCI until the instrument is derecognized or impaired. The Transmission Business has classified its 
financial instruments as follows: 
  
 Accounts receivable Loans and receivables 
 Fixed-to-floating interest rate swap Not classified 
 Inter-company demand facility Other financial liabilities 
 Accounts payable Other financial liabilities 
 Long-term debt (unless otherwise specified) Other financial liabilities 
 $150 million of a $250 million note due March 3, 2011     Not classified  
 $150 million of a $500 million note due November 19, 2014     Not classified 
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In March 2008 and January 2010, Hydro One issued notes for long-term financing under its Medium-Term Note 
(MTN) Program in the amounts of $250 million and $500 million, respectively.  The $250 million issue and $250 
million of the $500 million issue were pushed down to Hydro One Networks through the issuance of inter-company 
debt with $150 million of each issue allocated to the Transmission Business.  These amounts were designated as part 
of a hedging relationship. As at December 31, 2010, the derivative instruments include $300 million fixed-to-
floating interest rate swap agreements to convert the $300 million of debt into three-month variable-rate debt.  
 
All financial instrument transactions are recorded at trade date.  
 
Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting 
 
All derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet unless 
exempted from derivative treatment as a normal purchase and sale or when it is deemed that the economic 
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks 
of the host contract.  All changes in fair value are recorded in financing charges unless cash flow hedge accounting 
is used, in which case changes in fair value are recorded in OCI to the extent that the hedge is effective. The gain or 
loss related to the ineffective portion, if any, is recorded in financing charges. 
 
The Company does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities. 
 
The Company periodically develops hedging strategies for execution taking into account risk management 
objectives. At the inception of a hedging relationship, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship 
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, its risk management objective for establishing the hedging 
relationship, the nature of the specific risk exposure being hedged, and the method for assessing effectiveness of the 
hedging relationship. The Company also assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, 
whether the hedging items that are used are effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged 
items.  
 
Transaction Costs  
 
Transaction costs related to Hydro One Networks’ proportionate share of the relevant Hydro One transaction, for 
financial assets and liabilities that are other than held-for-trading, are added to the carrying value of the asset or 
liability and amortized over the expected life of the instrument using the effective interest method.  
 
Financial Instrument Disclosures  
 
The fair market value of the Company’s long-term debt is determined using the fair value hierarchy levels disclosed 
in Note 10. 
 
Employee Future Benefits 
 
Employee future benefits provided by Hydro One and its subsidiaries include pension, group life insurance, health care, 
and long-term disability. 
 
In accordance with the OEB’s rate orders, pension costs are recorded when employer contributions are paid to the 
pension fund in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario).  Actuarial valuations are conducted at least every 
three years.  Pension costs are also calculated on an accrual basis.  Pension costs are actuarially determined using the 
projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimate of the 
effect of future events, including future compensation increases, on the actuarial present value of accrued pension 
benefits. Pension plan assets, consisting primarily of listed equity securities as well as corporate and government debt 
securities, are valued using fair values. Past service costs from plan amendments and all actuarial gains or losses are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the employees covered. 
 
Employee future benefits other than pension are recorded on an accrual basis. Costs are determined by independent 
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actuaries using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s 
best estimates. Past service costs from plan amendments and actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the expected average remaining service life of the employees covered.  
 
Employee future benefit costs are attributed to labour and charged to operations or capitalized as part of the cost of 
fixed assets. 
 
Environmental Costs 
 
The Transmission Business records a liability for estimated future expenditures associated with the assessment and 
remediation of contaminated lands and for the phase-out and destruction of polychlorinated biphenyl (PCBs) 
contaminated mineral oil removed from electrical equipment, based on the present value of these estimated future 
expenditures. As the Company anticipates that the related expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future rates, a 
regulatory asset has been recorded to reflect the future recovery of these costs from customers.  The Transmission 
Business reviews its estimates of future environmental expenditures on an ongoing basis. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations 
 
When required by force of law or regulation, the Transmission Business records an asset retirement obligation based on 
the present value of the estimated fair value expenditures to remove certain assets and mitigate related sites. Where the 
Transmission Business anticipates that the related expenditures will be recoverable in future rates, a corresponding 
amount is capitalized as a cost of the related fixed assets. Some of the Transmission Business’ assets, particularly those 
located on unowned easements and rights-of-way, may have asset retirement obligations, conditional or otherwise. The 
majority of the Company’s easements and rights-of-way are either of perpetual duration or are automatically renewed 
annually. Land rights with finite terms are generally subject to extension or renewal. As the Transmission Business 
expects to use the majority of its facilities in perpetuity, no asset retirement obligation currently exists.  If, at some 
future date, a particular facility is shown not to meet the perpetuity criterion, it will be reviewed to determine whether a 
measurable asset retirement obligation exists.  In such a case, an asset retirement obligation would be recorded at that 
time. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or the 
Province. 
 
Emerging Accounting Changes  
 
IFRS 
 
On February 13, 2008 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable 
enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for interim 
and annual reporting purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.  On October 14, 2009, the 
Public Sector Accounting Board released a decision summary confirming that government organizations following 
commercial practices adhere to standards for publicly accountable entities after January 1, 2011.  On September 10, 
2010, the AcSB decided to permit rate-regulated entities to defer their IFRS implementation date to January 1, 2012. 
As such, the Company, as a subsidiary of Hydro One, will apply IFRS to its financial statements ending December 
31, 2012 with restatement of the amounts recorded on the opening IFRS balance sheet as at January 1, 2011, for 
comparative purposes.  The Company continues to assess the impact of conversion to IFRS on its results of 
operations.   
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3. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
 
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Depreciation of fixed assets in service 231 212 
Amortization of intangible assets 21 17 
Fixed asset removal costs 14 10 
Amortization of regulatory and other assets 7 3 
 273 242 
 
 
4. FINANCING CHARGES 
 
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Interest on long-term debt payable 242 223 
Interest on inter-company demand facility (1) 1 
Less: Interest capitalized on construction and development in progress (44) (46)

Other (2) (2)
 195 176 
 
 
5. PROVISION FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF CORPORATE INCOME TAXES  
 
The provision for PILs differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined Canadian Federal 
and Ontario statutory income tax rate. The reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rates is provided as 
follows: 
 

 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Income before provision for PILs 413 293 
Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate 31.00% 33.00% 
Provision for PILs at statutory rate 128 97 
   
Increase (decrease) resulting from:   
   
Net temporary differences included in amounts charged to customers :   
   
  Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization (57) (61) 
  Interest capitalized for accounting purposes but deducted for tax purposes (14) (15) 
  Overheads capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (8) (8) 
  Pension contributions in excess of pension expense (7) (6) 

    Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 1 1 
  Environmental expenditures (2) - 
  Other (2) (4) 
Net temporary differences  (89) (93) 
Net permanent differences 1 1 
Total income tax provision for PILs 40 5 
   
Current income tax provision for PILs 41 3 
Future income tax provision for PILs (1) 2 
Total income tax provision for PILs 40 5 
   
Effective income tax rate 9.69% 1.71% 
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The provision for payments in lieu of current income taxes of $41 million represents the amount payable to the 
OEFC with respect to current year earnings.  The outstanding balance due to the OEFC at December 31, 2010 is 
approximately $6 million (2009 - $9 million recoverable).  
 
The payments in lieu of future income taxes recoverable of $1 million reflects the decrease in the liability for 
payments in lieu of future income taxes that are not expected to be recovered from the Transmission Business’s 
customers through future rates.   
 
Future Income Tax Assets and Liabilities 
 
Payments in lieu of future income tax assets and liabilities arise from differences between the carrying amounts and 
tax bases of the Transmission Business’ assets and liabilities.  The tax effects of these differences are as follows: 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Future Income Tax Assets   

  Eligible Capital Expenditure 37 39 
  Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 147 139 
  Environmental expenditures 34 38 
Other 4 1 
Total future income tax assets 222 217 
Less: current portion 16 12 
 206 205 

 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Future Income Tax Liabilities   

  Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization 698 590 
  Amounts paid but not recognized for accounting purposes  29 30 
 Other 1 - 
Total future income tax liabilities 728 620 
Less: current portion - - 
 728 620 

 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Long-term future income tax assets 206 205 
Long-term future income tax liabilities (728) (620)
Net long-term future income tax liability (522) (415)
   

The increase in the liability for payments in lieu of future income taxes that is expected to be recovered from 
customers through future rates has resulted in an increase in regulatory assets. 
 
 
6. FIXED ASSETS 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Fixed Assets 
Accumulated
Depreciation

Construction 
in Progress Total 

2010  
Transmission  10,186 3,623 1,070 7,633 
Communication, administration and service 1,086 529 41 598 
Easements 483 82 - 401 

 11,755 4,234 1,111 8,632 
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December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 
 

Fixed Assets 
Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Construction 
in Progress 

 
 Total 

2009     
Transmission  9,467 3,452 954 6,969 
Communication, administration and service 1,004 481 60 583 
Easements 478 79 - 399 
 10,949 4,012 1,014 7,951 
 
Financing costs are capitalized on fixed assets under construction, including allowance for funds used during 
construction on regulated assets, and were $44 million in 2010 (2009 - $44 million).  
 
 
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Intangible 

Assets 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

Development in 
Progress 

 
 Total 

2010     
Computer applications software 190 77 4 117 
Other assets 4 2 - 2 
 194 79 4 119 
     
2009     
Computer applications software 182 56 2 128 
Other assets 4 2 - 2 
 186 58 2 130 
 
Financing costs are capitalized on intangible assets under development, including allowance for funds used during 
construction on regulated assets, and were $nil in 2010 (2009 - $2 million).  
 
 
8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate-setting process. The Transmission Business has recorded the 
following regulatory assets and liabilities: 
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Regulatory assets:  
Regulatory future income tax asset 522 425 
Environmental  134 151 
Pension cost variance account 11 3 
Long-term project development cost account 7 2 
Other 1 5 
Total regulatory assets 675 586 

Less:  current portion 15 12 
 660 574
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December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
 

Regulatory liabilities:    
External revenue variance account 29 15 
Regulatory future income tax liability 8 12 
Export and wheeling fees 3 12 
Other 4 12 
Total regulatory liabilities 44 51 
Less:  current portion 20 39 
 24 12 
 
Regulatory Assets 
 
Regulatory Future Income Tax Asset and Liability 
 
Future income taxes are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.  The Company 
has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rate-
making process.   In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the Company’s provision for PILs would have been 
recognized using the liability method and there would be no regulatory accounts established for taxes to be 
recovered through future rates.  As a result, the Transmission Business’ provision for PILs would have been higher 
by approximately $76 million (2009 - $28 million) including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax 
rates. 
 
Environmental  
 
The Transmission Business records a liability for the estimated future expenditures required to remediate past 
environmental contamination (See Note 13). Because such expenditures are expected to be recoverable in future 
rates, the Transmission Business has recorded an equivalent amount as a regulatory asset.  In 2010, this regulatory 
asset decreased by $17 million (2009 – increased by $15 million) to reflect related changes in the Company’s PCB 
liability and decreased by $1 million (2009 – increased by $14 million) for a change in the land assessment and 
remediation (LAR) liability.  The environmental regulatory asset is amortized to results of operations based on the 
pattern of actual expenditures incurred.  The OEB has the discretion to examine and assess the prudence and the 
timing of recovery of all of the Transmission Business’s actual environmental expenditures. In the absence of rate-
regulated accounting, operation, maintenance and administration expenses would have been lower by $18 million 
(2009 - higher by $29 million).  In addition, amortization expense in 2010 would have been lower by $7 million 
(2009 - $2 million) and financing charges would have been higher by $8 million (2009 - $6 million).   
 
Pension cost variance account 
 
The pension cost variance account was established to track the difference between the actual pension costs incurred 
by the Transmission Business and estimated pension costs approved by the OEB. The balance in this account 
reflects the excess of pension costs paid compared to OEB-approved amounts. On May 28, 2009, the OEB 
announced its decision regarding the Company’s rate application in respect of the Transmission Business for 2009 
and 2010 rates. As part of this decision, the OEB approved recovery of the proposed balance in this account plus 
accrued interest for recovery over 18 months ending December 31, 2010. In the December 23, 2010 decision on 
2011 and 2012 transmission rates, the OEB approved the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, to 
be recovered over a one-year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. In the absence of rate-regulated 
accounting, revenue would have been lower by $8 million in 2010 (2009 - $3 million). 
 
Long-term project development cost account 
 
On May 28, 2009 the OEB approved the creation of a deferral account to record Hydro One’s costs of preliminary 
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work to advance certain transmission projects identified in its 2009 and 2010 transmission rate application. On 
March 25, 2010, the OEB issued a decision amending the scope of the account to include the 20 major transmission 
projects identified in the September 21, 2009 request from the Government of Ontario. In its December 23, 2010 
decision, the OEB approved the recovery of the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-
year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. The Company anticipates that it will seek recovery for the 
remaining balance in its next transmission rate application. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, operation, 
maintenance and administration expenses would have been higher by $5 million (2009 - $2 million). 
 
Regulatory Liabilities 
 
External Revenue Variance Account  
 
In its May 28, 2009 decision, the OEB approved forecasted amounts related to export service revenue, external 
revenue from secondary land use and external revenue from station maintenance and engineering and construction 
work.  These revenue sources are an offset to the Company’s revenue requirement, and as such, the OEB requested 
the establishment of new variance accounts to capture any difference between the approved forecast and actual 
revenues from these sources of external revenue.  The balance reflects the excess of external revenue compared to 
the OEB-approved forecast.  The OEB’s December 23, 2010 decision approved the disposition of the December 31, 
2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011.   
 
Export and Wheeling Fees  
 
Consistent with the Independent Electricity System Operator’s (IESO) IESO’s Market Rules, an export and 
wheeling fee is collected by the IESO and remitted to the Company at the rate of $1 per MWh on electricity 
exported outside of Ontario. The amounts collected in respect of these export and wheeling fees, plus interest, were 
taken into consideration in the revenue requirement of Hydro One Networks as part of the Company’s transmission 
rate application filed with the OEB in September, 2006.  On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect 
of the Company’s transmission rate application and approved final amounts and disposition treatments for the export 
and wheeling fees.  The export and wheeling fees were factored into rates over a four-year period ending December 
31, 2010.   
 
 
9. DEBT 
 
Debt represents the Transmission Business’ share of various notes payable by Hydro One Networks to Hydro One.   
  
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Long-term debt 4,528 4,181 
Add: Unrealized hedged loss1 3 7 
Less: Long-term debt payable within one year (324) (403)
          Net unamortized premiums 13 12 
          Unamortized debt issuance costs (19) (18)
 4,201 3,779 
 

1  The unrealized hedged loss relates to the $150 million note and to $150 million of the $325 million note, which are accounted for as fair value 
hedges.  The unrealized hedged loss is offset by a $3 million (2009 - $7 million) unrealized gain on the related fixed-to-floating interest rate 
swap agreements (see Note 2 – Financial Instruments). 

 
The long-term debt is unsecured and denominated in Canadian dollars. Such debt is summarized by the number of 
years to maturity in Note 10. 
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10. CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The carrying value of financial instruments as at December 31, 2010 is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 

 
 
 

Derivatives Used 
for Hedging 

Other Financial 
Instruments Used 

for Hedging

 
 
 

Loans and 
Receivables 

 
 
 

Other Financial 
Liabilities 

 
Financial Assets 

    

Accounts receivable - - 135 - 
Other assets 3 - - - 
     
Financial Liabilities     
Inter-company demand facility - - - 83 
Accounts payable and  
    accrued charges1

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
225 

Long-term debt - 303 - 4,222 
 

1  Accounts payable and accrued charges do not include income taxes payable or dividends payable. 
 
The carrying amounts of all financial instruments, except long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of 
derivative financial instruments reflects the estimated amount that the Transmission Business, if required to settle an 
outstanding contract, would have been required to pay or would be entitled to receive at year end. The fair value of 
long-term debt, provided in the table below, is based on unadjusted year-end market prices for the same or similar 
debt of the same remaining maturities.  The fair value measurement of long-term debt is categorized as level 1 as the 
inputs used reflect quoted prices in an active market.  
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  2010  2009 

 
Carrying 

Value
Fair 

Value
Carrying 

Value 
Fair 

Value
Long-term debt1 4,528 4,978 4,181 4,421

 

1  The carrying value of long-term debt represents the par value of the notes and debentures, other than the $150 million of the $250 million note and 
$150 million of the $500 million note, both of which are designated as part of a hedging relationship. (see Note 2 – Financial Instruments). 

 
Exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Company’s business.  
 
Market Risk  
 
Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates 
and interest rates. The Company does not have commodity risk. The Company does have foreign exchange risk as it 
enters into agreements to purchase materials and equipment associated with the Company’s capital programs and 
projects that are settled in foreign currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not material, although Hydro One could 
in the future decide to issue foreign currency denominated debt which will be hedged back to Canadian dollars 
consistent with Hydro One’s risk management policy. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as 
the regulated rate of return for the Company’s Transmission Business is derived using a formulaic approach which is 
based on the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond yields and the spread in 30 year “A” rated 
Canadian utility bonds over the 30 year benchmark Government of Canada bond yield. The Company estimates that 
a 1% decrease in the forecast long-term Government of Canada bond yield or the “A” rated Canadian utility spread 
used in determining the Company’s rate of return would reduce its Transmission Business’ results of operations by 
approximately $16 million.   
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Credit Risk  
 
Financial assets create credit risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. As 
at December 31, 2010, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial 
assets.    
 
In the year, the Transmission Business’ provision for bad debts remained low at $2 million (2009 - $3 million). 
Minor adjustments and write-offs were determined on the basis of a review of overdue accounts, taking into 
consideration historical experience. As at December 31, 2010, approximately 1.1% of the Transmission Business’ 
accounts receivable was aged more than 60 days.  
 
Hydro One manages its counter-party credit risk through various techniques including, entering into transactions 
with highly rated counter-parties, limiting total exposure levels with individual counterparties consistent with the 
Hydro One’s Board-approved Credit Risk Policy, entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and 
the contractual right of offset, and monitoring the financial condition of counterparties.  The Company’s credit risk 
for accounts receivable is limited to the carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.  
 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk.  The Company may enter into 
derivative agreements such as forward interest rate agreements, to hedge against the effect of future interest rate 
movements on long-term fixed rate borrowing requirements.  No such agreements were outstanding as at December 
31, 2010. 
 
Liquidity Risk  
 
Liquidity risk refers to the Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due. Short-term liquidity 
is provided through the inter-company demand facility with Hydro One and funds from operations. The short-term 
liquidity available to the Company should be sufficient to fund normal operating requirements.  
As at December 31, 2010, accounts payable and accrued charges in the amount of $241 million are expected to be 
settled in cash at their carrying amounts within the next year.  Long-term debt maturing over the next twelve months 
is $324 million. Interest payments over the next twelve months on the Transmission Business’ outstanding debt 
amount to $238 million.  
 
As at December 31, 2010, the Transmission Business’ share of the long-term debt of Hydro One Networks to Hydro 
One is $4,528 million and the required interest payments are $3,948 million. Principal outstanding, interest 
payments and related weighted average interest rates are summarized by the number of years to maturity in the 
following table:  
 
Years to  
Maturity 

Principal Outstanding on
Notes and Debentures

(Canadian dollars in millions)
Interest Payments 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rate 

(Percent) 
324 238 5.3 

2 years 276 223 5.8 
3 years 370 207 5.0 
4 years 325 189 3.2 
5 years 150 179 3.0 
 1,445 1,036 4.6 
6 – 10 years 855 747 4.9 
Over 10 years 2,228 2,165 6.0 
 4,528 3,948 5.3 
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11. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Transmission Business’ objective is to manage its capital structure consistent with the deemed capital structure 
for rate-setting purposes as prescribed by the OEB in its August 16, 2007 decision on transmission rates.  This 
deemed capital structure is 60% debt and 40% common equity.       
 
The Transmission Business considers its capital structure to consist of excess assets over liabilities, long-term debt, 
and the intercompany demand facility. The Transmission Business’s capital structure as at December 31, 2010 and 
December 31, 2009 was as follows: 
 
(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Long-term debt payable within one year 324  403  
Add: Inter-company demand facility 83  82 
 407  485  
   
Long-term debt 4,201  3,779  
   
Excess of assets over liabilities 3,576  3,266  
Total capital 8,184  7,530  
 
 
12. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
Pension 
 
Hydro One has a contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular employees of Hydro One and its 
subsidiaries, except Hydro One Brampton Inc.  The Hydro One Pension Plan does not segregate assets in a separate 
account for individual subsidiaries, nor is the cost of the benefit plans allocated to, or funded separately by, entities 
within the consolidated group. Accordingly, for purposes of these financial statements, the pension plan is accounted 
for as a defined contribution plan and no deferred pension asset or liability is recorded. 
 
Hydro One’s pension plan provides benefits based on highest three-year average pensionable earnings. For new 
management employees who commenced employment on or after January 1, 2004, and for new employees 
represented by the Society of Energy Professionals hired after November 17, 2005, benefits are based on highest 
five-year average pensionable earnings. After retirement, pensions are indexed to inflation. The measurement date 
used to determine plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation is December 31. Based on the actuarial valuation 
filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario in September 2010, effective for December 31, 2009, 
Hydro One contributed $193 million to its pension plan in respect of 2010 (2009 - $112 million), $145 million of 
which is required to satisfy minimum funding requirements. Hydro One made an additional payment of $48 million 
in December 2010. Contributions are payable one month in arrears. All of the contributions are expected to be in the 
form of cash. Contributions after 2012 will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012 and will 
depend on future investment returns, and changes in benefits or actuarial assumptions. 
 
For Hydro One, the actuarial present value at December 31, 2010 of the accrued pension benefits, based on a 
projection of the valuation at December 31, 2010, was estimated to be $4,996 million (2009 - $4,566 million). 
Pension plan assets available for these benefits were $4,699 million (2009 - $4,336 million). 
 
Employee Future Benefits other than Pension 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2010, $22 million of employee future benefits other than pension costs was 
charged to the results of operations of the Transmission Business (2009 - $20 million), and $15 million was 
capitalized as part of the cost of fixed assets (2009 - $12 million). Benefits paid were $18 million (2009 - $19 
million). The liability associated with employee future benefits other than pension for the Transmission Business at 
December 31, 2010 was $437 million (2009 - $418 million), including the current portion. 
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A detailed description of employee future benefits is provided in Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of Hydro One for the year ended December 31, 2010. 
 
 
13. ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES 
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

 Polychlorinated 
 Biphenyls 

 (PCB) 

 Land Assessment 
 and Remediation 
 (LAR)  Total 

2010   
Environmental liabilities, January 1  131 20 151 
Interest accretion 7 1 8 
Expenditures (5) (2) (7)
Revaluation adjustment (17) (1) (18)
Environmental liabilities, December 31 116 18 134 
Less: Current portion  9 1 10 
 107 17 124 
    
 
2009    
Environmental liabilities, January 1  111 7 118 
Interest accretion 6  - 6 
Expenditures (1) (1) (2) 
Revaluation adjustment 15 14 29 
Environmental liabilities, December 31 131 20 151 
Less: Current portion  6 1 7 
 125 19 144 
 
Estimated future environmental expenditures for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010 and in total 
thereafter are as follows: 2011 - $10 million; 2012 - $10 million; 2013 - $20 million; 2014 - $18 million; 2015 - $14 
million and thereafter - $87 million. Of the total estimated future expenditures, $139 million relate to PCB (2009 - 
$162 million) and $20 million to LAR (2009 - $22 million).  
 
Consistent with the Company’s accounting policy for environmental costs, the Transmission Business records a 
liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and destruction of PCB-contaminated 
insulating oils and related electrical equipment and for the assessment and remediation of chemically-contaminated 
lands. The Transmission Business’ recorded liability is based on management’s best estimate of the present value of 
the future expenditures expected to be required to comply with existing regulations.  
 
There are uncertainties in estimating future environmental costs due to potential external events such as changes in 
legislation or regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Transmission 
Business’ environmental liabilities represent management’s best estimates of the present value cost required to meet 
existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers or volumes of contaminated 
assets, cost estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual cash flows may 
differ significantly from the Transmission Business’ current assumptions. In addition, for the PCB program, the 
availability of critical resources such as skilled labour and replacement assets and the ability to take maintenance 
outages in critical facilities may influence the timing of expenditures. Estimated environmental liabilities are 
reviewed annually or more frequently if significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate 
changes are accounted for prospectively. 
In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liabilities, the Company estimates the current cost of 
completing required work and makes assumptions as to when the future expenditures will actually be incurred, in 
order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used 
to express these current cost estimates as estimated future expenditures. Future environmental expenditures have 
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been discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when 
increases in the obligations were first recorded.  
 
PCBs 
 
On September 17, 2008, Environment Canada published its final regulations governing the management, storage and 
disposal of PCBs. These regulations were enacted under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999. The 
regulations impose timelines for disposal of PCBs based on criteria including type of equipment, in-use status and 
PCB-contamination thresholds. All PCBs in concentrations of 500 parts per million (ppm) or more, except for 
specified equipment, had to be disposed of by the end of 2009. However, in 2009, the Company sought and received 
an extension until 2014 for the removal of PCBs from certain station equipment that could potentially be 
contaminated in excess of this threshold.  Under the regulations, PCBs in equipment in concentrations greater than 
50 ppm and less than 500 ppm, or greater than 50 ppm for light ballasts must be disposed of by the end of 2025.  
 
Management judges that the Company currently has very few PCB-contaminated assets in excess of 500 ppm. 
Priority will be given to targeting inspection and testing work toward identifying and removing PCBs in assets that 
must be compliant by 2014.  Assets to be disposed of by 2025 primarily consist of light ballasts. Contaminated 
transmission station equipment will generally be replaced or will be decontaminated by removing PCB-contaminated 
insulating oil and retrofilling with replacement oil that is less than 2 ppm. 
 
 
14. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
Consistent with the Company’s accounting policy for asset retirement obligations, Hydro One Networks records a 
liability for the present value of the estimated future expenditures associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets that the Company is legally required to remove. A corresponding amount is recorded as an asset 
retirement cost that is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related fixed asset.  
 
There are uncertainties in estimating future expenditures due to potential external events such as changing 
legislation or regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company’s 
asset retirement obligations represent management’s best estimates of the costs required to meet existing legislation 
or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cost estimates to 
perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual cash flows may differ significantly from the 
Company’s current assumptions. Asset retirement obligations are reviewed annually or more frequently if 
significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively.  
In determining the amounts to be recorded as asset retirement obligations, the Company estimates the current fair 
value for completing required removal and remediation work and makes assumptions as to when the future 
expenditures will actually be incurred, in order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation 
assumption of approximately 2% has been used to express these current cost estimates as estimated future 
expenditures. Future expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging from approximately 3% to 5%, 
depending on the appropriate rate for the period when expenditures are expected to be incurred.  
 
The Company has recorded a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and disposal 
of asbestos-containing materials installed in some of its facilities. The Company’s liability is based on 
management’s best estimate of the present value of the estimated future expenditures to comply with existing 
regulations. During the year, the Company completed a study with the aid of an expert external consultant to 
estimate the future expenditures required to remove asbestos prior to facility demolition.  The Transmission 
Business’ share of this obligation as at December 31, 2010 is approximately $3 million.  The liability is based on the 
net present value of the Company’s best estimate of the Transmission Business’ share of future expenditures of $9 
million to complete its asbestos removal activities.    
 
The Transmission Business has also recorded a $4 million asset retirement obligation related to the 
decommissioning and removal of its switching station located at Ontario Power Generation’s (OPG’s) Abitibi 
Canyon Generating Station. 
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15. HYDRO ONE NETWORKS’ SHARE CAPITAL 
 
Hydro One Networks is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred shares and common shares.   
 
 
16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Province and Successor Corporations of Ontario Hydro 
   
The Province, OEFC, IESO, Ontario Power Authority (OPA) and OPG are related parties of the Company and its 
Transmission Business. In addition, the OEB is related to the Company by virtue of its status as a Provincial Crown 
Corporation. Transactions between these parties and the Transmission Business were as follows:  
  
The Company received revenue for transmission services from the IESO, based upon uniform transmission rates 
approved by the OEB.  Transmission revenue for 2010 includes $1,277 million (2009 - $1,121 million) related to 
these services. 
  
The Company has service level agreements with Ontario Hydro’s successor corporations, primarily OPG. These 
services include field and engineering, logistics, corporate, telecommunications and information technology 
services. Revenues related to the provision of construction and equipment maintenance services to the other 
successor corporations were $13 million in 2010 (2009- $12 million). Operation, maintenance and administration 
costs related to the purchase of services from these successor corporations were less than $1 million in 2010 and less 
then $2 million in 2009. 
 
Under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, the OEB is required to recover all of its annual operating costs from gas 
and electricity distributors and electricity transmitters. In 2010, the Transmission Business incurred $3 million (2009 
- $4 million) in OEB fees. 
 
The payments in lieu of corporate income taxes were paid or payable by the Company to the OEFC (Note 5). 
 
Hydro One and Subsidiaries  
 
The Company provides services to, and receives services from, Hydro One and its other subsidiaries. Amounts due 
to and from Hydro One and its subsidiaries are settled through the inter-company demand facility.  
 
The Company has entered into various agreements with Hydro One and its subsidiaries related to the provision of 
corporate functions and services, supply management, computer support and operational services such as 
environmental, forestry and line services. Revenues include $2 million (2009 - $1 million) related to the provision of 
services to Hydro One and its subsidiaries.  Operation, maintenance and administration costs include $15 million 
(2009 - $14 million) related to the purchase of services from Hydro One and its subsidiaries. 
 
The Company’s debt, including the portion allocated to the Transmission Business, is due to Hydro One.  Financing 
charges include interest expense on this debt in the amount of $242 million (2009 - $223 million). In addition, 
balances payable or receivable under the inter-company demand facility are due to or from Hydro One. Financing 
charges of the Transmission Business include interest earned on this facility in the amount of $1 million (2009 - $1 
million expense). 
 
The amounts due to and from related parties as a result of the transactions referred to above are as follows: 
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 
Accounts receivable 110 108 
Accounts payable and accrued charges (43) (34)
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17. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The changes in non-cash balances related to operations consist of the following:  
 
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Accounts receivable increase (21) 5
Materials and supplies increase (1) (1)
Accounts payable and accrued charges increase (decrease) 8 (14)
Accrued interest increase  5 7
Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities (decrease)  (2) -
Employee future benefits other than pension increase  17 13
Other  8 2

 14 12
 
Supplementary information:   
Interest paid 242 224
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 26 42
 
 
18. CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hydro One. As such, the assets of the Company’s Transmission 
Business are available for the satisfaction of the debts, contingent liabilities and commitments of the Company and 
Hydro One. 
 
 
19. COMMITMENTS 
 
The Company and Hydro One have numerous commitments. These commitments have not been specifically allocated 
to the Transmission Business. However, the net assets of the Transmission Business are available to satisfy the 
commitments of Hydro One. 
 
 
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On March 3, 2011, Hydro One repaid $250 million of maturing long-term debt.  On the same date, Hydro One 
Networks repaid $250 million of maturing mirror debt payable to Hydro One.  The Transmission Business’ share of the 
repayment was $150 million.  The related $150 million inter-company fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreement 
also matured on the same day.   
 
On February 2, 2011, the Power Workers’ Union (PWU) requested that the Ministry of Labour appoint a Conciliation 
Officer to assist Hydro One and the PWU in finalizing a new collective agreement.  Negotiations on the new agreement 
began on January 10, 2011.  On March 23, 2011, a tentative two-party settlement was reached. The Board of Directors 
of Hydro One approved the settlement.  The PWU is seeking ratification of the settlement by its membership. 
 
On January 24, 2011, Hydro One issued notes under the Company’s Medium-Term Note (MTN) Program.  The issue 
consisted of $50 million floating-rate notes with a maturity date of July 24, 2015. On the same date, Hydro One 
Networks issued notes payable to Hydro One in the amount of $50 million with the same maturity date.  The 
Transmission Business’ share of the additional offering was $30 million.   
 
On January 19, 2011, Hydro One issued $250 million in notes under its MTN Program.  The issue was an additional 
offering of 2.95% notes maturing on September 11, 2015, originally issued on September 13, 2010.  The total amount 
outstanding for this issue for Hydro One is now $500 million.  On the same date, Hydro One Networks issued notes 
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payable to Hydro One in the amount of $250 million with the same maturity date.  The Transmission Business’ share 
of the additional offering was $150 million.  The total amount outstanding for this issue is now $500 million of which 
the Transmission Business’ share is $300 million. 
 
On January 19, 2011, Hydro One entered into two $125 million notional principal amount fixed-to-floating interest rate 
swaps to convert $250 million of Hydro One’s 2.95% coupon note maturing September 11, 2015, into three-month 
variable rate debt.   On the same date, Hydro One Networks entered into two $125 million notional principal amount 
fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to convert $250 million of its note payable maturing September 11, 2015, into 
three-month variable rate debt.   The Transmission Business’ share of the swaps is $150 million. 
 
On January 17, 2011, the PWU made an appeal to the Divisional Court of the Supreme Court of Canada under the 
Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 in regard to the OEB’s December 23, 2010 decision approving Hydro One Networks’ 
transmission rates for 2011 and 2012.  The PWU submitted the appeal on the grounds that the decision failed to 
identify operations, maintenance and administration costs that the OEB considers imprudent and were therefore omitted 
in the calculation of the approved revenue requirement.  The PWU is requesting that the OEB’s determination 
regarding the revenue requirement and related rates be set aside and that the matter be remitted to a differently 
constituted panel of the OEB for a new hearing with respect to these issues.  The appeal is not anticipated to impact 
upon the collection of the new 2011 transmission rates during the proceeding.  The outcome of this appeal is not 
determinable at this time. 
 
 
21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 
The comparative Financial Statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to conform to the 
presentation of the December 31, 2010 Financial Statements. 
 
The Company has changed the presentation of tax balances associated with certain temporary differences related to 
intangible assets and other regulatory account balances, to reflect how these balances will ultimately be settled. As a 
result, the Company reclassified the tax balances associated with these temporary differences, such that the amount 
of future income tax liabilities and the related net regulatory asset in the interim period balance sheet, and in the 
comparative December 31, 2009 balance sheet, have been reduced by approximately $160 million. The change in 
presentation has no impact on revenue or operating cash flow.  The portion pertaining to the Transmission Business 
is approximately $130 million. 
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Appendix 5 

AN Agreement 

 



Execution Version

ANISHNAABEKIING NAAGNIGEWIN AGREEMENT IN RESPECT
OF THE BRUCE-TO-MILTON TRANSMISSION LINE LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP

BETWEEN:

Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation, a band within the meaning of the Indian Act
(Canada) represented by the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation Band Council

and

Chippewas of Nawash First Nation, a band within the meaning of the Indian Act
(Canada) represented by the Chippewas of Nawash First Nation Band Council

(which parties are collectively referred to as the Saugeen Ojibway Nation (the "SON"))

and

Hydro One Networks Inc. ("HONI")

Whereas:
1. The Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and the Chippewas of Nawash First

Nation share traditional territories in southwestern Ontario and have engaged in
various joint initiatives for commercial purposes.

2. HONI is a provincially licensed transmitter, who was granted leave from the OEB
on September 15, 2008 in accordance with Decision 2007-0050 to construct high-
voltage transmission facilities from the Bruce Power Nuclear Generating Facility
in Kincardine, Ontario to HONI's switchyard in Milton, Ontario (the "Line").

3. The Line is scheduled to be in-service by January 1, 2013.
4. SON wishes to participate as an investor in the Line and HONI wishes to enter

into a commercial partnership with the SON in respect of the Line.
5. HONI and the SON are entering into this Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin

Agreement to provide for the continuation of a limited partnership in which both
will invest directly or indirectly (the "Bruce-to-Milton LP"), which partnership
will own the BtoM Project Assets to be transferred to it by HONI and HONI will
continue to operate the Line under a long term Operating Agreement.

6. The Parties intend that the transfer of the BtoM Project Assets from HONI to the
Bruce-to-Milton LP and the execution of the Operating Agreement will occur
following the Approvals Date.
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ARTICLE 1 - Definitions

"Agreement" means this Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin Agreement.

"APA" means the asset purchase agreement in respect of the transfer of the BtoM
Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP set out in Section 3.2(b).

"Approvals" means the licences, orders and other matters listed in Attachment
"A" to this Agreement.

"Approvals Date" means the date that each of the conditions precedent set out in
Section 3.2 has been satisfied (or otherwise waived in writing by the Parties) as
confirmed in writing by the SON and HONI.

"Bruce-to-Milton LP" means a limited partnership within the meaning of the
Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario), to be comprised, as of the Closing, of two
limited partners, SON LPco and HO LPco and one general partner, GPco.

"BtoM LP Promissory Note" has the meaning given to it in Section 3.4(c).

"BtoM Project Assets" means the assets comprising the Line, including the LP
Line Property Rights, but excluding all sub-station facilities and assets relating to
the interconnection of the Line to HONFs remaining transmission system.

"BtoM Project Asset Value" means the net book value of the BtoM Project Assets
which, at the time of this Agreement, is anticipated to be approximately
$600,000,000 by the end of 2012 and which value shall be subject to depreciation
and HONI's final construction and development costs as they are incurred and
subject to such inclusions or exclusions as may be imposed by the OEB in
connection with the transmission rate application filed by the Bruce-to-Milton LP
as contemplated herein, all of which shall be confirmed prior to the Closing.

"Closing" has the meaning given to it in Section 3.2.

"Effective HONI Equity Amount" means the amount calculated by multiplying
the BtoM Project Asset Value by 40% and multiplying such amount by the HONI
Equity Ratio.

"Electricity Act" means the Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario).

"GPco" means an OBCA corporation created and owned directly or indirectly by
HONI to function as the general partner of the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

"GP Unit" means a general partnership unit in the Bruce-to-Milton LP.
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"HO LPco" means the OBCA corporation to be created and owned directly or
indirectly by HONI to hold a limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton
LP.

"HO LPco Promissory Note" has the meaning given to it in Section 3.4(b).

"HO LPco Equity Ratio" means the percentage equal to 99.9% minus the SON
Equity Ratio.

"HONI Equity Ratio" means the percentage equal to 100% minus the SON Equity
Ratio.

"HONI Line Real Property" means all interests in real property or licenses over
real property interests in respect of the Line owned or controlled by HONI.

"Initial LPA" means the limited partnership agreement in respect of the Bruce-to-
Milton LP among GPco as general partner and HO LPco as the sole limited
partner and which shall be replaced with the LPA as contemplated in this
Agreement.

"Line" has the meaning given to it in the recitals of this Agreement.

"LPA" means the amended and restated limited partnership agreement in respect
of the Bruce-to-Milton LP as may be amended from time to time and which shall
be consistent with the terms and conditions set out in Attachment "B" to this
Agreement.

"LP Line Property Rights" means the portion of the HONI Line Real Property to
be transferred or licensed to the Bruce-to-Milton LP in accordance with this
Agreement which are required to operate and maintain the BtoM Project Assets.

"LP Promissory Note" has the meaning given to it in Section 3.4(a).

"LP Units" means the limited partnership units representing the limited
partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

"OBCA" means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

"OEB" means the Ontario Energy Board.

"OEB Act" means the Ontario Energy Board Act (Ontario).

"Operating Agreement" means the agreement contemplated in Section 3.1(d).

"Party" means either of HONI or the SON.
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"Parties" means both HONI and the SON.
"Section" means any section of this Agreement.

"SON Equity Contribution Amount" means the amount to be contributed by SON
LPco as a capital contribution to the Bruce-to-Milton LP on Closing, which shall
be: (i) no less than 5% of the amount which is equal to 40% of the BtoM Project
Asset Value and (ii) no greater than 30% of the amount which is equal to 40% of
the BtoM Project Asset Value.

"SON Equity Ratio" means the percentage determined by dividing the SON
Equity Contribution Amount by the amount which is equal to 40% of the BtoM
Project Asset Value (each as finally determined prior to Closing).

"SON LPco" means an OBCA corporation created and owned directly or
indirectly by the SON to hold a limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton
LP.

"Target Date" means December 31, 2013 or such later date as HONI and the SON
may agree in writing pursuant to Section 3.3.

ARTICLE 2- Preliminary Steps
2.1

The SON will incorporate and organize SON LPco under the OBCA as a single purpose
holding company that will participate as a limited partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP. The
constating documents of SON LPco shall restrict the business of the corporation to the
holding of the SON's limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP. SON agrees
that it will not permit the issue of any additional securities in SON LPco to any person
other than to the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation or the Chippewas of Nawash First
Nation, or an entity that is 100% legally and beneficially owned by such persons, without
the prior written consent of HONI, and provided such transferee agrees in writing to be
bound by the provisions of this Agreement, the LPA and the documents contemplated
herein that apply to the SON or SON LPco, as applicable.

2.2

HONI will incorporate and organize a new subsidiary as HO LPco which will participate
as a limited partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

2.3

HONI will incorporate and organize a new subsidiary, GPco, to act as the general partner
of the Bruce-to-Milton LP and manage the business and affairs of the Bruce-to-Milton
LP, including without limitation, representing the Bruce-to-Milton LP in respect of
regulatory matters before the OEB or other regulators and operating and maintaining the
BtoM Project Assets under the terms of the Operating Agreement.
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2.4

HONI will create and organize the Bruce-to-Milton LP pursuant to the Limited
Partnerships Act (Ontario) wherein GPco shall be the general partner and, other than the
0.1% limited partnership interest to be held by GPco, HO LPco shall initially be the sole
limited partner. HONI shall cause HO LPco and GPco to enter into the Initial LPA. The
initial partnership capital of the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall be a nominal amount and the
limited partnership interest of HO LPco and GPco shall be 99.9% and 0.1% respectively.
HO LPco shall receive 999 LP Units and GPco shall receive 1 LP Unit in respect of their
respective limited partnership interests (as defined in the LPA).

2.5

The Bruce-to-Milton LP will engage GPco to manage the partnership for compensation
comprised of distributions payable to the GPco on account of its general partner interest
plus reasonable, actual out-of-pocket expenses.

ARTICLE 3 - Approvals, Acquisitions and Funding

3.1

Immediately upon the execution of this Agreement or as soon thereafter as reasonably
practicable:

(a) The SON shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a
commitment for financing in an amount sufficient to enable SON to meet
the payment and investment obligations set out in Section 3.4 on terms
and conditions satisfactory to the SON and HONI, including with respect
to security obligations and lender step-in rights.

(b) HONI shall cause GPco on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP to apply for a
transmission licence to operate the BtoM Project Assets following the
transfer of the BtoM Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP
to occur on the Closing;

(c) HONI shall apply (with the co-operation and support of the Bruce-to-
Milton LP and the SON as may be necessary) under s.86 of the OEB Act
for approval to transfer the BtoM Project Assets to the Bruce-to-Milton LP
effective on the Closing;

(d) HONI shall cause GPco on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP to enter into
an operating agreement with HONI on terms and conditions satisfactory to
the SON and HONI (the "Operating Agreement");

(e) HONI shall cause GPco on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP (with the co-
operation and support of the Parties hereto as may be necessary) to apply
for a first transmission rate order from the OEB anticipating the transfer of
the BtoM Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP on
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Closing, seeking recognition in the transmission rates of the debt-to-equity
ratio contemplated by the Parties as set out herein and on the basis that the
applied-for revenue requirement shall be no greater than the associated
revenue requirement of HONI had there been no transfer of the BtoM
Project Assets effective on Closing; and

(f) the Parties shall otherwise apply for and pursue the Approvals as indicated
in Attachment "A" with the full co-operation and support of each other
Party.

3.2

Unless otherwise waived in writing by the Parties, the following shall be conditions
precedent to the Closing:

(a) receipt by the SON of a commitment for financing in an amount sufficient
to enable the SON to meet the payment and investment obligations set out
in Section 3.4 on terms and conditions satisfactory to the SON and HONI,
including with respect to security obligations and lender step-in rights;

(b) receipt of a ruling under section 86 of the OEB Act approving the transfer
of the BtoM Project Assets to the Bruce-to-Milton LP on Closing on terms
and conditions satisfactory to HONI and the SON;

(c) receipt of a transmission licence for the Bruce-to-Milton LP to operate the
BtoM Project Assets on terms and conditions satisfactory to HONI and the
SON;

(d) receipt of a transmission rate order from the OEB in respect of the
operation of the BtoM Project Assets by the Bruce-to-Milton LP
satisfactory to HONI and the SON;

(e) receipt or confirmation of a tax ruling that SON LPco will not be treated
as a taxable entity with respect to its investment and interest in the Bruce-
to-Milton LP;

(f) receipt of a tax ruling from the Ontario Ministry of Finance confirming
that, for purposes of the Electricity Act, the SON will not be regarded as a
municipality and that neither SON LPco nor the Bruce-to Milton LP will
be regarded as a municipal electric utility;

(g) receipt of a tax ruling confirming that neither the transfer of the BtoM
Project Assets, nor any other action taken pursuant to this Agreement will
result in any tax greater than $1,000,000 payable by HONI, Hydro One
Inc. or any other subsidiary of Hydro One Inc., other than in respect of
land-transfer tax;
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(h) receipt of a tax ruling confirming that payments made by the Bruce-to-
Milton LP to HO LPco under the HO LPco Promissory Note and to HONI
under the Operating Agreement will be tax-deductible to the Bruce-to-
Milton LP;

(i) receipt of a tax ruling in respect of any other items not identified in this
Section 3.2 but which are agreed to in writing between HONI and SON
prior to the Target Date as an item requiring determination of favourable
tax treatment in accordance with this Section 3.2(h), provided that each
Party shall act reasonably in agreeing to any such requests from the other
Party and shall not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition such
agreement where the tax ruling requested relates to a matter that could
result in any tax greater than $1,000,000 payable by the Bruce-to-Milton
LP, HONI, HO LPco, Hydro One Inc., GPco, SON LPco or the SON; and

(j) agreement by the Parties, acting reasonably, on the terms and conditions
oftheLPA.

The Parties shall use commercially reasonable efforts to satisfy the foregoing conditions
precedent in a timely manner. In the event that any rulings or orders in such conditions
precedent are denied or unavailable on terms and conditions acceptable to the Parties, the
Parties shall cooperate and negotiate in good faith during the term of this Agreement in
an effort to arrive at a mutually acceptable alternative solution or structure to address the
financial or regulatory issues applicable in the order or ruling which has been denied or is
unavailable.

3.3

If the Approvals Date has not occurred on or before September 1, 2013 or 90 days prior
to any subsequent revised Target Date, the Parties shall commence good faith
negotiations to extend the Target Date to such later date as may be reasonably required to
achieve the Approvals Date.

3.4

Within 10 Business Days after the Approvals Date, the following transactions shall occur
in the following order (the "Closing"):

(a) HONI and the Bruce-to-Milton LP will enter into the APA pursuant to
which HONI will transfer to the Bruce-to-Milton LP the BtoM Project
Assets in exchange for the issuance of 1 LP Unit of the Bruce-to-Milton
LP (representing a 0.1% limited partnership interest), subject to
adjustment, as well as a promissory note from the Bruce-to-Milton LP in
the principal amount equal to the BtoM Project Asset Value and bearing
interest at a rate equal to HONI's weighted average cost of outstanding
debt as may be adjusted from time to time (the "LP Promissory Note"). In
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conjunction with the APA, HONI and the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall duly
execute and file an election under subsection 97(2) of the Income Tax Act
(Canada) (which provision applies for purposes of the Electricity Act) so
that such transfer will occur on a tax deferred basis to HONI. The APA
will contain a price adjustment clause providing for an adjustment to the
purchase price, the consideration and/or the elected amount under the tax
election in respect of the transfer in the event of a reassessment by the tax
authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of HONI and the Bruce-to-
Milton LP. The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to
cause the transfer of the LP Line Property Rights in conjunction with the
APA to be effected on a land transfer tax deferred basis provided that the
Parties agree that (i) HONI shall hold title to such LP Line Property Rights
as bare trustee for and on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, (ii) no transfer
or other notice or registration in respect of the LP Line Property Rights
shall be permitted to be registered on title to the applicable real property
by HO LPco, SON LPco, any lender to either Party or any third party
where it would have an adverse effect on the deferral of land transfer tax,
(iii) if such land transfer tax becomes payable in the future it shall be
treated in accordance with Section 4.2;

(b) HONI shall contribute to HO LPco the 1 LP Unit received by HONI
pursuant to the APA as well as a cash amount equal to the BtoM Project
Asset Value in exchange for additional common shares of HO LPco and a
promissory note from HO LPco in the principal amount determined by
subtracting from the BtoM Project Asset Value the amount that is equal to
40% multiplied by the BtoM Project Asset Value, less the SON Equity
Contribution Amount and bearing interest at a rate equal to HONI's
weighted average cost of outstanding debt as may be adjusted from time to
time (the "HO LPco Promissory Note"). HONI and HO LPco shall duly
execute and file an election under subsection 85(1) of the Income Tax Act
(Canada) (which provision applies for purposes of the Electricity Act) so
that such transfer of the 1 LP Unit will occur on a tax deferred basis to
HONI. The terms of HONI's contribution to HO LPco as set out in this
Section 3.4(b) will contain a price adjustment clause providing for an
adjustment to the subscription price, the consideration and/or the elected
amount under the tax election in respect of the transfer to HO LPco in the
event of a reassessment by the tax authorities or otherwise upon the
agreement of HONI and HO LPco;

(c) HO LPco shall transfer a cash amount to the Bruce-to-Milton LP in the
amount of the BtoM Project Asset Value and in return shall receive
additional LP Units (in accordance with Section 3.4(e)) as well as a
promissory note in the principal amount equal to the BtoM Project Asset
Value minus the Effective HONI Equity Amount and bearing interest at a
rate equal to HONI's weighted average cost of outstanding debt as may be
adjusted from time to time (the "BtoM LP Promissory Note);
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(d) the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall pay to HONI a cash amount equal to the
BtoM Project Asset Value in full satisfaction of the LP Promissory Note
held by HONI in connection with the APA;

(e) HONI shall cause HO LPco and GPco to enter into the LPA and SON
shall cause SON LPco to enter into the LPA, and SON LPco shall make a
capital contribution to the Bruce-to-Milton LP in the amount equal to the
SON Equity Contribution Amount and in return shall receive such number
of LP Units such that (i) the total number of LP Units held by SON LPco
shall be equal to the total issued and outstanding LP Units multiplied by
the SON Equity Ratio; (ii) the total number of LP Units held by HO LPco
(including, for greater certainty, those issued under Section 3.4(c) above)
shall be equal to the total issued and outstanding LP Units multiplied by
the HO LPco Equity Ratio; and (iii) the total number of LP Units held by
GPco shall be equal to 0.1% of the total issued and outstanding LP Units.

(f) the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall utilize the funds contributed by SON LPco to
pay such portion of the BtoM LP Promissory Note such that the principal
amount of the BtoM LP Promissory Note shall then be equal to 60% of the
BtoM Project Asset Value; and

(g) HO LPco shall utilize the funds received from the Bruce-to-Milton LP to
pay such portion of the HO LPco Promissory Note such that the principal
amount of the HO LPco Promissory Note shall then be equal to 60% of the
total of the debt liability plus the paid up share capital of HO LPco.

For illustration purposes only, Attachment "C" to this Agreement contains an example of
the calculations and descriptions of the steps set out in this Section 3.4 assuming that the
BtoM Project Asset Value were equal to $600,000,000 and the SON Equity Contribution
Amount were equal to $72,000,000 at the Closing.

3.5

All funds required on Closing shall be payable by electronic funds transfer of
immediately available funds.

3.6

Closing will take place at the head office of HONI.

ARTICLE 4 - Costs

4.1

The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause all costs incurred up to
Closing by HONI or the Bruce-to-Milton LP, in respect of actions required by HONI
reasonably connected with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, reasonably
connected with the BtoM Project Assets or otherwise reasonably incurred in respect of
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the Bruce-to-Milton LP, to be recovered in the OEB-approved transmission rates in
respect of the operation of the BtoM Project Assets by the Bruce-to-Milton LP. In the
event that any such costs are not otherwise recoverable or recovered in the OEB-
approved transmission rates of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, that part of such costs that: (i) has
been incurred by the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall be shared by the limited partners in
proportion to their post-Closing LP Unit holdings and (ii) has been incurred by HONI and
has not been included in the computation of the BtoM Project Asset Value and has not
otherwise been included in computing the equity contributed to the Bruce-to-Milton LP
by HO LPco or an affitiate of HO LPco, shall be deemed to be additional equity
contributed by HO LPco to the Bruce-to-Milton LP and reflected accordingly in the
accounts and records of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, and the limited partnership interests and
the LP Units shall be adjusted accordingly in accordance with the LPA to reflect such
additional equity contribution. All such costs which are not included in the OEB-
approved transmission rates of the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall be provided to the SON for
its review, and if disputed, shall be subject to the dispute resolution mechanisms provided
in the LPA.

4.2

The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause any land transfer tax
(including deferred taxes) imposed on the acquisition of the BtoM Project Assets by the
Bruce-to-Milton LP or the acquisition by SON LPco of its LP Units to be recovered in
the OEB-approved transmission rates in respect of the operation of the BtoM Project
Assets by the Bruce-to-Milton LP. Where the recovery of such land transfer tax costs are
included in the OEB-approved transmission rates of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, the amount
of any such land transfer tax paid or payable by HO LPco, GPco or SON LPco shall be
deemed to be additional equity contributed to the Bruce-to-Milton LP and reflected
accordingly in the accounts and records of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, and the limited
partnership interests and the LP Units shall be adjusted accordingly in accordance with
the LPA to reflect such additional equity contribution. Where the recovery of such land
transfer tax costs are not included in the OEB-approved transmission rates of the Bruce-
to-Milton LP, each limited partner of the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall be responsible for its
share of such land transfer tax costs on a pro rata basis based on their post-Closing LP
Unit holdings.

ARTICLE 5- Term

5.1

This Agreement shall remain in force until the earlier of:

(a) failure of the OEB to give approval to the transfer of the BtoM Project
Assets under s. 86 of the OEB Act on proper application as contemplated
in Attachment "A";

(b) the failure of Bruce-to-Milton LP to obtain a transmission licence on
proper application to the OEB as contemplated in Attachment "A"; or
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(c) 11:59 p.m. on the date that is 180 days after the Target Date if the
Approvals Date has not occurred by such time.

5.2

If this Agreement expires as contemplated in Section 5.1, its provisions shall become null
and void and have no further force and effect, and there shall be no liability or further
obligation whatsoever on the part of any one Party to the other Party.

ARTICLE 6- General

6.1

The SON acknowledges and agrees that neither HONI, nor any of its affiliates, nor any of
the directors, officers, employees, consultants or agents of any of them have made any
representation or warranty to the SON regarding the SON's investment as a limited
partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP, including any anticipated return on investment or the
associated rights and risks as a limited partner. The SON further acknowledges and
agrees that it has made the decision, in its sole discretion, to invest as a limited partner in
the Bruce-to-Milton LP and assumes all risks related to this investment in respect of the
SON's decision to invest as a limited partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP, provided that
such assumption of risk in no way derogates from any and all contractual rights which the
SON may have against HONI under this Agreement or any other agreements related
hereto.

6.2

Each Party shall obtain the necessary authorizations contemplated in this Agreement and
in the LPA or as otherwise reasonably required or requested to enable the Parties or the
entities they control to enter into this Agreement and the agreements contemplated herein
and to give effect to the intent of the Parties as evidenced in this Agreement and in the
LPA.

6.3

The obligations of SON hereunder are joint and several. The Chippewas of Nawash First
Nation and the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation each agree with HONI that it will not
sell, transfer, assign, encumber or pledge as collateral in any way, directly or indirectly,
its legal and beneficial interest in SON LPco, or in any rights thereunder, including
distributions from Bruce-to-Milton LP, and will not permit its ownership interest in SON
LPco to be registered in the name of any other person nor will it permit the issue of any
additional securities, except in each case, to an entity that is 100% legally and
beneficially owned by such First Nation and such entity agrees in writing to be bound by
this Agreement, the LPA and the documents contemplated hereunder that apply to the
SON or SON LPco, as applicable, except that the SON may pledge its interest in SON
LPco and its rights thereunder and SON LPco may pledge its LP Units, and its rights
thereunder, as security for the financing obtained to fund the acquisition by SON LPco of
its LP Units.
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6.4

Notice under this Agreement shall be given in writing and may be served personally or
sent by registered mail or courier to the Parties at the following addresses:

If to Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and/or Chippewas of Nawash First Nation:

c/o Saugeen Ojibway Nation

Chippewas of Saugeen
R.R. # 1
Southampton, Ontario NOH 2LO
Attention: Chief

Chippewas of Nawash
135LakeshoreBlvd, RR#5
Wiarton ON NOH 2TO
Attention: Chief

-with a copy to -

Pape, Salter & Teillet LLP
Harbord House
546 Euclid Avenue
Toronto ON, M6G 2T2
Attention: Colin Jesse Salter
Email: colin@salterlaw.ca

If to Hydro One Networks Inc:
483 Bay Street,
15th Floor, North Tower,
Toronto, ON
M5G 2P5
Attention: General Counsel
Email: joe.a.gostmo@,hydroone.com

-with a copy to -

Osier, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP
Box 50, 1 First Canadian Place
Toronto ON, M5X IBS
Attention: Rocco Sebastiano
Email: rsebatiano@osler.com
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/r
Agreed this//dav ofs/^cf , 2012.

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC.

By:_
Name:
Title:

CHIPPEWAS OF NAWASH FIRST
NATION

By:__
Name:_
Title: ,

CHIPPEWAS OF SAUGEEN FIRST
NATION

By:
Name:
Title:
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Attachment "A"

Approvals

Tax Rulings Party Responsible

Ruling from Canada Revenue Agency that
SON LPco will not be treated as a taxable
entity with respect to its investment in the
Bruce-to-Milton LP

HONI and the SON jointly

Tax ruling from the Ontario Ministry of
Finance confirming that, for purposes of the
Electricity Act, the SON will not be regarded
as a municipality and that neither SON LPco
nor the Bruce-to-Milton LP will be regarded
as a municipal electric utility.

HONI and the SON jointly

Tax ruling confirming that neither the transfer
of the BtoM Project Assets, nor any other
action taken pursuant to this Agreement will
result in any tax greater than $1,000,000
payable by HONI, Hydro One Inc. or any
other subsidiary of Hydro One Inc., other than
in respect of any land transfer tax

HONI

Tax ruling to confirm that the payments made
by the Bruce-to-Milton LP to HO LPco under
the HO LPco Promissory Note and to HONI
under the Operating Agreement will be tax-
deductible to the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

HONI and the SON jointly

Tax ruling in respect of any other items as
contemplated in Section 3.2(1).

HONI or the SON or jointly, as applicable

OEB Matters

Transmission license for Bruce-to-Milton LP
from the OEB

First transmission rate order for the Bruce-to-
Milton LP
MADD application (s.86 of the OEB Act)

Party Responsible

GPco on behalf of Bruce-to-Milton LP

GPco on behalf of Bruce-to-Milton LP

HONI
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SON Financing

ALGP funding of SON LPco partnership
interest

Party Responsible

SON

Internal Governance Party Responsible

Band Council Resolution(s) of the Chippewas
of Saugeen authorizing the transactions
contemplated herein and specifically
execution of this Anishnaabekiing
Naagnigewin Agreement, the LPA and all
related documents including those related to
financing and the creation and organization
of SON LPco

Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation

Band Council Resolution(s) of the Chippewas
of Nawash authorizing the transactions
contemplated herein and specifically
execution of this Anishnaabekiing
Naagnigewin Agreement, the LPA and all
related documents including those related to
financing and the creation and organization
of SON LPco

Chippewas of Nawash First Nation

Resolution(s) of the Board of Directors of
Hydro One Inc. or HONI, as appropriate,
authorizing the transactions contemplated
herein and specifically execution of the LPA,
the APA, and the Operating Agreement.

HONI

Definitive LPA Party Responsible

Agreement by the Parties on the complete
terms and conditions of the LPA

HONI and the SON jointly
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ATTACHMENT "B"

Heads of Agreement for the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement
of the Bruce-to-Milton LP

[Note: Defined terms used in this document not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given to
them in the Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin Agreement.]

TERM DESCRIPTION

Description of
the BtoM
Project Assets:

HONl is a provincially licensed transmitter, who was granted leave from the OEB on
September 15, 2008 in accordance with Decision 2007-0050 to construct high-voltage
transmission facilities from the Bruce Power Nuclear Generating Facility in Kincardine,
Ontario to HONI's switchyard in Milton, Ontario (the "Line"). The "BtoM Project
Assets" are those assets comprising the Line, including the LP Line Property Rights, but
excluding all sub-station facilities and assets relating to the interconnection of the Line
with HONI's remaining transmission system.

2. The Bruce-to-
Milton LP:

GPco, a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HONI ("GPco"), as the general
partner, and HO LPco, a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HONI ("HO
LPco"), and SON LPco, a wholly owned subsidiary of the SON ("SON LPco"), which,
together with GPco as the limited partners, will form an Ontario limited partnership (the
"Bruce-to-Milton LP") to own the BtoM Project Assets and to engage HONI to operate,
manage and maintain the BtoM Project Assets in accordance with the Operating
Agreement. The Bruce-to-Milton LP shall have a single class of limited partnership units
representing the limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP (the "LP Units").

3. Objective of
the Bruce-to-
Milton LP:

The objective of the Bruce-to-Milton LP is to formalize a long-term cooperative
arrangement between HO LPco and SON LPco to facilitate the SON's equity participation
in the ownership of the BtoM Project Assets and to participate in the economic benefits
arising from SON LPco's ownership of LP Units. Through the Bruce-to-Milton LP, SON
LPco will participate in the Distributable Cash (defined per item 9 below) from the
operation of the BtoM Project Assets during the operational life of the BtoM Project
Assets or until the Bruce-to-Milton LP is dissolved. The Bruce-to-Milton LP shall also be
responsible for the decommissioning of the BtoM Project Assets. The Bruce-to-Milton LP
shall not engage in any business activities that are not in relation to the BtoM Project
Assets.

4. Transmission
Rates:

Revenue in respect of the operation of the BtoM Project Assets is expected to be based on
regulated transmission rates determined by the OEB from time to time. GPco will apply
for a transmission licence to own and operate the BtoM Project Assets on behalf of the
Bruce-to-Milton LP. HONI's duties under the Operating Agreement will include making
transmission rate applications on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP and representing the
Bruce-to-Milton LP on all matters before the OEB.

Overview of
SON LPco
Participation:

The following highlights some of the key elements of the Bruce-to-Milton LP:

• Through the Bruce-to-Milton LP, SON LPco will be entitled to participate as an
equity participant in the BtoM Project Assets.

• SON LPco's limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP will be initially
set on Closing in accordance with the "SON Equity Ratio" as defined in the
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TERM DESCRIPTION

Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin Agreement.

• As an equity holder in the Bruce-to-Milton LP, SON LPco will receive annual
payments from the Distributable Cash in proportion to its limited partnership
interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP once the Line is in-service and the BtoM Project
Assets have been transferred to the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

• SON LPco will be required to make commercially reasonable efforts to cause SON
and its constituencies to act in the best interests of the Bruce-to-Milton LP and the
BtoM Project Assets (such obligations referred to as the "SON Support").

• In addition to all other laws applicable to the Bruce-to-Milton LP (including its
regulation as a licensed transmitter by the OEB), the Bruce-to-Milton LP, being
majority owned and controlled by Hydro One, Inc. ("HOI"), may be subject to
directives from Her Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province of Ontario as
Represented by the Minister of Energy (the ''Shareholder") pursuant to the
Memorandum of Agreement between HOI and the Shareholder dated March 27,
2008.

Term: The "Term" will commence on the date of the execution of the LPA among GPco, HO
LPco and SON LPco and will end when the BtoM Project Assets are permanently
decommissioned or removed from service, unless terminated earlier by mutual agreement
of all partners of the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

Management
of the Bruce-
to-Milton LP:

GPco will manage the day-to-day functions of the Bruce-to-Milton LP. GPco will keep
SON LPco apprised of the operation of the BtoM Project Assets. Effective cooperation
and interchange of information on a prompt, commercial and orderly basis will be ensured
through an Advisory Committee mechanism described below.

8. Bruce-to-
Milton LP
Interests,
Capital Calls
& Dilution:

SON LPco will not be permitted to purchase any further LP Units that would increase its
limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP beyond the SON Equity Ratio
determined initially at Closing and as may be adjusted in the future as a result of the
failure to make additional contributions required by Capital Requests set out below.

From time to time during the Term, there will be additional costs in respect of the BtoM
Project Assets, including development, construction, management, upgrading, repair and
refurbishment costs, insurance costs, costs for decommissioning and liabilities incurred by
the Bruce-to-Milton LP in connection with its engagement of HONI for the operation and
maintenance of the BtoM Project Assets under the Operating Agreement. As and when
these costs are incurred, to the extent the Bruce-to-Milton LP is unable to fund the equity
portion of such expenditure (taking into consideration the deemed debt-to-equity capital
structure reflected in the OEB-approved transmission rates of the Bruce-to-Milton LP)
from partnership short term credit facilities or other immediately available sources, each
of HO LPco and SON LPco will be requested to make additional capital contributions
necessary to fund the shortfall (a "Capital Request") in proportion to their existing
limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP (such interest, the Limited Partner's
•'Equity Ratio"). Except in the case of emergencies or unplanned capital requirements,
GPco will give HO LPco and SON LPco not less than 180 days advance notice of a
Capital Request. A limited partner (the "Non-Contributing Partner") may elect not to
contribute all or part of the additional capital requested by a Capital Request and such
election shall not be a breach or failure under the LPA and shall have no adverse impact
on the Non-Contributing Partner except that the Equity Ratio of such partner shall be
adjusted on a prospective basis to reflect the amount of capital provided to the Bruce-to-
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TERM DESCRIPTION

Milton LP by each limited partner after the contributions of capital in response to the
Capital Request have been made. If a limited partner elects to contribute additional capital
requested by a Capital Request and fails to provide such capital to the Bruce-to-Milton LP
at the time such capital is required to be delivered, such failure shall constitute a breach
under the LPA.

Where SON LPco elects to contribute all or part of the additional capital requested by a
Capital Request, provided that SON LPco has used commercially reasonable efforts to
secure its own funds or third party financing to contribute such additional capital, SON
LPco may, prior to the time when the additional capital is required to be contributed in
accordance with the Capital Request, by written notice to HO LPco, elect to borrow such
additional capital from HO LPco for a period not to exceed one year from the date that the
additional capital was required to be contributed in accordance with the Capital Request
(such date, the "SON Capital Call Loan Deadline"). In such circumstances SON LPco
will be required to repay to HO LPco prior to the SON Capital Call Loan Deadline the
principal amount of the loan for such additional capital amount (such principal amount,
the "Capital Call Loan Amount"), together with interest on such amount equal to the
return-on-equity percentage reflected in the OEB-approved transmission rates of the
Bruce-to-Milton LP calculated from the date the additional capital was due under the
Capital Request. In the event that any amount of the Capital Call Loan Amount remains
outstanding by the SON Capital Call Loan Deadline, then the LP Units which were
financed by the unpaid amount of the Capital Call Loan Amount shall immediately be
transferred to HO LPco in satisfaction of the unpaid Capital Call Loan Amount and any
amount of the unpaid interest on the Capital Call Loan Amount that has not been repaid to
HO LPco by the SON Capital Call Loan Deadline shall be paid to HO LPco from SON
LPco's entitlement to distributions of Distributable Cash.

9. Bruce-to-
Milton LP
Distributions
and Payments
to Limited
Partners:

"Distributable Cash" shall mean available cash of the Bruce-to-Milton LP after paying:
all amounts owing under the Operating Agreement; debt service obligations in respect of
all debt obligations owed by the Bruce-to-Milton LP (including the BtoM LP Promissory
Note and any working capital debt facilities); all Payments in Lieu of Taxes (or any future
equivalent thereof or actual exigible taxes) by any affiliate of HONI in respect of the
Bruce-to-Milton LP's income to the extent such costs are collected in the OEB-approved
transmission rates of the Bruce-to-Milton LP; and any transaction costs or other costs
borne by HONI in respect of the transactions contemplated in the Anishnaabekiing
Naagnigewin Agreement, the BtoM Project Assets or the Bruce-to-Milton LP to the
extent such costs are collected in the OEB-approved transmission rates of the Bruce-to-
Milton LP.

Advances in respect of Distributable Cash will be made in proportion to the Equity Ratio
of the applicable partner, quarterly, on the basis of a forecast operating budget to be
prepared by GPco, acting reasonably, and which quarterly advances shall be reconciled on
an annual basis (subsequent to the fiscal year end of the Bruce-to-Milton LP) to actual
Distributable Cash of the Bruce-to-Milton LP over the fiscal year. To the extent that such
annual reconciliation results in an amount owing from any partner to the Bruce-to-Milton
LP in respect of quarterly advances during such fiscal year, such amount shall be set off
against future advances and distributions to such partner and such costs are not included in
the BtoM Project Asset Value.

Each limited partner agrees that distributions distributable to them shall first be subject to
set-off for any monies that are due and owing from such limited partner to the Bruce-to-
Milton LP or to any of the other limited partners.
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10 Threshold
SON LPco
Interest:

If at any time the limited partnership interest of SON LPco falls below 5%, HO LPco shall
have the option to purchase the SON LPco's equity in the Bruce-to-Milton LP at a price
equal to the fair market value of such LP Units.

11. Consent of
SON:

For as long as the limited partnership interest of SON LPco is at least 5%, HONI will not
be entitled to dissolve or cause the dissolution of the Bruce-to-Milton LP without the
consent of SON LPco, acting reasonably.

12 Unanimous
Consent of the
Partners:

Certain actions relating to fundamental matters involving a change to the structure,
organization or business of the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall require unanimous consent of the
limited partners. Such fundamental matters shall include the following: (i) dissolving,
liquidating or restructuring the Bruce-to-Milton LP, except where the limited partnership
interest of SON LPco has fallen below the minimum threshold as set out in item 11 above;
(ii) changing the name of the Bruce-to-Milton LP; (iii) waiving any default on the part of
the general partner; (iv) the sale or disposition of any component of the property or assets
of the Bruce-to-Milton LP that would reasonably be anticipated to have a material adverse
effect on the economic benefits of the LP Units; (v) changing the business of the Bruce-to-
Milton LP; (vi) the admission of new limited partners (other than in respect of a HONI
Minority Transfer as set out in item 18 below), a transfer to HONI or a HONI subsidiary
(as set out in item 19 above) or in accordance with the Mutual ROFO and ROFR
provisions set out below); (vii) terminating the Bruce-to-Milton LP's transmission licence
before its expiration; (viii) to the extent not governed by or exempted from the OEB's
Affiliates Relationship Code (or future equivalent thereof), entering into an agreement with
a person that does not deal at arm's length with GPco unless such agreement is on terms
no less favourable to the Bruce-to-Milton LP than under an agreement with an arm's
length person, and (ix) amending the LPA or any previous action or document that
required unanimous consent of the limited partners.

13, Dispute
Resolution:

The Parties will work co-operatively to resolve any dispute, disagreement or difference of
opinion concerning the LPA or the performance or interpretation thereof (each a
•'Dispute"). Following receipt of a written request for a meeting, senior representatives of
each Party shall meet to attempt to resolve such Dispute. If the senior representatives are
unable to resolve such Dispute within fifteen (15) business days from the date the first
written request for a meeting was received, the Parties may thereafter invoke a non-
binding mediation procedure to resolve the Dispute.

The Parties may refer any Dispute between the Parties to binding arbitration before a
single arbitrator. No Party may appeal the decision of the arbitrator in any manner
whatsoever, except as permitted by the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario). The arbitration
will be conducted in English under the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario) and will take place
in either the City of Toronto or such other place as the Parties may agree. SON LPco shall
retain the right to have any dispute as to whether it is required to dispose of its interest in
the Bruce-to-Milton LP adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction.

14 SON LPco
Audit Rights:

SON LPco shall be entitled to reasonable access to relevant records and data in the
possession of GPco related to the operations of the BtoM Project Assets pursuant to the
Operating Agreement and any information necessary to verify the income of the Bruce-
to-Milton LP and the calculation of the distributions to SON LPco. SON LPCo shall also
receive audited financial statements and copies of all public filings of Bruce-to-Milton LP.

15 SON Breach A breach of a material covenant or representation under the LPA by SON LPco, if not
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of Covenants
and Events of
Default:

cured within any applicable cure periods stipulated therein, will result in a "SON
Event of Default". SON LPco shall be liable for any damages caused by a SON Event
of Default which shall be paid by SON LPco within 30 days of notice of such default
(subject to any dispute resolution rights with respect to the existence of the SON
Event of Default or the extent of damages) and upon the failure of SON LPco to pay
such damages the amount of such damages shall be paid from SON LPco's
entitlement to distributions of Distributable Cash.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the occurrence of a SON Event of Default or any
failure by the SON to act in the best interests of the Bruce-to-Milton LP or the BtoM
Project Assets using commercially reasonable efforts, which is not cured within any
applicable cure period, that, in either case, causes the Bruce-to-Milton LP to default
on a payment obligation under BtoM LP Promissory Note, HO LPco or an affiliate of
HONI may, after all dispute resolution mechanisms as set out in item 13 above have
been exhausted, acquire SON LPco's LP Units upon the payment to SON LPco of a
termination payment ("Termination Payment") equal to the fair market value of
such LP Units determined as of such time by a qualified independent valuator (the
costs of which shall be paid by each limited partner on the basis of their Equity Ratio)
which shall be paid to SON LPco in a single payment within 60 days following the
determination of such fair market value. SON LPco or the SON shall cause, as part of
such acquisition and payment of the Termination Payment, the discharge of any
security against its LP Units and provide a full and final release to HO LPco, HONI and
any other affiliate of HONI that acquires SON LPco's LP Units.

16. HONI Breach
of Covenants
and Events of
Default:

A breach of a material covenant or representation under the LPA by HO LPco, GPco or
HONI or a breach of the operation agreement by GPco if not cured within any applicable
cure periods stipulated therein, will result in a "HONI Event of Default". HO LPco shall
be liable for any damages caused by a HONI Event of Default which shall be paid by HO
LPco within 30 days of notice of such default (subject to any dispute resolution rights with
respect to the existence of the HONI Event of Default or the extent of damages) and upon
the failure of HO LPco to pay such damages the amount of such damages shall be paid
from HO LPco's entitlement to distributions of Distributable Cash.

17. Transfer by
SON LPco
and SON
Lender
Rights:

SON LPco shall not sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of its interest in the Bruce-
to-Milton LP other than in accordance with the Mutual ROFO and ROFR provisions set
out below. Similarly, SON shall not cause or permit a change of control in SON LPco.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, SON LPco shall be permitted to assign its interest in the
Bruce-to-Milton LP for the purpose of granting a security interest to lenders in respect of
the SON LPco equity investment provided that the terms of such security interest are
acceptable to HONI, acting reasonably.

18. Permitted
HONI
Transfer of
Minority
Interest

HO LPco, or any other direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HONI that is or
becomes a limited partner, shall at all times be entitled to sell, assign, transfer or otherwise
dispose of such number of LP Units to any third party provided that following such sale,
assignment, transfer or disposition, at least 50% of the total number of LP Units in the
Bruce-to-Milton LP shall continue to be held directly or indirectly by HONI, either
through HO LPco or any other direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HONI (such
transaction, a "HONI Minority Transfer"). All transaction costs in respect of such transfer
shall be borne by HO LPco.

19 Transfer by
HONI and

Except in respect of a HONI Minority Transfer, HO LPco shall be not entitled to sell,
assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of its interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP other than (i)
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HONI Lender
Rights:

I

to HONI or any direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HONI; or (ii) in accordance
with the Mutual ROFO and ROFR provisions set out below. HONI shall be entitled to sell,
transfer or otherwise dispose of its interest in HO LPco or any other affiliate which holds
its interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP provided that following such sale, transfer or
disposition, at least 50% of the total number of LP Units in the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall
continue to be held directly or indirectly by HONI. HONI shall be entitled to cause or
permit a change of control in HONI without the consent of SON LPco, but shall provide
notice of such event to SON LPCo as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, HO LPco shall be permitted to assign its interest in the
Bruce-to-Milton LP for the purpose of granting a security interest to lenders in respect of
the BtoM Project Assets.

20. Advisory
Committee:

There shall be an Advisory Committee in respect of the Bruce-to-Milton LP composed of
at least one representative from each of the limited partners (including GPco) which shall
meet at least quarterly. The Advisory Committee shall provide a forum for review and
consideration of the operations of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, including review of financial
operating information, budgets, regulatory developments and other matters in relation to
the BtoM Project Assets or the Bruce-to-Milton LP. The reasonable expenses of the
Advisory Committee shall be borne by the Bruce-to-Milton LP.

21 Mutual ROFO
and ROFR:

Except in respect of (i) a HONI Minority Transfer (as set out in item 18 above) and (ii) a
transfer to HONI or a HONI subsidiary (as set out in item 19 above), HO LPco and SON
LPco shall each be prohibited from selling their LP Units without providing the other
Party a right of first offer in respect of the subject LP Units. Any Party that is required to
give such right of first offer (a "ROFO Offerer") shall deliver to each applicable offeree
(the "ROFO Offeree") a written notice (the "ROFO Notice") informing the ROFO
Offeree of its desire to sell its LP Units and the price at which it proposes to sell (the
"ROFO Price"). The ROFO Offeree may elect to acquire all (but not less than all) of
such LP Units at the ROFO Price by written notice to the ROFO Offerer within 30 days
after receipt of the ROFO Notice. Should the ROFO Offeree elect not to acquire such LP
Units, the ROFO Offerer may then seek an offer from a third party purchaser to acquire
the LP Units at a price equal to or higher than the ROFO Price (taking into consideration
any terms or other collateral agreements that would be reasonably expected to make the
transaction price with such third party less than the ROFO Price).

Where a Party receives an offer from a third party purchaser to purchase its LP Units that
such Party is prepared to accept, prior to selling such LP Units to such third party
purchaser, such Party must provide the other Party with a right of first refusal in respect of
the proposed sale of such LP Units, whether such offer was solicited following a ROFO
Notice that the ROFO Offeree elected not to accept or whether the offer from such third
party was unsolicited. Such Party proposing to sell its LP Units (the "Selling Partner")
shall provide written notice to the other Party informing (the "Non-Selling Partner") of
its intent to accept the third party offer and providing all the terms and conditions of the
proposed sale (a "ROFR Notice"). The Non-Selling Partner may elect to acquire all (but
not less than all) of such LP Units at the price and on the same terms and conditions as set
out in the third party offer by written notice to the Selling Partner within 30 days after
receipt of the ROFR Notice. Should the Non-Selling Partner elect not to acquire such LP
Units, the Selling Partner may then accept the third party offer provided that such sale
takes place at a price and on terms and conditions that are no more favourable to the third
party purchaser than as set out in the ROFR and that such transaction closes within 180
days of the ROFR Notice. In the event that such transaction has not closed within 180
days of the ROFR Notice or the terms of the third-party offer are amended to be more
favourable to the Selling Partner, the Selling Partner shall be required to provide a further
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ROFR Notice to the Non-Selling Partner.
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ATTACHMENT "C"

Example Closing Steps Calculations and Descriptions

1. Input Assumptions:

• BtoM Project Asset Value = $600,000,000

• SON Equity Contribution Amount = $72,000,000

2. Calculations

(a) SON Equity Ratio = 30.0% ($72m /(0.4 x $600m))

(b) HO LPco Equity Ratio = 69.9% (99.9% - 30.0%)

(c) HONI Equity Ratio = 70% (HO LPco Equity Ratio + 0.1%)

(d) Effective HONI Equity Amount = $168,000,000 ($600m x 0.40 x 0.70)

(e) The "LP Promissory Note" pursuant to Section 3.4(a) is equal to
$600,000,000.

(f) The original principal amount of the "HO LPco Promissory Note"
pursuant to Section 3.4(b) is equal to $432,000,000 (determined as
follows: $600,000,000 - ((0.40 x $600,000,000) - $72,000,000)).

(g) The original principal amount of the "BtoM LP Promissory Note"
pursuant to Section 3.4(c) is equal to $432,000,000 (determined as
follows: $600,000,000 - (0.40 x $600,000,000 x 0.700)).

(h) The Bruce-to-Milton LP pays to HONI a cash amount of $600,000,000 in
full satisfaction of the LP Promissory Note held by HONI in connection
with the APA pursuant to Section 3.4(d).

(i) SON LPco contributes $72,000,000 to the Bruce-to-Milton LP pursuant to
Section 3.4(e).

(j) The Bruce-to-Milton LP applies $72,000,000 to reduce the BtoM LP
Promissory Note to $360,000,000 such that the principal amount of the
BtoM LP Promissory note shall then be equal to 60% of the BtoM Project
Asset Value pursuant to Section 3.4(f).

(k) HO LPco applies $72,000,000 to reduce the HO LPco Promissory Note to
$360,000,000 pursuant to Section 3.4(g).

3. LP Units Results

The total issued and outstanding LP Units in the Bruce-to-Milton LP following
the Closing would be 10,000 LP Units and held as follows: (i) 3,000 LP Units
held by SON LPco, (ii) 6,990 LP Units held by HO LPco and (iii) 10 LP Units
held by GPco.
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Hydro One Inc. 
Submission to the Board of Directors hydro/1 Vne 

Date: June 14, 2012 

Subject: Bruce to Milton Limited Partnership 

~mNCOPY 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

SI\NDY STRUTHERS 

Sandy Struthers 
Executive Vice-President and CFO 

INFORMAi«ON (!~~'If 
Original Signed By: 
Lee Anne Cameron 

Lee Anne Cameron 
Director, First Nations and 
Metis Relations 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approved for Submission to the Board by: 

INFORMATION COPY 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 
LAURA t. FORMUSA 

Laura Formusa 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

THAT the Board of Directors of Hydro One Inc. approve the transfer of the Bruce to Milton Transmission 
line from Hydro One Networks Inc. ("HONI") to a limited partnership (the Bruce-to-Milton Transmission 
Line Limited Partnership) (the "Limited Partnership"), comprised of two wholly-owned HONI 
subsidiaries, into which partnership the Saugeen Ojibway Nation (the "SON") will join as a minority 
limited partner upon receipt of their investment, as well as the necessary agreements and documents 
required, among other things, to effect the transaction, operate the partnership, and fund the partnership, 
all as more specifically described in the resolutions attached hereto as Attachment "A". 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS 
• On June 22, 2011, the Board of Directors approved the negotiation of a partnership agreement with 

the SON on commercial terms, related to the Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement project. 
• A limited partnership structure has been developed which would allow the SON to invest directly 

through its own wholly-owned limited partner in the Limited Partnership, as described in the Master 
Implementation Agreement (Attachment "B"). The Limited Partnership, which would have its own 
transmission licence, would hold the transmission line assets of the Bruce to Milton transmission line. 

• The transmission line assets are projected to cost $600 million upon completion with an equity value 
of $240 million. The SON would acquire an equity interest of 30% in those assets in exchange for a 
$72 million payment. Private equity financing for $50 million of the purchase price paid by the SON 
would be guaranteed under the Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program administered by the Ministry of 
Finance. Hydro One will provide the SON with Participation Funding (Attachment "D"). 

This Board Memorandum was reviewed and approved for submission to the Board of Directors of Hydro 
One Inc. by the Audit and Finance Committee at its meeting on June 14, 2012. 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 7 

LP Agreement 

 



Final Version

LEGAL_1:23010826.12

AMENDED AND RESTATED
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

For
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among:
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[NTD: GP ENTITY TO BE DETERMINED]

- and –

[HOI BTM HOLDINGS INC.]
[NTD: HOI LP ENTITY TO BE DETERMINED]

-and-

[SON BTM HOLDINGS INC.]
[NTD: SON LP ENTITY TO BE DETERMINED]

Made effective as of the

●  day of ●, 2014 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made effective as of the [●] day of [●], 2014  

BETWEEN:

HOI BTM HOLDINGS INC. a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario

(the “HOI BtM Partner”)

[NTD: Name of entity to be determined.]

- and -

[SON BTM HOLDINGS INC.] a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario

(the “SON BtM Partner”)

[NTD: Name of entity to be determined.]

- and -

[BRUCE-TO-MILTON GP INC.] a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario

(the “General Partner”)

[NTD: Name of entity to be determined.]

WHEREAS:

A. [Bruce-to-Milton L.P.] (the “Partnership”) was formed as a limited partnership under
the laws of the Province of Ontario on , 2014 by the filing of a declaration pursuant to
the Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario) (the “Declaration”).

B. [Bruce-to-Milton GP Inc.], as the initial general partner, and HOI BtM Partner as the
initial limited partner, entered into a limited partnership agreement dated as of , 2013
governing the business and affairs of the Partnership (the “Initial Partnership
Agreement”).

C. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Parties wish to own and cause to be operated
and maintained the second high-voltage electrical transmission tower line spanning
approximately 180 kilometres from the Bruce Power nuclear generating facility located
in Kincardine, Ontario to HONI’s switchyard in Milton, Ontario (the “Line”) for which
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HONI was granted leave to construct from the OEB on September 15, 2008 and which
was placed in-service on May 14, 2012;

D. The Parties wish to formalize a long-term cooperative arrangement between the Partners
to facilitate the participation of the SON in the ownership of the Line and the
participation of the SON in the cash flows from the operation of the Line until it is no
longer operated or until the Partnership is terminated; and

E. In order to undertake the foregoing, the Parties wish to amend and restate the Initial
Partnership Agreement to admit SON BtM Partner as a limited partner and to provide for
certain changes to the terms and conditions set forth in the Initial Limited Partnership
Agreement as set out in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for value received, the Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement, the following terms have the respective meanings set out below:

(a) “Additional Equity Contribution” has the meaning given to it in
Section 5.9.

(b) “Adjusted Annual Distributable Cash” for a Fiscal Year of the
Partnership means an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) the Annual
Distributable Cash of the Partnership for that Fiscal Year, and (ii) the
Negative Tax Allowance of the Partnership for that Fiscal Year.

(c) “Adjusted Forecasted Distributable Cash” for a fiscal quarter of the
Partnership means an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) the forecasted
Distributable Cash of the Partnership for that fiscal quarter on the basis
of a forecast operating budget of the Partnership to be prepared by the
General Partner, acting reasonably, and (ii) the forecasted Negative Tax
Allowance of the Partnership for that fiscal quarter.

(d) “ADRIC” has the meaning given to it in Section 13.3.

(e) “Advance” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.13(b)(ii)(1).

(f) “Affiliate” means, with respect to a Person, any other Person that
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by or is under common control with the first Person. For the
purposes of this definition, a Person “controls” another Person, if that
Person directly or indirectly possesses the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management and policies of that other Person, whether
through the ownership of securities, by contract or by any other means
and “controlled by” and “under common control with” have
corresponding meanings.
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(g) “Agreement” means this agreement, including any recitals and
schedules, as the same may be amended, supplemented or restated from
time to time.

(h) “Annual Advance Amount” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(f)(i).

(i) “Annual Designated Advance Amount” has the meaning given to it in
Section 5.13(e)(i).

(j) “Annual Distributable Cash” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(c)(i)(3);

(k) “Applicable Laws” in respect of any Person, property, transaction or
event, means all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, by-laws, codes,
treaties, judgments and decrees applicable to that Person, property,
transaction or event at the applicable time and, whether or not having
the force of law, all applicable requirements, requests, directives, rules,
consents, approvals, authorizations, guidelines, instructions, circulars,
manuals, orders and policies of any Governmental Authority having or
purporting to have authority over that Person, property, transaction or
event at the applicable time.

(l) “Approved Net Income (Loss)” for a Fiscal Year means (i) the
forecasted Net Income, expressed as a positive number, considered by
the OEB in determining the Approved OEB Rates for that Fiscal Year,
or (ii) the forecasted Net Loss, expressed as a negative number,
considered by the OEB in determining the Approved OEB Rates for that
Fiscal Year.

(m) “Approved OEB Rates” for a Fiscal Year means the aggregate amount
that the Partnership is entitled to charge for transmission rates for that
Fiscal Year, as approved by the OEB.

(n) “Approved Tax Amount” for a Fiscal Year means the total of (i) the
amount, if any, expressed as a positive number, that was included in the
Approved OEB Rates for that Fiscal Year on account of HOI BtM
Taxes, including any additional amount included in such Approved
OEB Rates as a gross-up to reflect the fact that such increased amounts
will be subject to Taxes, and (ii) the amount, if any, expressed as a
negative number, that resulted in a reduction of the Approved OEB
Rates for that Fiscal Year on account of any projected savings of Income
Taxes or Capital Taxes arising from a forecasted Taxable Loss for that
Fiscal Year.

(o) “Approved Tax Percentage” for a Fiscal Year means the percentage
obtained by dividing (i) the Approved Tax Amount for that Fiscal Year,
by (ii) the Approved Taxable Income (Loss) for that Fiscal Year.
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(p) “Approved Taxable Income (Loss)” for a Fiscal Year means (i) the
forecasted Taxable Income, expressed as a positive number, considered
by the OEB in determining the Approved OEB Rates for that Fiscal
Year, or (ii) the forecasted Taxable Loss, expressed as a negative
number, considered by the OEB in determining the Approved OEB
Rates for that Fiscal Year.

(q) “ARC” means the Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity
Distributors and Transmitters issued by the OEB in accordance with the
Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.

(r) “Arm’s Length” has the meaning that it has for purposes of the Income
Tax Act.

(s) “BtM LP Promissory Note” means that certain promissory note dated
, 2014 in the principal amount of $ issued by the Partnership to the
General Partner.

(t) “BtM Project Assets” means the assets comprising the Line, including
the Line Property Rights, but excluding the Interconnection Assets and
the Fiber.

(u) “BtM Project Asset Value” means the net book value of the BtM
Project Assets which are in-service at Closing.

(v) “Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on
which the Toronto-Dominion Bank in Toronto is open for commercial
banking business during normal banking hours.

(w) “Buying Partner” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.4.

(x) “Capital Account” means the capital account for each Partner referred
to in Section 5.1.

(y) “Capital Taxes” means any federal, provincial or local capital taxes
calculated by reference either directly or indirectly to the assets,
liabilities, or working capital of the Partnership, together with any
interest, penalties or additions to such taxes and including, for greater
certainty, all payments to the Province of Ontario in lieu of any of the
foregoing and grants to communities or municipalities in lieu of any of
the foregoing.

(z) “Change of Control” means any assignment or other disposition of the
shares or units of a Partner or of any Person that controls, directly or
indirectly, that Partner that results in a change of control of that Partner
or that Person.

(aa) “Claims” means all losses, costs, damages, expenses, injuries,
liabilities, claims, demands and penalties, including reasonable legal
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fees, experts’ fees and court costs, whether incurred through settlement
or otherwise, and interest on each of these items, in each case whether
arising prior to or after the termination of this Agreement.

(bb) “Closing” means the completion of the transactions set out in Section
3.4 of the Master Implementation Agreement.

(cc) “Declaration” means the declaration filed with the Registrar, forming
the Partnership pursuant to the Limited Partnerships Act, as amended
from time to time.

(dd) “Decommissioning Work” means all work necessary for the
decommissioning of the Line in accordance with Applicable Laws,
Project Agreements and Project Approvals.

(ee) “Deemed Year End” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.17.

(ff) “Default Amount” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.3.

(gg) “Default Amount Notice” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.3(a).

(hh) “Defaulting Partner” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.1(a).

(ii) “Delta Income” for a Fiscal Year means the (positive or negative)
amount determined by subtracting the Approved Net Income (Loss) for
that Fiscal Year, from the Net Income (or, if applicable, the Net Loss
expressed as a negative number) for that Fiscal Year.

(jj) “Designated Advance” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(c)(ii).

(kk) “Designated Distribution” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(c)(i).

(ll) “Designated Distribution Net Income Shortfall” at any time means
the amount, if any, by which the aggregate amount of the Designated
Distributions that have been paid to the General Partner pursuant to
Section 5.13 prior to that time exceed the aggregate amount of the Net
Income of the Partnership that has been allocated to the General Partner
pursuant to Section 5.16(b)(i) prior to that time.

(mm) “Designated Distribution Note” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(c)(i).

(nn) “Designated Distribution Taxable Income Shortfall” at any time
means the amount, if any, by which the aggregate amount of the
Designated Distributions that have been paid to the General Partner
pursuant to Section 5.13 prior to that time exceed the aggregate amount
of the Taxable Income of the Partnership that has been allocated to the
General Partner pursuant to Section 5.16(a)(i) prior to that time.
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(oo) “Dispute” any dispute, disagreement or difference of opinion
concerning this Agreement or the performance or interpretation thereof.

(pp) “Distributable Cash” means available cash of the Partnership after
paying (i) all amounts owing under the Operations Agreement, (ii) debt
service obligations in respect of all debt obligations owed by the
Partnership, (iii) Designated Advances and amounts in satisfaction of
Designated Distribution Notes pursuant to Section 5.13(e)(i)(2) (and
after receiving amounts in satisfaction of Designated Advances due by
the General Partner pursuant to Section 5.13(e)(ii)(2)), and (iv) any
transaction costs or other costs borne by HONI and the General Partner
in respect of the transactions contemplated in the Master
Implementation Agreement, the BtM Project Assets or the Partnership
to the extent such costs are collected in the Approved OEB Rates.

(qq) “Distribution” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.13(c)(iii).

(rr) “Distribution Note” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.13(c)(iv).

(ss) “Dollars” or “$” means Canadian dollars, being the lawful currency of
Canada.

(tt) “Due Date” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.10(a)(iv).

(uu) “Effective Date” means the [] day of [], 2014.

(vv) “Electricity Act” means Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario).

(ww) “Equity Contribution” means the amount of money, or the value of
property or assets (as agreed by the Parties), contributed to the capital of
the Partnership by a Partner from time to time.

(xx) “Equity Contribution Request” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.9.

(yy) “Event of Default” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.1(a).

(zz) “Excess ARC Costs” means that portion of the Excess Costs which are
incurred or paid as a result of a rate or rates charged by the Affiliate of
the General Partner being greater than the rate permitted under the ARC.

(aaa) “Excess Costs” means the amount by which (i) an amount paid by the
General Partner on behalf of the Partnership to an Affiliate of the
General Partner or a cost incurred by the General Partner under an
agreement with an Affiliate of the General Partner, exceeds (ii) the
amount recoverable by the Partnership under the Approved OEB Rates.

(bbb) “Excess Non-GUP Costs” means that portion of the Excess Costs
which are incurred or paid as a result of services provided by the



- 7 -

LEGAL_1:23010826.12

Affiliate of the General Partner not being performed in accordance with
Good Utility Practice.

(ccc) “Fair Market Value” means, with respect to Units, the price of the
Units as determined in an open and unrestricted market between
informed prudent parties, acting at Arm’s Length and under no
compulsion to act, expressed in terms of money or money’s worth.

(ddd) “Fiber” means the fiber optic cable attached to the transmission towers
along the Line which forms part of the HONI protection and control
network and is owned by HONI.

(eee) “FIPPA” has the meaning given to it in Section 14.1.

(fff) “Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Partnership determined in
accordance with Section 3.5.

(ggg) “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in effect in the
United States of America, including those approved or recommended
from time to time by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or any
successor institution applicable as of the date on which such calculation,
position or determination is made, taken or required to be made or taken
or such other accounting principles required by any ruling of the OEB
applicable to the Partnership.

(hhh) “General Partner” means, at any time, any Party who has executed this
Agreement as a general partner or who has otherwise agreed to be bound
by the terms of this Agreement as a general partner of the Partnership.
The initial General Partner is [Bruce-to-Milton GP Inc.].

(iii) “Good Utility Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts
engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility
industry in North America during the relevant time period, or any of the
practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise of reasonable
judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made,
could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a
reasonable cost consistent with good business practices, reliability,
safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is not intended to be
limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all
others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally
accepted in North America.

(jjj) “Governmental Authority” means any domestic or foreign
government, including, any federal, provincial, state, territorial, county,
municipal or local government, and any government established court,
agency, tribunal, commission or other authority exercising or purporting
to exercise executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative
functions of, or respecting, government.
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(kkk) “GST/HST” means goods and services tax imposed under Part IX of the
Excise Tax Act (Canada) as amended, or any successor or parallel
legislation, including provincial legislation providing for a value added
or ad valorem tax on goods and services.

(lll) “HONI” means Hydro One Networks Inc.

(mmm) “HOI BtM Taxes” means Income Taxes and Capital Taxes attributable
to the General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner in respect
of the Partnership.

(nnn) “HONI Initial Costs” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.7.

(ooo) “Hydro One” means Hydro One Inc.

(ppp) “Income Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada).

(qqq) “Income Taxes” means any federal, provincial, municipal or foreign
Taxes (i) based upon, measured by or calculated with respect to, net
income, income as specially defined, earnings, profits or selected items
of income, earnings or profits, or (ii) based upon, measured by or
calculated with respect to multiple bases if one or more of the bases on
which such Taxes may be based, measured by or calculated with respect
to, is described in paragraph (i) above, in each case together with any
interest, penalties or additions to such Taxes and including, for greater
certainty, all payments to the Province of Ontario in lieu of any of the
foregoing and grants to communities or municipalities in lieu of any of
the foregoing.

(rrr) “Indemnified Group” has the meaning given to it in Section 8.3(a).

(sss) “Indian Act” means the Indian Act (Canada).

(ttt) “Initial Partnership Agreement” has the meaning given to it in Recital
B.

(uuu) “Interconnection Assets” means all sub-station facilities and assets
relating to the interconnection of the Line to HONI’s transmission
system.

(vvv) “Lending Partner” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.10(f).

(www) “Limited Partner” means, at any time, any Party who has executed this
Agreement as a limited partner or who has otherwise agreed to be bound
by the terms of this Agreement as a limited partner of the Partnership,
including [SON BtM Partner] and [HOI BtM Partner].

(xxx) “Limited Partnerships Act” means the Limited Partnerships Act
(Ontario).
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(yyy) “Line” has the meaning given to it in Recital C, and for greater certainty
the Line does not include the Interconnection Assets or the Fiber.

(zzz) “Line Property Rights” means the interests in real property or licenses
over real property interests in respect of the Line which are required to
operate and maintain the BtM Project Assets and which were transferred
or licensed to the Partnership by HONI.

(aaaa) “Losses” means in respect of a Person and in relation to a matter, any
and all losses, damages, costs, expenses, charges (including all
penalties, assessments and fines) which that Person suffers, sustains,
pays or incurs in connection with that matter and includes reasonable
costs of legal counsel (on a solicitor and his own client basis) and other
professional advisors and consultants and reasonable costs of
investigating and defending Claims arising from the matter if those
Claims are sustained and also includes interest, penalties, Taxes (other
than Income Taxes) on a settlement payment or damage award in
respect of that matter but does not include consequential or indirect
losses or loss of profit.

(bbbb) “Master Implementation Agreement” means the Anishnaabekiing
Naagnigewin Agreement dated June 18, 2012 between the SON and
HONI, as amended and supplemented by the Side Letter.

(cccc) “Negative Tax Allowance” for a Fiscal Year means (i) if the Tax
Allowance for that Fiscal Year is less than zero, the absolute value of
the Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year; or (ii) if the Tax Allowance for
that Fiscal Year is greater than zero, nil.

(dddd) “Net Income” and “Net Loss” means net income or net loss of the
Partnership in any Fiscal Year determined in accordance with GAAP.

(eeee) “Non-Electing Partner” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.10(d).

(ffff) “OEB” means the Ontario Energy Board.

(gggg) “Operating Budget” means the operating budget of the General Partner
for a Fiscal Year which provides for all costs and expenses to be
incurred by the General Partner in connection with its performance of its
duties under this Agreement.

(hhhh) “Operations Agreement” has the meaning given to it in Section 4.3.

(iiii) “Partner” means, at any time, any Person who has executed this
Agreement or who has otherwise agreed to be bound as a Party to this
Agreement and includes any General Partner and any Limited Partner.
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(jjjj) “Partnership” means “[Bruce-to-Milton L.P.]” [NTD: Confirm
name], a limited partnership formed under the laws of the Province of
Ontario.

(kkkk) “Partnership Account” means the bank account opened in the name of
the Partnership by the General Partner pursuant to Section 6.14.

(llll) “Partnership Assets” means the BtM Project Assets, the Project
Approvals, the Project Agreements, all rights and benefits received or
receivable by the Partnership under the Project Agreements and any
other undertaking, property or assets acquired from time to time by or
on behalf of the Partnership, including the rights or benefits attached
thereto or associated therewith but, for greater clarity, excluding the
Interconnection Assets.

(mmmm) “Partnership Interest” means, in respect of a Partner at any time, such
Partner’s ownership interest in the Partnership, expressed as a
percentage, and calculated from time to time by the General Partner in
accordance with Section 5.6.

(nnnn) “Partnership Records” has the meaning given to it in Section 10.2(a).

(oooo) “Party” means a party to this Agreement and “Parties” means all of
them, as the context requires.

(pppp) “Person” means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership,
corporation or company, with or without share capital, trust, foundation,
first nation, Indian band, joint venture, Governmental Authority or any
other incorporated or unincorporated entity or association of any nature.

(qqqq) “Positive Tax Allowance” in respect of a Fiscal Year means (i) if the
Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year is greater than zero, the Tax
Allowance for that Fiscal Year, or (ii) if the Tax Allowance for that
Fiscal Year is less than zero, nil.

(rrrr) “Project Agreements” means this Agreement and all other agreements
relating to the BtM Project Assets to which the Partnership (or an
authorized agent of the Partnership) is now, or may in the future
become, a party, including the Operations Agreement and any other
service agreements with Partners.

(ssss) “Project Approvals” means all approvals, authorizations, consents,
permits, licences, judgments, rulings, directives, ordinances, decrees,
registrations and filings required for the ownership and operation of the
BtM Project Assets from any Governmental Authority.

(tttt) “Purchasing Partner” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.10(h).
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(uuuu) “Registrar” has the meaning given to that term in the Limited
Partnerships Act.

(vvvv) “Side Letter” means the letter agreement dated December , 2012
between the SON, HONI and Hydro One.

(wwww) “SON” means, collectively, Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and
Chippewas of Nawash First Nation.

(xxxx) “SON Capital Call Loan Amount” has the meaning given to it in
Section 5.10(f).

(yyyy) “SON Capital Call Loan Deadline” has the meaning given to it in
Section 5.10(f).

(zzzz) “Tax Allowance” for a Fiscal Year means the amount determined by
the formula:

A + (B x C)

where

A is equal to the Approved Tax Amount for that Fiscal Year;

B is equal to the Delta Income for that Fiscal Year; and

C is equal to the Approved Tax Percentage for that Fiscal Year.

(aaaaa) “Tax Filings” means all returns, reports, declarations, elections, notices,
filings, forms, statements and other documents (whether in tangible,
electronic or other form) and including any amendments, schedules,
attachments, supplements, appendices and exhibits thereto, made,
prepared, filed or required to be made, prepared or filed by applicable
law in respect of Taxes.

(bbbbb) “Taxable Corporation” in any Fiscal Year means a corporation that is
subject to Income Taxes in respect of that Fiscal Year on income from
the Partnership, including for greater certainty, under the Electricity Act.

(ccccc) “Taxable Income” and “Taxable Loss” means the net income or net
loss of the Partnership for purposes of the Income Tax Act in any Fiscal
Year;

(ddddd) “Taxes” means all federal, provincial, state, territorial, municipal or
foreign taxes of any nature or kind whatsoever, including Income Taxes,
capital taxes, gross receipt taxes, gross revenue charges, environmental
taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, ad valorem taxes, goods and services taxes
(including the GST/HST), provincial sales and fuel taxes, value added
taxes, withholding taxes, excise taxes, transfer taxes (including land
transfer taxes), franchise and licence taxes, payroll taxes, employment
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taxes, Canada or Quebec pension plan premiums, social security
premiums, workers’ compensation premiums, stamp taxes, occupation
taxes, premium taxes, property taxes, municipal taxes, windfall profits
taxes, alternative or add-on minimum taxes, any customs duties or other
taxes, fees, imposts, assessments or charges of any kind whatsoever, all
payments to the Province of Ontario in lieu of any of the foregoing,
grants to communities or municipalities in lieu of any of the foregoing,
and all payments required to be made under the Electricity Act, together
with any interest and any penalties or additional amounts imposed by
any Governmental Authority, and any interest, penalties, fines,
additional taxes and additions to tax imposed with respect to the
foregoing.

(eeeee) “Term” has the meaning given to it in Section 2.1.

(fffff) “Third Party Transferee” has the meaning given to it in Section
5.13(d).

(ggggg) “Top-Up Equity Contribution” has the meaning given to it in
Section 5.10(d).

(hhhhh) “Transfer” or “Transferred” means any transfer, sale, exchange,
assignment, gift, bequest, disposition, mortgage, charge, pledge,
encumbrance, hypothecation, alienation, grant of security interest or
other arrangement by which possession, legal title or beneficial
ownership of all or any portion of Units by a Partner to any Person
whether voluntary, involuntary, by operation of law or in accordance
with this Agreement.

(iiiii) “Unanimous Consent of the Partners” means the approval of all of the
Partners, as expressed by voting at a meeting of the Partnership or by a
written instrument signed in one or more counterparts by all of the
Partners.

(jjjjj) “Unit Certificate” means a unit certificate issued to a Partner as
evidence of its ownership of Units, which certificate shall be in the form
approved by the General Partner from time to time.

(kkkkk) “Unit” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.3(a).

(lllll) “Unrecovered HONI Costs” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.7.

1.2 Headings and Table of Contents

The division of this Agreement into sections and the insertion of headings are for convenience of
reference only and are not to affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.
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1.3 References

Unless otherwise specified, references in this Agreement to sections and Schedules are to
sections of, and schedules to, this Agreement.

Each reference to a statute in this Agreement is deemed to be a reference to that statute, and to
the regulations made under that statute, all as amended or re-enacted from time to time and to
any statute or regulation that supplements or supersedes such statute or regulation.

1.4 Expanded Definitions

Unless otherwise specified, words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa and
words importing gender include all genders. The term “including” means “including without
limitation”, and the terms “include”, “includes” and “included” have similar meanings. Any
reference in this Agreement to any other agreement is deemed to include a reference to that other
agreement as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time.

1.5 Time of Day

Unless otherwise specified, references to the time of day or a date mean the local time or date in
Toronto, Ontario.

1.6 Schedules

The following Schedules are attached to and form part of this Agreement:

Schedule 4.3 Operations Agreement Terms

Schedule 5.4 Partnership Interests

Schedule 9.4 Principles of Valuation

Schedule 11.1 Form of Counterpart

Schedule 11.2 Form of Assignment

ARTICLE 2
TERM

2.1 Term

This Agreement will be effective from the Effective Date and, unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement or by mutual agreement of all of the Partners, will
continue until the dissolution of the Partnership in accordance with the terms of this Agreement
following the completion of the Decommissioning Work (the “Term”).
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ARTICLE 3
THE PARTNERSHIP

3.1 Formation of the Partnership

The Partnership has been formed as a limited partnership in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Ontario and the provisions of this Agreement. The Partnership is effective as a
limited partnership from the date on which the Declaration was registered with the Registrar in
accordance with the Limited Partnerships Act. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the
General Partner of the Partnership will be [Bruce-to-Milton GP Inc.] and the Limited Partners
of the Partnership will be [HOI BtM Partner and SON BtM Partner].

3.2 Filing of Changes to the Declaration

The General Partner will execute and file any changes to the Declaration that may be required
from time to time under the Limited Partnerships Act in connection with the Partnership.

3.3 Name

The name of the Partnership will be “[Bruce-to-Milton L.P.]” or such other name or names as
the General Partner may from time to time select with the Unanimous Consent of the Partners,
provided that the General Partner files any change to the Declaration required by the Limited
Partnerships Act.

3.4 Offices

The registered and principal offices of the Partnership and the General Partner will be at 483 Bay
Street, 15th Floor, North Tower, Toronto, Ontario, M5G 2P5 and, thereafter, at such place or at
such other place or places as the General Partner may from time to time designate. The General
Partner will provide written notice of any change in its or the Partnership’s offices to each other
Partner.

3.5 Fiscal Year

The first Fiscal Year of the Partnership will commence on the date of the Declaration and will
end on December 31, [2014]. Thereafter each Fiscal Year of the Partnership will commence on
January 1 in each year during the Term and end on December 31 in that year, unless otherwise
established by the General Partner. The last Fiscal Year will end on the date of the dissolution or
other termination of the Partnership.

3.6 Representations and Warranties of Partners

Each Partner represents, warrants, covenants and agrees with each of the other Partners with
respect to itself only that on the date of this Agreement and for so long as this Agreement is in
effect:

(a) it is a corporation existing under the laws of Ontario;

(b) that it is not a “non-resident” of Canada for the purposes of the Income Tax Act
and, if such Partner is a partnership, that such partnership is a Canadian
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partnership for purposes of the Income Tax Act and agrees that it will maintain
such status for so long as it retains a Partnership Interest;

(c) that it has the power and capacity to own or lease its properties and assets and to
carry on its business as it is currently being conducted and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement and that such obligations do not conflict with
nor will they result in a breach of any of its constating documents, by-laws or any
agreements or approvals by which it is bound;

(d) that it has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery and
performance by it of this Agreement, including SON BtM Partner obtaining any
approvals which are appropriate, sufficient and consistent with all applicable
governance practices of the SON BtM Partner whether under the Indian Act or by
way of traditional practice, and this Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and
binding obligation enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as
enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or similar laws now or hereafter in effect affecting the enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law); and

(e) that it has made all necessary corporate, partnership and tax filings required to be
made by it in accordance with Applicable Laws and it has obtained all necessary
approvals of any Governmental Authority in connection with its execution of this
Agreement and no consents or approvals are required from any Governmental
Authority or any other third party in order for it to enter into and perform its
obligations under this Agreement.

Each Partner may, from time to time, request reasonable evidence from any other Partner
(including a copy of the resolution specifically authorizing the entering into of this Agreement)
in order to confirm that such other Partner is, and continues to remain, in compliance with the
above representations and warranties during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4
BUSINESS OF THE PARTNERSHIP

4.1 Powers of the Partnership

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Partnership will have the power to do any
and every act and thing necessary, proper, convenient, desirable, ancillary or incidental to the
pursuit or accomplishment of its business.

4.2 Business of the Partnership

The business of the Partnership will be:

(a) the operation, management and maintenance of the BtM Project Assets, including
by entering into and performing its obligations under the Project Approvals and
the Project Agreements;
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(b) to borrow money, incur debt, guarantee indebtedness and obligations of any
Person, grant indemnities, grant mortgages, charges and other security interests,
and in connection with the foregoing, enter into loan agreements, guarantees,
promissory notes, mortgages, trust deeds, debentures, pledges and other security
documents in order to finance the Line and carry on the business;

(c) investing funds not immediately required for operations;

(d) engaging in such other activities incidental or ancillary to the foregoing as the
General Partner deems advisable or necessary; and

(e) such Decommissioning Work as may be required from time to time.

4.3 Operations Agreement with Partners

(a) The General Partner on behalf of the Partnership, and the General Partner on its
own behalf will enter into an operations services and management services
agreement (the “Operations Agreement”) with an Affiliate of the General
Partner, for such Affiliate of the General Partner to operate and maintain the BtM
Project Assets and Line, as further described and incorporating terms substantially
in accordance with those set out in Schedule 4.3.

(b) From time to time, the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership, and the
General Partner on its own behalf may contract with HONI or its Affiliates for the
provision of additional services. Unless the Parties agree otherwise, the
Partnership will indemnify and save harmless HONI or such Affiliates providing
such additional services from and against any and all Claims that HONI or such
Affiliates may suffer, sustain or incur in connection with the provision of such
services except to the extent caused or arising from the gross negligence or wilful
misconduct of HONI or such Affiliates, as applicable.

4.4 Other Business Interests

Except as may be expressly set out in this Agreement, the freedom of a Limited Partner or its
Affiliates, or of the Affiliates of the General Partner, to conduct any business or activity
whatsoever as it sees fit will not be restricted in any way by this Agreement. No Limited Partner
owes any other Partner a duty to offer it any business opportunity and nothing in this Agreement
confers upon any Partner the right to participate in such opportunity. Each Limited Partner and
its Affiliates, and the Affiliates of the General Partner, will be free to engage or invest in any
business opportunity including, without limitation, any business opportunity which is similar to
or which competes with the business of the Partnership, including any businesses described in
the Project Agreements.
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ARTICLE 5
CONTRIBUTIONS, ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

5.1 Capital Account

The General Partner will establish and maintain a separate Capital Account for each Partner,
reflecting each Partner’s total Equity Contributions, in the books of account of the Partnership.
Each Partner’s Capital Account (a) shall be increased by (i) the amount of any Additional Equity
Contribution made pursuant to Section 5.10(a) and (ii) the amount of any allocation of Net
Income made to the Partner pursuant to Section 5.16 and (b) shall be decreased by (i) the amount
of any Additional Equity Contribution returned to a Partner pursuant to Section 5.10(i), (ii) the
amount of any allocation of Net Loss made to the Partner pursuant to Section 5.16 and (iii) the
amount of any distribution to that Partner pursuant to Section 5.13.

5.2 Initial Equity Contribution

Each Partner has made initial Equity Contributions to the capital of the Partnership in the
following amounts and the following numbers of Units have been issued to the Partners in
respect of such Equity Contributions:

Partner Initial Equity
Contribution

Units

HOI BtM Partner $ 

SON BtM Partner $ 

General Partner $ 

5.3 Partnership Units

(a) The interest of the Partners in the Partnership shall be divided into and
represented by an unlimited number of units (each a “Unit”), each
representing a proportionate share of the aggregate interests of the
Partners in the Partnership.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Sections 5.13, 5.16 and 6.16, each
issued and outstanding Unit is identical to each other one with respect to
all matters including:

(i) the right to receive distributions from the Partnership;

(ii) the allocation of net income, net loss, taxable income and tax losses;

(iii) voting rights; and

(iv) rights on liquidation.
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5.4 Unit Certificates

Each Partner shall be issued a Unit Certificate specifying the number of Units held by such
Partner. Every Unit Certificate must be signed by at least one authorized signatory of the
General Partner.

5.5 Record of Partnership Interests and Units

The initial Partnership Interests of and Units held by the Partners is set out on Schedule 5.5. The
General Partner will amend Schedule 5.5:

(a) following the deemed contribution of HONI Initial Costs in accordance
with Section 5.7;

(b) following the deemed contribution of land transfer taxes in accordance
with Section 5.8;

(c) following an Additional Equity Contribution in accordance with Section
5.10; and

(d) following any Transfer of Units as permitted by this Agreement,

to reflect any changes in the Partners, the number of Units they hold or their Partnership
Interests, calculated in accordance with Section 5.6. The General Partner will immediately after
such amendment provide a copy of the amended Schedule 5.5 to each of the other Partners.
Schedule 5.5, as amended from time to time in accordance with the provisions of this Section
5.5, absent error, will indicate the Partnership Interests of the Partners and the number of Units
held by the Partners. If at any time a Partner disputes the General Partner’s calculation of its
Partnership Interest, it will so advise the General Partner and each of the other Partners in
writing. Any Dispute with respect to Schedule 5.5 will be resolved in accordance with the
provisions set forth in Article 13.

5.6 Calculation of Partnership Interests

The Partnership Interest of a Partner at any time will be the percentage that the number of Units
held by such Partner is of the aggregate number of Units held by all Partners as at such date.

5.7 HONI Initial Costs

Prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, the General Partner, an Affiliate of the General
Partner or the Partnership incurred costs, other than land transfer tax costs, in connection with
the Partnership, the BtM Project Assets, and the transactions contemplated in the Master
Implementation Agreement (the “HONI Initial Costs”). In the event the HONI Initial Costs are
not fully recoverable or recovered in the Approved OEB Rates, that part of such HONI Initial
Costs that: (i) has been incurred by the Partnership shall be shared by the Partners pro rata to the
number of Units held by the Partners as of Closing, and (ii) that has been incurred by the General
Partner or an Affiliate of the General Partner and has not been included in the computation of the
BtM Project Asset Value and has not otherwise been included in computing the equity
contributed to the Partnership by the General Partner or an Affiliate of the General Partner (the
“Unrecovered HONI Costs”), shall be deemed to be an Equity Contribution by the General
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Partner. The General Partner will credit the General Partner’s Capital Account with the fair
market value of the Unrecovered HONI Costs and issue the appropriate number of Units to the
General Partner to reflect such deemed Equity Contribution. All such HONI Initial Costs which
are not included in the Approved OEB Rates shall be provided to SON BtM Partner for its
review, and if disputed, shall be subject to the Dispute resolution mechanisms provided in Article
13.

5.8 Land Transfer Taxes

The Partners agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause any land transfer taxes
(including deferred taxes) imposed on the acquisition of the BtM Project Assets by the
Partnership or the acquisition by SON BtM Partner of its Units to be recovered in the Approved
OEB Rates. Where the recovery of such land transfer tax costs are included in the Approved
OEB Rates, the amount of any such land transfer tax paid or payable: (i) by the General Partner
or HOI BtM Partner shall be deemed to be an Equity Contribution to the Partnership by the
General Partner, and (ii) by SON BtM Partner shall be deemed to be an Equity Contribution to
the Partnership by SON BtM Partner, and the General Partner will credit the relevant Partner’s
Capital Account with the amount of such land transfer tax paid or payable by such Partner and, if
applicable, will issue the appropriate number of Units to such Partner to reflect such deemed
Equity Contribution. Where the recovery of such land transfer tax costs are not included in the
Approved OEB Rates, each Partner shall be responsible for its share of such land transfer tax
costs pro rata to the number of Units held by the Partners as of Closing.

5.9 Additional Funding Requirements

From time to time during the Term, the Partnership will require additional funds above any
reserves to fund costs incurred by the Partnership, or the General Partner on behalf of the
Partnership, for activities in furtherance of the business of the Partnership in respect of the BtM
Project Assets, including management, upgrading, repair and refurbishment costs, insurance
costs, costs for decommissioning, and liabilities incurred by the Partnership in operating and
maintaining the BtM Project Assets (including amounts incurred in connection with its
engagement of an Affiliate of the General Partner under the Operations Agreement). If the
Partnership is unable to fund the equity portion of such costs (taking into consideration the
deemed debt-to-equity capital structure reflected in the Approved OEB Rates) from short term
credit facilities or other immediately available sources, the General Partner may issue a notice to
the Partners requesting Equity Contributions (an “Equity Contribution Request”) to provide
additional Equity Contributions in proportion to their respective Partnership Interests at the time
of the Equity Contribution Request (an “Additional Equity Contribution”) in accordance with
the procedures set out in Section 5.10.

5.10 Additional Equity Contributions and Dilution

Any Additional Equity Contributions required to be made by the Partners will be made as
follows:

(a) the General Partner will request an Additional Equity Contribution
simultaneously from each of the Partners by providing each Partner with
an Equity Contribution Request setting out:
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(i) the aggregate amount of the Additional Equity Contributions;

(ii) the amount of the Partner’s Additional Equity Contribution, which
amount will be calculated, for each Partner, as that Partner’s
Partnership Interest multiplied by the total amount of additional
funds requested in the Equity Contribution Request;

(iii) the number and subscription price of the Units to be issued to that
Partner in consideration for its Additional Equity Contribution, such
number of Units to be equal to the number of Units (rounded if
necessary to the lower whole number) obtained by dividing the
amount of the Additional Equity Contribution to be made by such
Partner by the subscription price for each Unit, which subscription
price will be the Fair Market Value;

(iv) the date on which the Additional Equity Contribution is required to
be delivered to the Partnership (the “Due Date”), provided that the
Due Date will be no less than 180 days and no more than 270 days
following receipt or deemed receipt of the Equity Contribution
Request by the Partner, except in the case of emergencies or
otherwise unplanned capital requirements, as determined in the sole
discretion of the General Partner, in which case the Due Date will
be no less than twenty (20) Business Days and no more than thirty
(30) Business Days following receipt or deemed receipt of the
Equity Contribution Request by the Partner; and

(v) whether the amounts set out in the Equity Contribution Request are
to be wired or otherwise deposited to the Partnership Account or to
another account;

(b) upon receipt of a Partner’s Additional Equity Contribution, the General
Partner will credit that Partner’s Capital Account with the amount of its
Additional Equity Contribution and issue the appropriate number of
Units to such Partner;

(c) a Partner is free to elect whether or not to make all or part of its
Additional Equity Contribution, provided that SON BtM Partner may
not make any Additional Equity Contribution to the extent that such
Additional Equity Contribution would result in SON BtM Partner
having more than a % [NTD: to be the initial “SON Equity Ratio”,
as determined in accordance with the Master Implementation
Agreement] Partnership Interest in the Partnership, and, for greater
certainty, will not be a Defaulting Partner if such Partner elects not to
make all or part of its Additional Equity Contribution; however, it will
be a Defaulting Partner if it has indicated in a notice to the other
Partners that it has elected to make all or part of its Additional Equity
Contribution and then fails to do so by the Due Date. A Partner must
provide notice of this election to the other Partners within fifteen (15)
days of its receipt of an Equity Contribution Request. A Partner who
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fails to make an election within fifteen (15) Business Days of its receipt
of an Equity Contribution Request will be deemed to have elected not to
make its Additional Equity Contribution;

(d) if any Partner other than the General Partner chooses not to make all or
part of its Additional Equity Contribution (a “Non-Electing Partner”),
then the General Partner, provided that it has elected to make its full
Additional Equity Contribution, may within five (5) Business Days of
the Due Date make a further payment to fund all or part of the shortfall
arising from the Non-Electing Partner’s failure to make its Additional
Equity Contribution (a “Top-Up Equity Contribution”). The amount
of the Top-Up Equity Contribution shall be used to subscribe for
additional Units at the subscription price set out in the Equity
Contribution Request and will be credited to the General Partner’s
Capital Account;

(e) each Non-Electing Partner acknowledges that in electing not to make its
Additional Equity Contribution, provided the other Partners make their
Additional Equity Contribution, there will be a dilution of such Non-
Electing Partner’s Partnership Interest as between the other Partners and
the Non-Electing Partner, and the Non-Electing Partner will be subject
to further dilution in the event a Top-Up Equity Contribution is made by
the General Partner;

(f) if SON BtM Partner elects to make all or part of its Additional Equity
Contribution, provided that it has used commercially reasonable efforts
to secure its own funds or third party financing to make its Additional
Equity Contribution, SON BtM Partner may, prior to the Due Date, by
written notice to the General Partner and HOI BtM Partner, elect to
borrow the amount of its Additional Equity Contribution (the “SON
Capital Call Loan Amount”) from the General Partner or HOI BtM
Partner, as determined by the General Partner (such Partner, the
“Lending Partner”), for a period ending no later than the date that is
one year from the Due Date (the “SON Capital Call Loan Deadline”).
The SON BtM Partner will be required to repay to the Lending Partner
prior to the SON Capital Call Loan Deadline:

(i) the SON Capital Call Loan Amount, plus

(ii) interest on the SON Capital Call Loan Amount at a rate equal to the
return-on-equity percentage reflected in the Approved OEB Rates,
calculated from the Due Date to the date of repayment;

(g) if any amount of the SON Capital Call Loan Amount remains
outstanding by the SON Capital Call Loan Deadline:

(i) the Units issued to SON BtM Partner which were financed by the
unpaid amount of the SON Capital Call Loan Amount will
immediately be Transferred to the Lending Partner in full payment
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and satisfaction of the unpaid amount of the SON Capital Call Loan
Amount and the General Partner will cause the register recording
the Units to be amended accordingly, and

(ii) SON BtM Partner hereby directs the General Partner to pay any
Advances payable to SON BtM Partner to the Lending Partner on
account of the interest owing on the SON Capital Call Loan
Amount pursuant to Section 5.10(f)(ii) that has not been paid by the
SON Capital Call Loan Deadline until the aggregate amount of such
directed Advances equals the total amount of the interest that is so
owed. For greater certainty, amounts so paid to the Lending Partner
do not reduce the balance of the SON Capital Call Loan Amount
outstanding;

(h) if at any time SON BtM Partner’s Partnership Interest falls below 5%,
HOI BtM Partner or the General Partner, as determined by the General
Partner (such Partner, the “Purchasing Partner”), shall have the option
to purchase all, and not less than all, of SON BtM Partner’s Units for a
price equal to the Fair Market Value of SON BtM Partner’s Units at the
date such option is exercised, determined in accordance with the
principles of valuation set forth in Schedule 9.4. The purchase and sale
will be conducted in accordance with the terms of Section 9.5, with all
references to the “Buying Partner” being deemed to be references to
the “Purchasing Partner”;

(i) within 75 days following the end of each Fiscal Year, the General
Partner shall determine if the Partnership is in compliance with the
deemed debt-to-equity capital structure reflected in the Approved OEB
Rates. If the General Partner determines that the Partnership has excess
capital, each Partner who made an Additional Equity Contribution shall
be entitled to the return of the portion of its Additional Equity
Contribution necessary for the Partnership to comply with its deemed
debt-to-equity capital structure, in proportion to the percentage of the
aggregate amount of Additional Equity Contributions made by such
Partner. Any such return of Equity Contributions shall be made prior to
any Designated Distributions pursuant to Section 5.13(c); and

(j) notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section, if the
General Partner makes an Equity Contribution Request to the Partners,
HOI BtM Partner shall be required to make an Additional Equity
Contribution in such amount as shall be necessary to maintain a
Partnership Interest of at least 0.10%.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section, the remedies available under
this Section 5.10 are in addition to, and in no way a limitation on, any and all other remedies
available under this Agreement or otherwise existing at law or in equity.
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5.11 No Voluntary Equity Contributions

No Partner will make any additional voluntary Equity Contributions to the Partnership except
pursuant to an Equity Contribution Request from the General Partner or pursuant to a deemed
Equity Contribution in accordance with Section 5.7 or Section 5.8.

5.12 Interest

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Partner is entitled to interest on its Equity
Contributions or its Capital Account.

5.13 Distributions

(a) The General Partner shall determine quarterly on a date to be
determined by the General Partner:

(i) the forecasted Positive Tax Allowance for that fiscal quarter;

(ii) the forecasted Negative Tax Allowance for that fiscal quarter; and

(iii) the forecasted Distributable Cash of the Partnership for that fiscal
quarter on the basis of a forecast operating budget of the Partnership
to be prepared by the General Partner, acting reasonably.

(b) Forthwith after the determinations referred in Section 5.13(a) have been
made, the Partnership shall:

(i) make an advance (a “Designated Advance”) to the General Partner
in an amount equal to the amount determined under Section
5.13(a)(i); and

(ii) make advances (an “Advance”) to the Partners totalling an amount
equal to the amount determined under Section 5.13(a)(iii) as
follows:

(1) make an Advance to each Partner that is not a Taxable
Corporation in an amount equal to such Partner’s pro rata
share, determined based on the number of Units held by
such Partner as compared to the total issued and
outstanding Units, in each case at the time such Advances
are made, of the Adjusted Forecasted Distributable Cash
for that fiscal quarter; and

(2) make an Advance to each Partner that is a Taxable
Corporation in an amount equal to the amount by which
(A) such Partner’s pro rata share, determined based on the
number of Units held by such Partner as compared to the
total issued and outstanding Units at the time such
Advances are made, of the Adjusted Forecasted
Distributable Cash for that fiscal quarter, exceeds (B) such
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Partner’s pro rata share, based on the number of Units held
by such partner as compared to the total number of Units
held by Partners that are Taxable Corporations, in each case
at the time of such Advances, of the forecasted Negative
Tax Allowance for that fiscal quarter.

(c) Within 75 days following the end of each Fiscal Year:

(i) the General Partner shall determine:

(1) the Positive Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year;

(2) the Negative Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year; and

(3) the Distributable Cash of the Partnership for that Fiscal
Year (the “Annual Distributable Cash”);

(ii) the Partnership shall declare a distribution payable to the General
Partner (a “Designated Distribution”) in an amount equal to the
Positive Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year and shall issue a non-
interest bearing demand promissory note with a principal amount
equal to the amount of such distribution (a “Designated
Distribution Note”) to the General Partner in absolute payment and
satisfaction of such distribution;

(iii) the Partnership shall declare a distribution (a “Distribution”)
payable to each of the Partners calculated as follows:

(1) The Partnership shall declare a Distribution payable to each
Partner that was not a Taxable Corporation in such Fiscal
Year in an amount equal to such Partner’s pro rata share,
determined based on the number of Units held by such
Partner as compared to the total issued and outstanding
Units, in each case at the end of such Fiscal Year, of the
Adjusted Annual Distributable Cash of the Partnership for
that Fiscal Year; and

(2) The Partnership shall declare a Distribution payable to each
Partner that was a Taxable Corporation in such Fiscal Year
in an amount equal to the amount by which (A) such
Partner’s pro rata share, determined based on the number of
Units held by such Partner as compared to the total issued
and outstanding Units at the end of such Fiscal Year, of the
Adjusted Annual Distributable Cash of the Partnership for
that Fiscal Year, exceeds (B) such Partner’s pro rata share,
based on the number of Units held by such partner as
compared to the total number of Units held by Partners that
were Taxable Corporations, in each case at the end of such
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Fiscal Year, of the Negative Tax Allowance of the
Partnership for that Fiscal Year; and

(iv) the Partnership shall issue a non-interest bearing demand
promissory note to each Partner with a principal amount equal to
the amount of the Distribution payable to such Partner pursuant to
this Section 5.13(c) (a “Distribution Note”) and shall deliver such
Distribution Note in absolute payment and satisfaction of such
Distribution;

(d) In the event of a Transfer by a Partner of its Units to a Person other than
an Affiliate (a “Third Party Transferee”), the advances and
distributions on the Units held by the Third Party Transferee will
continue to be the advances and distributions calculated as if the Units
were held by the original Partner (subject to any disallowance by the
OEB as a result of the Transfer) until the revenue requirements of the
Third Party Transferee are reflected as part of the next OEB
transmission rate setting process.

(e) Within 90 days following the end of each Fiscal Year and, for greater
certainty, after the declaration of the distributions referred to in Section
5.13(c) and the issuance of the applicable Designated Distribution Note:

(i) if the aggregate amount of the Designated Advances made to the
General Partner pursuant to Section 5.13(b)(i) in such Fiscal Year
(the “Annual Designated Advance Amount”) is less than the
principal amount owing under the Designated Distribution Note in
respect of that Fiscal Year:

(1) such Designated Advances shall be deemed to be set off
against the portion of the Designated Distribution Note that
is equal to the Annual Designated Advance Amount such
that such Designated Advances shall be fully paid and
settled by such set off and the principal amount owing
under the Designated Distribution Note shall be reduced by
an amount equal to the Annual Designated Advance
Amount as a result of such set off; and

(2) the Partnership shall pay an amount to the General Partner
equal to remaining amount of the Designated Distribution
Note, in full payment and satisfaction thereof; and

(ii) if the Annual Designated Advance Amount is greater than the
principal amount owing under the Designated Distribution Note in
respect of that Fiscal Year:

(1) such portion of the Designated Advances as is equal to the
principal amount owing under the Designated Distribution
Note shall be deemed to be set off against the Designated
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Distribution Note such that such Designated Distribution
Note shall be fully paid and settled by such set off and the
Designated Advances shall be reduced by an amount equal
to the amount of the Designated Distribution Note as a
result of such set off; and

(2) the General Partner shall pay an amount to the Partnership
equal to remaining amount of the Designated Advances, in
full payment and satisfaction thereof.

(f) Within 90 days following the end of each Fiscal Year and, for greater
certainty, after the declaration of the Distributions referred to in Section
5.13(c) and the issuance of the applicable Distribution Notes:

(i) if the aggregate amount of the Advances made to a Partner pursuant
to Section 5.13(b)(ii) in such Fiscal Year (the “Annual Advance
Amount”) is less than the principal amount owing under the
Distribution Note to that Partner in respect of that Fiscal Year:

(1) such Advances shall be deemed to be set off against the
portion of the Distribution Note that is equal to the Annual
Advance Amount such that such Advances shall be fully
paid and settled by such set off and the principal amount
owing under the Distribution Note shall be reduced by an
amount equal to the Annual Advance Amount as a result of
such set off; and

(2) the Partnership shall pay an amount to that Partner equal to
remaining amount of the Distribution Note, in full payment
and satisfaction thereof; and

(ii) if the Annual Advance Amount made to a Partner is greater than the
Distribution Note to that Partner in respect of that Fiscal Year:

(1) such portion of the Advances as is equal to the principal
amount owing under the Distribution Note to that Partner
shall be deemed to be set off against the Distribution Note
to that Partner such that such Distribution Note shall be
fully paid and settled by such set off and such Advances
shall be reduced by an amount equal to the amount of the
Distribution Note to that Partner as a result of such set off;
and

(2) such Partner shall pay an amount to the Partnership equal to
remaining amount of the Advances, in full payment and
satisfaction thereof.

(g) SON BtM Partner shall take all reasonable steps to maintain its tax-
exempt status. In the event that SON BtM Partner is found to be taxable
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or a Third Party Transferee of the Units of a Limited Partner is taxable,
SON BtM Partner or such Third Party Transferee, subject to Section
5.13(d), shall be entitled to the Designated Advances and Designated
Distributions contemplated in this Section 5.13 in respect of the Income
Taxes and Capital Taxes attributable to SON BtM Partner or such Third
Party Transferee, as applicable, in respect of the Partnership, but only to
the extent that such Income Taxes and Capital Taxes have been reflected
in the Approved OEB Rates.

(h) Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 5.13, the Partnership will
not make any Advances, Designated Advances, Distributions or
Designated Distributions to the extent that after the Advance,
Designated Advance, Distribution or Designated Distribution, as the
case may be, is made, the Partnership will not have sufficient assets to
pay its liabilities as they become due. To the extent an Advance,
Designated Advance, Distribution or Designated Distribution in respect
of a particular Fiscal Year is not paid in accordance with this Section
5.13(h), such deferred Advance, Designated Advance, Distribution or
Designated Distribution, as the case may be, will be made before any
Advance, Designated Advance, Distribution or Designated Distribution
is made in respect of any subsequent Fiscal Year.

(i) Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 5.13, the Partnership will
not make any Advances, Designated Advances, Distributions or
Designated Distributions to the Partners:

(1) if the Advance, Designated Advance, Distribution or
Designated Distribution, as the case may be, would
constitute a breach of the Limited Partnerships Act or any
other Applicable Law; or

(2) if the Advance, Designated Advance, Distribution or
Designated Distribution, as the case may be, would be
inconsistent with or contrary to the terms of any
agreements by which the Partnership is bound or any
agreements between the Parties.

5.14 Return of Equity Contributions

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Partner is entitled to the return of any part of
its Equity Contributions.

5.15 Right to Withdraw Capital

Except for Distributions, Advances, Designated Advances or Designated Distributions made in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement or upon the dissolution of the Partnership in
accordance with Section 12.4, no Partner will have the right to withdraw any amount from the
Partnership or to receive any advances or distributions from the Partnership or any return, in
whole or in part, of any Equity Contribution or any reduction in its Capital Account.
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5.16 Allocation of Net Income or Net Loss and Taxable Income or Taxable Loss

(a) If there is Taxable Income for a Fiscal Year, such Taxable Income shall
be allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to the lesser of:

(1) such Taxable Income, and

(2) the amount of the Designated Distribution made to the
General Partner in respect of that Fiscal Year plus the
amount of any Designated Distribution Taxable Income
Shortfall outstanding as at the end of that Fiscal Year to the
extent not included in a previous allocation of Taxable
Income under this Section 5.16,

shall be allocated to the General Partner; and

(ii) the remainder of such Taxable Income, if any, shall be allocated to
the Partners pro rata based on the number of Units held by the
Partners at the end of such Fiscal Year.

(b) If there is both Net Income and Taxable Income for a Fiscal Year, such
Net Income shall be allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to the lesser of:

(1) such Net Income, and

(2) the amount of the Designated Distribution made to the
General Partner in respect of that Fiscal Year plus the
amount of any Designated Distribution Net Income
Shortfall outstanding as at the end of that Fiscal Year to the
extent not included in a previous allocation of Net Income
under this Section 5.16,

shall be allocated to the General Partner; and

(ii) the remainder of such Net Income, if any, shall be allocated to the
Partners pro rata based on the number of Units held by the Partners
at the end of such Fiscal Year.

(c) If there is both Net Income and a Taxable Loss for a Fiscal Year, such
Net Income shall be allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to the aggregate of the Net Income plus the
Negative Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year shall be allocated to
the Partners pro rata based on the number of Units held by the
Partners at the end of such Fiscal Year,
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(ii) less, only in the case of each Partner that is a Taxable Corporation
at the end of such Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the proportion of
the Negative Tax Allowance that the number of Units held by such
Partner bears to the total number of Units held by all Partners that
are Taxable Corporations.

(d) If there is a Net Loss and Taxable Income for a Fiscal Year, such Net
Loss shall be allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to the aggregate of the Net Loss plus the Positive
Tax Allowance for that Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the Partners
pro rata based on the number of Units held by the Partners at the
end of such Fiscal Year,

(ii) less, only in the case of each Partner that is a Taxable Corporation
at the end of such Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the proportion of
the Positive Tax Allowance that the number of Units held by such
Partner bears to the total number of Units held by all Partners that
are Taxable Corporations.

(e) If there is a Net Loss and a Taxable Loss for a Fiscal Year, such Net
Loss shall be allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to such Net Loss less the Negative Tax Allowance
for that Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the Partners pro rata based
on the number of Units held by the Partners at the end of such
Fiscal Year,

(ii) plus, only in the case of each Partner that is a Taxable Corporation
at the end of such Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the proportion of
the Negative Tax Allowance that the number of Units held by such
Partner bears to the total number of Units held by all Partners that
are Taxable Corporations.

(f) If there is a Taxable Loss for a Fiscal Year, such Taxable Loss shall be
allocated as follows:

(i) an amount equal to such Taxable Loss less the Negative Tax
Allowance for that Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the Partners pro
rata based on the number of Units held by the Partners at the end of
such Fiscal Year, and

(ii) plus, only in the case of each Partner that is a Taxable Corporation
at the end of such Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the proportion of
the Negative Tax Allowance that the number of Units held by such
Partner bears to the total number of Units held by all Partners that
are Taxable Corporations.:
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(g) Should a circumstance arise where none of Section 5.16(a) to Section
5.16(f) would apply, then the Partners, acting reasonably, shall allocate
the Net Income, Net Loss, Taxable Income, Taxable Loss in accordance
with the principles espoused in these Sections.

5.17 Distributions and Allocations on Partner Exit

Notwithstanding any other provision of Section 5.13 and Section 5.16, if a Partner ceased to be a
Partner during a Fiscal Year, the Net Income or Net Loss, Taxable Income or Taxable Loss and
distributions payable to the Partners pursuant to Section 5.13 and Section 5.16 shall be calculated
as though the Fiscal Year had ended at the end of the month immediately prior to or immediately
following the time such Partner ceased to be a Partner, whichever month-end is closer, provided
that, in the event a Partner ceased to be a Partner on the 15th day of a month, such allocations
and distributions will be calculated as though the Fiscal Year ended at the end of the month
immediately prior to the time such Partner ceased to be a Partner (a “Deemed Year End”), such
that:

(a) Net Income or Net Loss, Taxable Income or Taxable Loss and
distributions payable to the Partners shall be calculated for the period
beginning at the beginning of such Fiscal Year and ending at the time of
the Deemed Year End and the allocations and distributions (determined
on a reasonable basis taking into account the deductions that would have
been available had the fiscal period actually ended at the time of the
Deemed Year End) shall be made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 5.13 and Section 5.16 based on the number of Units held by
such Partners immediately before the departing Partner ceased to be a
Partner;

(b) Net Income or Net Loss, Taxable Income or Taxable Loss and
distributions payable to the Partners shall be calculated for the period
beginning immediately after the Deemed Year End and ending at the
end of such Fiscal Year and the allocations and distributions
(determined on a reasonable basis taking into account the deductions
that would have been available had the fiscal period actually began
immediately after the Deemed Year End) shall be made in accordance
with the provisions of Section 5.13 and Section 5.16 based on the
number of Units held by such Partners at the end of such Fiscal Year;

(c) provided that reasonable adjustments will be made if such allocations
would otherwise result in the allocation of a Taxable Loss in one of such
periods and the allocation of Taxable Income in the other such period;
and

(d) provided that all such distributions referred to in this Section 5.17 shall
be declared and recorded in the books and records of the Partnership
following the end of the relevant Fiscal Year.
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5.18 Excess Costs

If the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership pays or incurs an Excess ARC Cost or an
Excess Non-GUP Cost, the Net Income or Net Loss (as applicable) allocated to and Distribution
payable to, the SON BtM Partner shall be increased by the amount that would have been
allocated to or payable to the SON BtM Partner in the absence of such Excess ARC Cost or
Excess Non-GUP Cost, without duplication, and the Net Income or Net Loss (as applicable)
allocated to and Distributions payable to, the General Partner, shall be decreased by the amount
such Net Income or Net Loss (as applicable) and Distributions were increased for the SON BtM
Partner. The corresponding adjustments to Taxable Income or Taxable Loss (as applicable) for
each of the SON BtM Partner and the General Partner shall be made based on the adjustments to
the Distribution, Net Income or Net Loss (as applicable) made under this paragraph. For greater
certainty, this provision shall only apply to Excess ARC Costs and Excess Non-GUP Costs and
not to other Excess Costs.

ARTICLE 6
MANAGEMENT OF THE PARTNERSHIP

6.1 Management of the Partnership

The General Partner will manage the day-to-day operations of the Partnership. Subject to
Section 6.17 and any applicable limitations in the Limited Partnerships Act, the General Partner
will have the full and exclusive right, power and authority to make all decisions relating to the
management and administration of the Partnership and its business and affairs and to manage,
control, administer and operate the Partnership and its business and affairs, and to do any act,
take any proceedings, make any decision and execute and deliver any instrument, deed,
agreement or document, for and on behalf of and in the name of the Partnership, in connection
with the same.

6.2 Specific Powers, Duties and Obligations of General Partner

Without limiting the generality of Section 6.1, the General Partner shall have full power and
authority for and on behalf of and in the name of the Partnership, without notice to, or consent
of, any Limited Partner, to:

(a) negotiate, execute and perform all agreements which require execution
by or on behalf of the Partnership involving matters or transactions with
respect to the business of the Partnership;

(b) open and manage bank accounts in the name of the Partnership;

(c) borrow funds in the name of the Partnership from time to time from
such Persons as the General Partner may determine without limitation
with regard to amount, cost or conditions of reimbursement or such
loan;

(d) mortgage, charge, assign, hypothecate, pledge or otherwise create a
security interest in all or any property of the Partnership now owned or
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hereafter acquired, to secure any present and future borrowings and
related expenses of the Partnership;

(e) cause title to the property of the Partnership to be held in its name or the
name of its designated nominee for the benefit of the Partnership;

(f) cause Governmental Authorizations to be held in its name or the name
of its designated nominee for the benefit of the Partnership and be
responsible for the conduct of all regulatory proceedings related thereto
and to the business of the Partnership;

(g) see to the sound management of the Partnership and manage, control
and develop all the activities of the Partnership and take all measures
necessary or appropriate for the business of the Partnership or ancillary
thereto;

(h) maintain, improve or change any assets, business or undertaking of the
Partnership from time to time;

(i) incur all costs and expenses in connection with the Partnership
Business;

(j) employ, retain, engage or dismiss from employment, personnel, agents,
representatives or professionals with the powers and duties upon the
terms and for the compensation as in the discretion of the General
Partner may be necessary or advisable in the carrying on of the business
of the Partnership;

(k) engage agents, including any Affiliate of the General Partner, to assist
the General Partner in carrying out its management obligations and
providing management services to the Partnership or subcontract
administrative functions to any Affiliate of the General Partner or any
other Person;

(l) invest cash assets of the Partnership that are not immediately required
for the business of the Partnership in investments which the General
Partner considers appropriate;

(m) act as attorney in fact or agent of the Partnership in disbursing and
collecting monies for the Partnership, paying debts and fulfilling the
obligations of the Partnership and handling and settling any claims of
the Partnership;

(n) commence or defend any action or proceeding in connection with the
Partnership and make all decisions and execute and deliver all
instruments, documents, or agreements related thereto;

(o) take any actions it deems appropriate in respect of public relations and
communications with Governmental Authorities;
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(p) file returns or other documents required by any Governmental
Authority;

(q) make, execute, amend or revoke any Tax Filing on behalf of the
Partnership and/or all relevant Partners to the extent the Tax Filing
relates to the affairs of the Partnership;

(r) execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record in whatever
jurisdictions the Partnership is registered, whatever documents may be
required to reflect:

(i) a change in the name of the Partnership or the location of the
principal place of business of the Partnership;

(ii) the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of Limited
Partners in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;

(iii) a change that is reasonable and necessary or appropriate to qualify
or continue the qualification of the Partnership as a limited
partnership in which the Limited Partners have limited liability
under Applicable Laws; and

(iv) a change that is reasonable and necessary or appropriate to enable
Partners to take advantage of, or not be detrimentally affected by,
changes in the Income Tax Act or other taxation laws;

and all Partners agree to sign all amendments to the Declaration to give
effect to all amendments made in accordance with this Section 6.2(r);

(s) retain legal counsel, experts, advisors or consultants as the General
Partner considers appropriate and rely upon the advice of such Persons;

(t) do anything that is in furtherance of or incidental to the Partnership
Business or that is provided for in this Agreement;

(u) obtain any insurance coverage; and

(v) generally carry out the Partnership Business.

No Person dealing with the Partnership will be required to enquire into the authority of the
General Partner to do any act, take any proceeding, make any decision or execute and deliver any
instrument, deed, agreement or document for or on behalf of or in the name of the Partnership.

6.3 Operating Budget and Expenses

The Partnership shall reimburse the General Partner for all reasonable costs and expenses,
including professional, legal, accounting and administrative costs and expenses, incurred by the
General Partner in the performance of its duties hereunder in accordance with the approved
Operating Budget, including reasonable costs and expenses directly incurred for the benefit of
the Partnership, and the General Partner’s general and administrative expenses, but specifically
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excluding expenses of any action, suit or other proceedings in which or in relation to which the
General Partner is adjudged to be in breach of any duty or responsibility imposed on it
hereunder.

The General Partner shall submit the Operating Budget for each Fiscal Year to the Partners for
approval at least two (2) months prior to the commencement of that Fiscal Year. The General
Partner shall submit any amendment to an approved Operating Budget for any Fiscal Year in
excess of 5% of the total amount of the approved Operating Budget for such Fiscal Year to the
Partners for approval.

6.4 Removal and Appointment of General Partner

The General Partner may be removed at any time by Unanimous Consent of the Partners
provided that such Unanimous Consent of the Partners appoints and admits a new general partner
to the Partnership and such new general partner agrees to be bound by this Agreement in place of
the General Partner so removed and further provided that all acts of the General Partner prior to
its removal will continue to bind the Partnership.

6.5 Transfer to New General Partner

On the admission of a new general partner to the Partnership upon the removal of the General
Partner, the removed General Partner will do all things and take all steps to transfer the
administration, management, control and operation of the business of the Partnership and the
books, records and accounts of the Partnership to the new general partner and will execute and
deliver all deeds, certificates, declarations and other documents necessary or desirable to effect
such transfer in a timely fashion, including the transfer of any title to the Partnership’s property
held by the removed General Partner or its nominee to such new general partner.

6.6 Release by Partnership

On the removal of the General Partner, the Partnership shall release and hold harmless the
removed General Partner and its directors, officers, shareholders, employees and agents from any
costs, expenses, damages or liabilities suffered or incurred by the General Partner as a result of
or arising out of events which occur in relation to the Partnership after such removal.

6.7 New General Partner

A new general partner shall become a party to this Agreement by signing a counterpart hereof
and shall agree to be bound by all of the provisions hereof and to assume the obligations, duties
and liabilities of the General Partner hereunder as and from the date the new general partner
becomes a party to this Agreement.

6.8 Advisory Committee

(a) The Partnership shall have a committee (the “Advisory Committee”)
consisting initially of eight members. SON BtM Partner shall be
entitled to appoint four individuals to the Advisory Committee, and HOI
BtM Partner and the General Partner shall each be entitled to appoint
two individuals to the Advisory Committee. Each Partner shall be
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entitled to remove and replace its appointees from time to time as
provided in Section 6.8(c).

(b) Members of the Advisory Committee shall be appointed or re-
appointed, as the case may be, annually. On or before the Effective
Date and each subsequent anniversary of the Effective Date, each
Partner shall give notice to each of the other Partners stating the name of
the appointees of such Partner for the following year.

(c) Any Partner entitled to appoint a member of the Advisory Committee
shall be entitled to remove and replace any such member by notice to
such member and the other Partners. Any vacancy occurring on the
Advisory Committee shall be filled only by a further appointee of the
Partner whose appointee was so affected so as to maintain an Advisory
Committee consisting of the numbers of appointees specified in Section
6.8(a).

(d) The timing and location of meetings of the Advisory Committee will be
determined by the General Partner, provided that the Advisory
Committee shall meet at least quarterly and, if a meeting of the
Advisory Committee is not called during any quarter by the General
Partner, any other Partner may call a meeting of the Advisory
Committee. Written notice of any meeting of the Advisory Committee
will be given by the General Partner (or in the case of a meeting called
by another Partner, by such Partner) to members of the Advisory
Committee and to each Partner at least seven (7) Business Days prior to
the meeting.

(e) At each meeting, the Advisory Committee shall review and consider the
operations of the Partnership, including financial operating information,
budgets, regulatory developments and other matters in relation to the
BtM Project Assets or the Partnership. For greater certainty, the
General Partner shall retain ultimate responsibility for making all
decisions relating to the operation and management of the Partnership.

(f) A quorum for meetings of the Advisory Committee shall consist of at
least one appointee of each Partner being present. If a quorum is not
obtained at any meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned and may be
reconvened upon two (2) Business Days notice to the members, at
which reconvened meeting the quorum shall be a majority of members.

(g) Any or all members of the Advisory Committee may participate in a
meeting of the Advisory Committee by means of such telephone,
electronic or other communication facilities as permit all Persons
participating in the meeting to hear and communicate with each other
simultaneously and a member participating in such a meeting by such
means is deemed to be present at the meeting.
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(h) The reasonable expenses of the Advisory Committee shall be borne by
the Partnership.

6.9 Ratification of Actions

Any action taken by the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership in accordance with this
Agreement is deemed to be an act of the Partnership and binds the Partnership. No Person
dealing with the Partnership will be required to inquire into the authority of the General Partner
to take any such action.

6.10 Powers of Limited Partners

A Limited Partner may exercise all rights or powers provided to limited partners under the
Limited Partnerships Act, except to the extent inconsistent with, or contrary to, this Agreement.
A Limited Partner, in its capacity as a limited partner, may not:

(a) take part in the management or control of the business or affairs of the
Partnership or exercise any power in connection therewith;

(b) transact any business for the Partnership, including executing any
document which binds or purports to bind any other Partner or the
Partnership or hold itself out as having the power or authority to bind
any other Partner or the Partnership;

(c) have any authority or power to act for or undertake any obligation or
responsibility on behalf of any other Partner or the Partnership; or

(d) partition or seek to partition, whether by order of any court or otherwise,
any of the Partnership Assets.

6.11 SON Support

SON BtM Partner will make commercially reasonable efforts to cause SON and its
constituencies to act in the best interests of the Partnership and the BtM Project Assets.

6.12 Title to Partnership Property

The Partnership holds legal title to the Partnership Assets. However, if the Partnership is not
permitted under Applicable Law to, or if the General Partner determines that it is necessary or
expedient for the Partnership not to, hold legal title to any of the Partnership Assets, legal title to
such Partnership Assets may be held by the General Partner in trust for the Partnership or in any
other manner as the General Partner determines.

6.13 Execution of Contracts

The General Partner will, and any other Person or Persons authorized by the General Partner
from time to time may, sign any contracts, documents or instruments in writing requiring the
signature of the Partnership, including, without limitation, all documents and agreements
necessary to establish and maintain the Partnership Account. All written contracts, documents or
instruments so signed will be binding on the Partnership without any further authorization or
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formality. The Partners agree that third parties will not be obligated to inquire into the power or
authority of the Person or Persons signing such contracts, documents or instruments. All written
contracts, documents or instruments will be signed on behalf of the Partnership as follows
“Bruce-to-Milton L.P. by its general partner Bruce-to-Milton GP Inc.”. [NTD: Confirm
names]

6.14 Partnership Account

The General Partner will open the Partnership Account and will provide the necessary details of
the Partnership Account to the Partners. The General Partner will designate from time to time
those Persons who are authorized to make deposits to and draw on the Partnership Account and
to issue and sign cheques for and on behalf of the Partnership.

6.15 Delegation of General Partner’s Authority

The General Partner may delegate any powers or authorities granted to it under this Agreement
to any of its directors, officers and/or employees or to such other Persons as it sees fit, but no
such delegation will release the General Partner from any of its obligations hereunder.

6.16 Voting

For the purposes of voting under this Agreement:

(a) at any meeting of the Partners, each Partner will be entitled to one vote
in respect of each Unit held by such Partner. Every question submitted
to a meeting of the Partners, except those that require a Unanimous
Consent of the Partners, will be decided by a majority of the votes cast
at the meeting. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy and a Person
appointed by proxy need not be a Partner; and

(b) notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time SON BtM Partner’s
Partnership Interest falls below 5%, the Partnership Interest of SON
BtM Partner may not be voted and will be deemed to be nil in respect of
the approval of the dissolution of the Partnership requiring the
Unanimous Consent of the Partners in accordance with Section 6.17(a).

6.17 Unanimous Consent of the Partners

The following actions may only be taken by the Partnership or the General Partner after
obtaining the Unanimous Consent of the Partners:

(a) dissolving or liquidating the Partnership or approving the dissolution or
liquidation of the Partnership;

(b) waiving any default on the part of the General Partner on such terms as
the Partners may determine and releasing the General Partner from any
Claims with respect thereto;

(c) the sale, exchange or other disposition of any of the undertaking,
property or assets of the Partnership that would reasonably be
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anticipated to have a material adverse effect on the economic benefits of
the Units;

(d) changing the name of the Partnership pursuant to Section 3.3;

(e) changing the business of the Partnership pursuant to Section 4.2;

(f) terminating the Partnership’s transmission licence before its expiration;

(g) to the extent not governed by or exempted from the OEB’s Affiliates
Relationship Code (or future equivalent thereof), entering into an
agreement with a person that does not deal at Arm’s Length with the
General Partner unless such agreement is on terms no less favourable to
the Partnership than under an agreement with an Arm’s Length person;

(h) amending any material term of this Agreement; and

(i) amending, modifying, altering or repealing any action previously taken
pursuant to a Unanimous Consent of the Partners.

6.18 Meetings of the Partnership

(a) The timing and location of meetings of the Partners will be determined
by the General Partner and, unless otherwise agreed by the Partners, will
be held at such place in Ontario as the General Partner, or if called by
another Partner in accordance with the terms hereof, as the Partner
calling such meeting, designates.

(b) The General Partner may call a meeting of the Partners at any time. The
General Partner will also call a meeting upon the written request of any
other Partner. Such request will specify the purpose or purposes for
which such meeting is to be called and will include sufficient
information to enable the Partners to make a reasoned judgment on each
matter to be considered at such meeting. If the General Partner fails to
call a meeting upon such a request of another Partner within ten (10)
days after the giving of such request, the requesting Partner may call
such meeting. Written notice of any meeting of the Partners will be
given to all Partners at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting,
accompanied by an agenda specifying the general nature of the business
to be transacted at the meeting.

(c) The notice requirements for any meeting of the Partners may be waived.

(d) Except as hereinafter provided, a quorum at a meeting of the Partners
will be one duly authorized representative of each of the Partners,
present in person or by proxy. If a quorum is not present within thirty
(30) minutes after the time appointed for a meeting, the meeting will be
adjourned to such date, time and place as the Partners present at the
meeting may determine. The Partners present at such meeting will
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provide at least five (5) Business Days prior written notice of the date,
time and place of the adjourned meeting to all Partners. A quorum at an
adjourned meeting will consist of all of the Partners present or
represented by proxy at the original meeting.

(e) A Partner may participate in a meeting of the Partners by means of
telephone or other communication facilities that permit all Persons
participating in the meeting to hear each other and a Partner
participating by those means is deemed to be present at that meeting.

(f) The chair of all meetings will be chosen by the General Partner.

(g) Each Partner may bring such appropriate advisors to meetings of the
Partners as may be reasonably required.

(h) Any matter to be voted on or resolution by the Partners may be
approved or passed, without prior written notice thereof, by written
consent in lieu of a meeting if signed by all of the Partners and such
written consent will be as valid and effective as if it had been passed at a
meeting of the Partners duly convened and held.

(i) Minutes and proceedings of every meeting of the Partners will be
recorded by the General Partner and, when signed by the chair of the
meeting, will be prima facie evidence of the matters therein stated.
Until the contrary is proved, every meeting in respect of which minutes
have been made will be taken to have been duly held and convened and
all proceedings referred to in the minutes will be deemed to have been
duly passed.

(j) A written resolution may consist of one document signed in counterpart
by one or more Partners and which may be facsimile or portable
document format (PDF) copies of signed originals.

ARTICLE 7
INSURANCE

7.1 Insurance

The General Partner shall consult with the Limited Partners in determining the kind and amount
of insurance coverage required for itself and for the Partnership, including limits of insurance
and deductible amounts. The General Partner shall implement and maintain an insurance
program which (i) will satisfy the minimum insurance coverages reasonably required by the
Limited Partners and (ii) will satisfy the minimum insurance coverages required by the Project
Agreements, provided that the costs of such insurance coverage is recoverable in the Approved
OEB Rates or is available in North American insurance markets on commercially reasonable
terms.
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ARTICLE 8
LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 Liability of the Partners

(a) The General Partner has unlimited liability for the debts, liabilities and
obligations of the Partnership. Except in cases of gross negligence or
wilful misconduct, the General Partner will not be liable to the Limited
Partners or the Partnership for a mistake or error in judgment, any act or
omission believed by the General Partner in good faith to be within the
scope of the authority conferred on the General Partner by this
Agreement, or any loss or damage to the property or assets of the
Partnership caused by circumstances beyond the control of the General
Partner. If the tax ruling referred to in Section 11(a) of the Side Letter
has been obtained, the liability of the General Partner to SON BtM
Partner resulting from Claims arising from any breach by the General
Partner of its obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the
amount SON BtM Partner would have been entitled to if the only asset
of the General Partner were a 0.1% Partnership Interest in the
Partnership, provided that such limitation shall not apply to Claims
which SON BtM Partner would have been entitled to bring against the
General Partner had the General Partner been a Limited Partner not
engaged in the management of the Partnership. For greater certainty,
SON LPCo will have no claim in respect of any rights, interests or
payments in connection with the BtM LP Promissory Note.

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Limited Partnerships Act and except for
Claims in respect of the indemnity obligations respecting any guarantees
provided by a Limited Partner in respect of the Partnership, the liability
of each Limited Partner for the debts, liabilities and obligations of the
Partnership is limited to the amount of such Limited Partner’s Equity
Contributions actually made or agreed to be made plus its share of the
undistributed income of the Partnership.

(c) Subject to the terms of any service agreements or separate guarantees or
indemnities, in no event will any Partner be liable to another Partner or
its Affiliates or their respective officers, directors, employees, agents,
shareholders, partners or any other Person claiming through such
Partner or Affiliate, for special, incidental, indirect, consequential,
exemplary or punitive damages (even if any such Person has been
advised of the possibility of such damage or loss) of any kind in
connection with this Agreement.

8.2 Limited Liability

The General Partner shall take every reasonable action necessary to preserve the limited liability
of the Limited Partners and shall not take any action which or omit to take any action the
omission of which could reasonably be expected to jeopardize the limited liability of the Limited
Partners.
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8.3 Indemnification

(a) Subject to the limitations on liability in Section 8.1(a), the General
Partner agrees to indemnify the Partnership and each other Partner and
its Affiliates, officers, directors and employees (the “Indemnified
Group”) against all Losses sustained or incurred in connection with any
Claims arising from any breach by the General Partner of its obligations
under this Agreement.

(b) Subject to the limitations on liability in Section 8.1(a), the General
Partner will indemnify the Limited Partners in respect of any loss,
liability or damage incurred or suffered by a Limited Partner by reason
of the loss of its limited liability for any reason whatever other than
through any action or omission by such Limited Partner.

ARTICLE 9
EVENTS OF DEFAULT

9.1 Defaulting Partner

(a) A Partner shall be a “Defaulting Partner” upon the occurrence of any
of the following events (each, an “Event of Default”):

(i) such Partner, or, in the case of either HOI BtM Partner or the
General Partner, either of them has failed to observe and perform
any material obligation under this Agreement and such failure
continues for more than thirty (30) days after written notice thereof
is provided to such Partner by the Partnership or any other Partner;

(ii) such Partner has failed to pay when due an Additional Equity
Contribution it has elected to make in accordance with Section 5.10
and such failure continues for more than ten (10) Business Days
after written notice thereof is provided to such Partner by the
Partnership; or

(iii) in the case of HOI BtM Partner or the General Partner, the General
Partner has failed to observe and perform any material obligation
under the Operations Agreement, and such failure continues for
more than thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is provided to
the General Partner by the Partnership or any other Partner.

(b) If a Partner is Defaulting Partner and the event or circumstance that
caused it to be a Defaulting Partner has been cured or ceased to exist,
such Partner shall thereupon cease to be a Defaulting Partner.
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9.2 Notice of Default

A Partner, or its legal representative, will give notice to the other Partners of any event that has
occurred with respect to such Partner which has made, or which would with the passage of time
make, it a Defaulting Partner.

9.3 Distributions to a Defaulting Partner

(a) If an Event of Default has not been remedied within the cure period
provided in Section 9.1(a), the General Partner shall, in good faith and
as soon as reasonably practicable, determine the Losses to the
Partnership resulting from such Event of Default (the “Default
Amount”). The General Partner shall notify each of the Partners of the
Default Amount so determined (the “Default Amount Notice”). The
Defaulting Partner shall wire or otherwise deposit the Default Amount
to the Partnership Account within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
Default Amount Notice from the General Partner. If the Defaulting
Partner fails to do so, such Defaulting Partner shall cease to be entitled
to any distributions or Advances pursuant to Section 5.13 until the
aggregate amount of the distributions or Advances that would have
otherwise been paid by the Partnership to such Defaulting Partner equals
such Losses, at which time the Event of Default shall have been cured
and such Defaulting Partner shall no longer be a Defaulting Partner
hereunder.

(b) If a Limited Partner in good faith disputes the General Partner’s
calculation of the Default Amount or whether it is a Defaulting Partner,
it will so advise the General Partner and each of the other Partners in
writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Default Amount Notice
from the General Partner. Any Dispute with respect to the calculation of
the Default Amount will be resolved in accordance with the provisions
set forth in Article 13. Within [five (5)] Business Days after all dispute
resolution mechanisms in Article 13 have been exhausted, the Limited
Partner or the Partnership, as the case may be, shall pay to the other the
amount owing as a result of such resolution.

9.4 HOI BtM Partner Buy-Out Option

(a) If:

(i) SON BtM Partner becomes a Defaulting Partner for any one or
more reasons, and for so long as SON BtM Partner is a Defaulting
Partner, or

(ii) SON BtM Partner or any of its Affiliates fails to act in the best
interests of the Partnership or the BtM Project Assets using
commercially reasonable efforts, and such failure continues for
more than thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is provided to
SON BtM Partner by the Partnership or any other Partner,
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which in either case causes the Partnership to default on a payment obligation
under the BtM LP Promissory Note, either the General Partner or HOI BtM
Partner, as determined by the General Partner (such Partner, the “Buying
Partner”), will have the option, exercisable in the Buying Partner’s sole and
absolute discretion after all Dispute resolution mechanisms in Article 13 have
been exhausted, to require SON BtM Partner to transfer its Units to the Buying
Partner upon payment to SON BtM Partner of the Termination Payment (the
“Buy-Out Option”). The Buying Partner may exercise the Buy-Out Option by
way of prior written notice to SON BtM Partner (the “Buy-Out Notice”). The
Buy-Out Notice will specify the date of the exercise of the Buy-Out Option.

(b) The “Termination Payment” will be equal to the Fair Market Value of
SON BtM Partner’s Units as of the date of the Buy Out Notice,
determined in accordance with the principles of valuation set forth in
Schedule 9.4.

9.5 Transfer

(a) If the Buying Partner exercises the option to purchase SON BtM
Partner’s Units pursuant to Section 9.4(a), SON BtM Partner will
transfer all of its Units to the Buying Partner in consideration of the
payment of the Termination Payment as required by Section 9.4 to SON
BtM Partner in accordance with this Section 9.5.

(b) To the extent there are any amounts owing from SON BtM Partner to
the Buying Partner, the amount so owing by SON BtM Partner will be
set-off against the Termination Payment (such Termination Payment, as
adjusted, the “Closing Payment”).

(c) Upon determining the Closing Payment, SON BtM Partner and the
Buying Partner will, within sixty (60) days of such determination,
execute and deliver such documents and instruments as the Buying
Partner may request, acting reasonably, in order to complete the transfer
of SON BtM Partner’s Units to the Buying Partner and to discharge and
release any security against SON BtM Partner’s Units and the Buying
Partner will pay the Closing Payment. If SON BtM Partner fails to
execute and deliver any document or instrument required to be executed
and delivered by it in connection with the transfer within the sixty (60)
days, the Buying Partner is hereby granted an irrevocable power of
attorney with full power of substitution to execute and deliver on behalf
of SON BtM Partner all such documents and instruments which may be
required in order to complete the transfer of SON BtM Partner’s Units
to the Buying Partner.

(d) Upon the completion of the purchase and sale, SON BtM Partner will
cease to be a Partner and will have no further rights or liabilities with
respect to the Partnership or under or in connection with the BtM
Project Assets, except that it agrees to be bound by the provisions of
Section 14.1 for a period of five years from the completion of such
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purchase and sale and any indemnities of SON BtM Partner (or its
Affiliates) will continue as provided for in this Agreement.

(e) Notwithstanding the acquisition by the Buying Partner of SON BtM
Partner’s Units following the exercise of the Buy-Out Option, SON BtM
Partner’s obligations, if any, pursuant to the Master Implementation
Agreement will continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 10
RECORDS AND AUDIT

10.1 Partner Records

Each Partner will keep accurate records of amounts owing to, payable by, received by and paid
by it in respect of the Partnership.

10.2 Partnership Records

(a) The General Partner will maintain, or caused to be maintained by a third
party or through a service agreement with a Partner, accurate books and
records relating to the Partnership and its business, including relating to
all relevant permits, studies and reports and of all amounts owing to,
payable by, received by and paid in connection with the Partnership (the
“Partnership Records”).

(b) Where applicable, Partnership Records will be prepared in accordance
with GAAP and with those generally accepted accounting principles and
specific accounting policies being used by the Partners and will be in
such form and detail as will enable the Partners to obtain the
information necessary for Partners to prepare and maintain accounting
and other records meeting their reasonable requirements.

(c) Original Partnership Records will be kept at the registered office of the
General Partner, unless otherwise agreed by the Partners.

10.3 Retention of Records

Records required to be kept pursuant to Sections 10.1 or 10.2, which are required to be
maintained for a stipulated period of time by any Applicable Laws, will be maintained for the
period stipulated in such Applicable Laws; otherwise such records will be maintained for a
period of seven (7) years after the end of the year to which such record applies or, in the case of
records to be maintained pursuant to Section 10.2, such longer period as the General Partner may
determine.

10.4 Request for Partnership Records

At the request of a Partner made at any time prior to the expiry of the periods referred to in
Section 10.3, the General Partner will provide that Partner with copies of any such Partnership
Records maintained pursuant to Section 10.2, provided that if such documents or records are
necessary for any judicial or regulatory proceeding, a Partner may have the use of originals.



- 45 -

LEGAL_1:23010826.12

10.5 Audit of Partnership Records

(a) During the period of time in which records are to be maintained by the General
Partner in accordance with Section 10.3, each Limited Partner will have the right,
at its expense, on reasonable prior notice to the General Partner and during normal
business hours, to audit, examine and make copies of the Partnership Records and
any other records maintained by the General Partner which in any way relate to
the Partnership or the BtM Project Assets, including records related to the
operation of the BtM Project Assets pursuant to the Operations Agreement. A
Limited Partner shall make reasonable efforts to conduct any such audit or
examination so as to minimize any inconvenience to the General Partner.

(b) The costs and expenses incurred in any such inspection, examination or audit
made by a Limited Partner shall be for the account of such Limited Partner. The
Limited Partner shall use all reasonable efforts to conclude such audit within
ninety (90) days after delivery of the initial notice of audit. This right to audit
shall continue for a period of sixty (60) Months after the end of the Fiscal Year in
which the particular items to be audited occurred.

(c) Any claims of discrepancies in respect of the matters audited shall be made in
writing by a Limited Partner to the General Partner within three (3) Months of its
completion of such audit. The General Partner shall notify the auditors of the
Partnership and respond in writing to all claims of discrepancies within three (3)
months of its receipt of such claim and address such claims of discrepancies in a
manner satisfactory to such Limited Partner.

10.6 Auditors of the Partnership

The General Partner will appoint the initial auditors of the Partnership. The General Partner may
at its discretion, tender for the auditors, and on this basis may replace the initial auditors at any
time.

10.7 Financial Statements

(a) Within 75 days following the end of each Fiscal Year or within 75 days
of dissolution of the Partnership, the General Partner shall cause to be
prepared and delivered to each Limited Partner, audited financial
statements of the Partnership for such Fiscal Year, including a balance
sheet as at the end of the Fiscal Year, an income statement and a
statement of cash flows for such Fiscal Year and a statement of each
Partner’s Equity Contributions and Capital Account as at the end of the
Fiscal Year together with comparative financial statements for the prior
Fiscal Year, in each case prepared in accordance with GAAP and with
those generally accepted accounting principles and specific accounting
policies being used by the Partners, together with a report thereon of the
auditors of the Partnership, and all such information as may be
necessary to enable the Partners to file all required Canadian federal and
provincial income tax returns with respect to the income of the
Partnership.
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(b) Within ten (10) days after the end of each calendar quarter and of each
Fiscal Year, the General Partner shall cause to be prepared and delivered
to each Limited Partner, such additional financial reports and
information as may be necessary to enable each Limited Partner to
prepare its financial statements and calculate its tax provision for such
period.

ARTICLE 11
TRANSFERS

11.1 Restrictions on Transfer

(a) Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no Partner shall,
directly or indirectly, Transfer any Units held by it to any Person or
undergo a Change of Control.

(b) Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Agreement, every
Transfer of Units held by a Partner, in addition to the other requirements
of this Agreement, shall be subject to the condition that the proposed
transferee, if not already bound by the terms of this Agreement, shall
first agree, in writing, to become a party to and be bound by the terms of
this Agreement, by executing a form of counterpart and
acknowledgement acceptable to the Corporation and substantially in the
form attached as Schedule 11.1.

11.2 Permitted Transferees

(a) HOI BtM Partner or the General Partner, or any other direct or indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One that becomes a Partner, may
Transfer all or any of its Units to a third party, provided that
immediately after the Transfer, Hydro One, directly or indirectly, holds
at least 50% of the total number of Units outstanding and provided that
any such Transfer shall be accompanied by an assignment in the form
attached hereto as Schedule 11.2.

(b) HOI BtM Partner or the General Partner may Transfer all or any of its
Units to an Affiliate and provided that the General Partner may not
Transfer any of its Units if such Transfer would result in the General
Partner holding a Partnership Interest of less than 0.10%, and provided
further that any such Transfer shall be accompanied by an assignment in
the form attached hereto as Schedule 11.2. No such Transfer shall be
effective until the transferee executes and delivers to the Partnership a
counterpart to this Agreement in compliance with Section 11.1(b).

(c) SON BtM Partner may Transfer all or any of its Units to an Affiliate or
a wholly-owned subsidiary of SON BtM Partner and provided that any
such Transfer shall be accompanied by an assignment in the form
attached hereto as Schedule 11.2. No such Transfer shall be effective
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until the transferee executes and delivers to the Partnership a counterpart
to this Agreement in compliance with Section 11.1(b).

(d) In the event of any Transfer of Units by the General Partner pursuant to
Section 11.2(a) or Section 11.2(b), such transferee shall hold such Units
only as a Limited Partner and the rights and obligations of the General
Partner under this Agreement shall not be transferred to the transferee,
but the transferee shall be entitled to the rights and subject to the
obligations under this Agreement of a Limited Partner holding the
number of Units transferred to the transferee by the General Partner.

11.3 Pledge of Units

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,

(a) SON BtM Partner shall be permitted to Transfer the Units held by it as
security in connection with any financing of any Equity Contribution by
SON BtM Partner, provided the terms of such Transfer, including the
identity of the Transferee, are acceptable to HOI BtM Partner, acting
reasonably, and

(b) HOI BtM Partner shall be permitted to Transfer the Units held by it as
security in connection with any financing in respect of the BtM Project
Assets.

11.4 Right of First Offer

(a) Except in respect of a Transfer pursuant to Section 11.2, any Limited
Partner (the “ROFO Offeror”) who wishes to sell all, but not less than
all, of its Units shall first offer to sell such Units to the other Limited
Partners. The ROFO Offeror shall deliver a notice in writing of the
offer (the “ROFO Notice”) to each of the other Limited Partners (the
“ROFO Offerees”) that shall set out the number of Units then held by
the ROFO Offeror (the “ROFO Offeror’s Units”) and in the ROFO
Notice the ROFO Offeror shall irrevocably offer to sell the ROFO
Offeror’s Units, for cash, to the ROFO Offerees at the price (the
“ROFO Price”) and on terms set forth in the ROFO Notice.

(b) Upon the ROFO Notice being given, the ROFO Offerees shall have the
right to purchase all, but not less than all, of the ROFO Offeror’s Units,
pro rata based upon the number of Units beneficially owned by the
ROFO Offerees as of the date the ROFO Notice is given (or in such
other proportion as the ROFO Offerees may agree in writing).

(c) Within thirty (30) days after the ROFO Notice is deemed (under Section
17.1) to have been received by the ROFO Offerees (the “ROFO Offer
Period”) each of the ROFO Offerees may give to the ROFO Offeror a
notice in writing (a “ROFO Acceptance Notice”) accepting the offer
contained in the ROFO Notice and specifying the maximum number of
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the ROFO Offeror’s Units it wishes to acquire (which number may be
greater or less than its pro rata entitlement). If any ROFO Offeree does
not give a ROFO Acceptance Notice or specifies in its ROFO
Acceptance Notice a number of Units less than its pro rata entitlement,
the resulting unaccepted ROFO Offeror’s Units shall be deemed to have
been offered by the ROFO Offeror to such of the ROFO Offerees who
specified in their ROFO Acceptance Notices a wish to acquire a number
of the ROFO Offeror’s Units greater than their pro rata entitlement, and
each such ROFO Offeree shall be, subject to the maximum number of
the ROFO Offeror’s Units specified in its ROFO Acceptance Notice,
entitled to acquire its pro rata entitlement of the unaccepted ROFO
Offeror’s Units based upon the number of Units beneficially owned (as
of the date of the ROFO Notice) by such ROFO Offerees, as between
themselves (or in such other proportion as such ROFO Offerees may
agree in writing). If, pursuant to the foregoing process, one or more
ROFO Offerees agree to purchase, in aggregate, all of the ROFO
Offeror’s Units, the sale of the ROFO Offeror’s Units to such ROFO
Offerees shall be completed within twenty (20) Business Days of the
expiry of the Offer Period.

(d) If the ROFO Offeror does not receive ROFO Acceptance Notices from
the ROFO Offerees, or any of them, within the ROFO Offer Period
confirming their agreement to purchase all of the ROFO Offeror’s Units,
the rights of the ROFO Offerees to purchase any of the ROFO Offeror’s
Units shall cease at the end of the ROFO Offer Period and, subject to
Section 11.5, the ROFO Offeror may sell the ROFO Offeror’s Units to
any bona fide Arm’s Length third party or parties within five (5) months
after the expiry of the ROFO Offer Period, for a price and on other
terms and conditions in all material respects taken as a whole no more
favourable to such Persons than those set out in the ROFO Notice. If
the ROFO Offeror’s Units are not sold within such five (5) month
period on such terms, the provisions of this Section 11.4 shall again
apply to any proposed Transfer of Units, and so on from time to time.
For greater clarity, if the ROFO Offeror receives ROFO Acceptance
Notices from the ROFO Offerees, or any of them, within the ROFO
Offer Period agreeing to purchase less than all of the ROFO Offeror’s
Units, the rights of the ROFO Offerees to purchase, in aggregate, the
ROFO Offeror’s Units so accepted shall cease at the end of the ROFO
Offer Period and, in accordance with this Section 11.4(d) and subject to
Section 11.5, the ROFO Offeror may sell all of the ROFO Offeror’s
Units to any bona fide Arm’s Length third party or parties.

(e) All ROFO Acceptance Notices or other notices under this Section 11.4
shall be given concurrently to all Limited Partners and to the
Partnership.
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(f) To permit the practical implementation of this Section 11.4, no Units
may be sold by any Limited Partner as part of or incidental to the sale of
any other assets or any other transaction.

11.5 Right of First Refusal

(a) If a Limited Partner (the “Selling Partner”) receives from a third party
(the “Third Party”) that is acting as principal and dealing at Arm’s
Length with the Selling Partner, a bona fide written offer (the “Third
Party Offer”) to purchase any of the Units then held by the Selling
Party (the “Selling Partner’s Units”) (whether such Third Party Offer
was solicited following a ROFO Notice that the ROFO Offeree elected
not to accept or whether such Third Party Offer was unsolicited), the
Selling Partner shall only accept such Third Party Offer subject to
compliance with the provisions of this Section 11.5. Upon such
conditional acceptance, the Selling Partner shall deliver a notice in
writing (the “ROFR Notice”) to each of the other Limited Partners (the
“Non-Selling Partners”) irrevocably offering to sell to them the Selling
Partner’s Units at the same price and in all other material respects on
substantially the same terms and conditions as provided in the Third
Party Offer. The Selling Partner shall deliver, with the ROFR Notice, a
true copy of the Third Party Offer and, if the Third Party is other than an
individual, the names of the principal shareholders or holders of
interests in such Third Party (if available), officers and directors (or the
equivalent) of the Third Party and any other information with respect to
the financial capacity of the Third Party in the possession of the Selling
Partner. The offer contained in the ROFR Notice shall be irrevocable
except with the consent of the Non-Selling Partners and shall be open
for acceptance for a period of thirty (30) days after the date upon which
the ROFR Notice is deemed (under Section 17.1) to have been received
by the Non-Selling Partners (the “ROFR Acceptance Period”).

(b) Upon the ROFR Notice being given, the Non-Selling Partners shall have
the right to purchase all, but not less than all, of the Selling Partner’s
Units, pro rata based upon the number of Units beneficially owned by
the Non-Selling Partners as of the date the ROFR Notice (or in such
other proportion as the Non-Selling Partners may agree in writing).

(c) Within the ROFR Acceptance Period each of the Non-Selling Partners
may give to the Selling Partner a notice in writing (a “ROFR
Acceptance Notice”) accepting the offer contained in the ROFR Notice
and specifying the maximum number of the Selling Partner’s Units it
wishes to acquire (which number may be greater or less than its pro rata
entitlement). If any of the Non-Selling Partners does not give a ROFR
Acceptance Notice or specifies in its ROFR Acceptance Notice a
number of Units less than its pro rata entitlement, the resulting
unaccepted Selling Partner’s Units shall be deemed to have been offered
by the Selling Partner to such of the Non-Selling Partners who specified
in their ROFR Acceptance Notices a wish to acquire a number of the
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Selling Partner’s Units greater than their pro rata entitlement, and each
such Non-Selling Partner shall be, subject to the maximum number of
the Selling Partner’s Units specified in its ROFR Acceptance Notice,
entitled to acquire its pro rata entitlement of the unaccepted Selling
Partner’s Units based upon the number of Units beneficially owned (as
of the date of the ROFR Notice) by such Non-Selling Partners, as
between themselves (or in such other proportion as such Non-Selling
Partners may agree in writing). If the Non-Selling Partners, or any of
them, give ROFR Acceptance Notices within the ROFR Acceptance
Period confirming their agreement to purchase, in aggregate, all of the
Selling Partner’s Units, the sale of the Selling Partner’s Units to such
Non-Selling Partners shall be completed within twenty (20) Business
Days of the expiry of the ROFR Acceptance Period.

(d) If the Selling Partner does not receive ROFR Acceptance Notices from
the Non-Selling Partners, or any of them, within the ROFR Acceptance
Period confirming their agreement to purchase all of the Selling
Partner’s Units, the rights of the Non-Selling Partners to purchase any of
the Selling Partner’s Units shall cease at the end of the ROFR
Acceptance Period and the Selling Partner may sell the Selling Partner’s
Units to the Third Party at the price and upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Third Party Offer.

(e) Any transfer to the Third Party pursuant to this Section 11.5 must be
completed within 150 days following the expiry of the ROFR
Acceptance Period, failing which the provisions of this Section 11.5
shall again apply to any proposed Transfer of Units, and so on from time
to time.

(f) All ROFR Acceptance Notices or other notices under this Section 11.5
shall be given concurrently to all Limited Partners and to the General
Partner.

(g) To permit the practical implementation of this Section 11.5, no Units
may be sold by any Limited Partner as part of or incidental to the sale of
any other assets or any other transaction.

11.6 Permitted Hydro One Change of Control

(a) Hydro One shall be entitled to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of its
interest in HOI BtM Partner or any other Affiliate of Hydro One which
becomes a Limited Partner, provided that immediately after such sale,
transfer or disposition, Hydro One or an Affiliate of Hydro One, directly
or indirectly, continues to holds at least 50% of the total number of
Units outstanding and Hydro One provides notice of the Change of
Control to SON BtM Partner as soon as reasonably possible after the
occurrence of the Change of Control.
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(b) Hydro One shall be entitled to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of its
interest in the General Partner to an Affiliate of Hydro One.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Hydro One or
HONI shall be entitled to undergo a Change of Control, provided that
HOI BtM Partner shall notify SON BtM Partner of any such Change of
Control as soon as reasonably possible after the occurrence of the
Change of Control.

11.7 General Partner Co-operation

The General Partner will co-operate in all reasonable ways to effect and facilitate a Transfer
permitted pursuant to this Article 11, provided that such co-operation will be at the sole expense
of the Partner transferring its interest (which expense may include reasonable costs of the
General Partner and the Partnership relating to such permitted Transfer).

11.8 Liability After Disposition

Upon completion of any Transfer permitted pursuant to the terms of this Article 11, the
transferee shall be automatically admitted as a Partner in substitution for, or in the case of a
partial Transfer, in addition to, the transferor, upon execution of a counterpart of this Agreement
and compliance with the terms and conditions of this Article 11. No Transfer shall relieve the
transferor of liability under this Agreement, the Limited Partnerships Act or otherwise in respect
of the Transferred Partnership Interest for matters arising or events occurring prior to the
completion of, or in respect of, the Transfer of the Partnership Interest. Upon the Transfer of a
Partner’s entire Partnership Interest (except a Transfer by mortgage, lien, pledge or other
encumbrance but not excepting a Transfer resulting from a default in connection with such
mortgage, lien, pledge or other encumbrance), such Partner shall have no further interest in the
Partnership or rights or obligations under this Agreement (other than those expressed as
surviving such Transfer) except its rights and obligations under Section 14.1 which shall survive
such Transfer.

11.9 Effect of Prohibited Transfers

Any Transfer by a Partner in violation of the terms of this Agreement shall be void and shall not
be recognized by the Partnership; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be deemed to
limit any right or remedy that the Partnership or any other Partner may have against such Partner.

11.10 Change in Composition of the Partnership

The Partners hereby expressly agree that the bankruptcy or insolvency of any Partner, a change
in the ownership of Units, the addition or withdrawal of Partners to or from the Partnership as
permitted by this Agreement, or any amendment to this Agreement will not dissolve or otherwise
alter the legal existence of the Partnership.

11.11 Survival of Other Agreements

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, a Partner’s rights,
obligations and liabilities with respect to the other Partners under or in connection with the
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Project Agreements, other than this Agreement, including obligations to provide or repay and
monies, will continue and remain unaffected by such Partner ceasing to be a Party to this
Agreement or as a result of the termination or expiration of this Agreement and will survive any
winding-up, liquidation, termination or dissolution of the Partnership.

ARTICLE 12
DISSOLUTION

12.1 No Withdrawal Rights

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, no Partner may withdraw from the
Partnership or have the right to require dissolution or winding up of the Partnership’s affairs or
the distribution of the Partnership’s assets, without the prior written consent of the other Partners.

12.2 Transfer of Partnership Interest at General Partner’s Election

Upon the occurrence of any of the following events in respect of a Limited Partner, the Units of
such Limited Partner shall, at the option of the General Partner exercised on notice to such
Limited Partner, be deemed to have been Transferred to the Partnership by way of redemption by
the Partnership and cancellation of such Units at an aggregate price equal to the Fair Market
Value of such Units immediately prior to the occurrence of such event and on such other terms
and conditions as may be approved by the General Partner with effect immediately prior to the
occurrence of such event:

(a) the entry by a court of competent jurisdiction of a decree or order for
relief, unstayed on final appeal or otherwise, in respect of such Partner
in an involuntary case under bankruptcy laws, or any such order
adjudicating such Partner as bankrupt or insolvent under any other
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation law;

(b) the entry by a court of competent jurisdiction of a decree or order
appointing a receiver, custodian, assignee, trustee, liquidator,
sequestrator or other similar official of such Partner or of any substantial
part of the property of such Partner, or ordering the winding up or
liquidation of its affairs, and the continuance of any such decree or order
unstayed on final appeal or otherwise, or the commencement by such
Partner of a voluntary case under the bankruptcy laws, or under any
other insolvency law, seeking reorganization, liquidation, arrangement,
adjustment or composition of such Partner under such laws;

(c) the making by such Partner of an assignment for the benefit of creditors;
or the failure of such Partner generally to pay its debts as they become
due; or the consenting by such Partner to the appointment of or taking
possession by a receiver, custodian, assignee, trustee, liquidator,
sequestrator or other similar official of it or of any substantial part of its
property, or the taking of corporate action by such Partner in furtherance
of any such action;
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(d) the filing by a Partner for dissolution under the laws of the jurisdiction
of its incorporation or formation, other than the filing by HOI BtM
Partner for voluntary dissolution under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
incorporation, or the entering of a final order dissolving that Partner by
any court of competent jurisdiction; or

(e) any event which shall make it unlawful for that Partner to remain a
Partner of the Partnership.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing events shall not cause a dissolution of the Partnership and
the Partnership shall continue, unless there is only one (1) Partner remaining in the Partnership,
whereupon the Partnership shall automatically dissolve by operation of law.

Upon such redemption, the Units of such Limited Partner shall be cancelled, the Partnership
Interest of such Limited Partner shall be reduced to zero and the respective Partnership Interests
of each of the other Limited Partners shall be increased in the proportion their respective
Partnership Interest bears to the aggregate of the remaining Partnership Interests immediately
prior to the applicable event.

The Partners acknowledge and agree that under the circumstances specified in this Section 12.2,
the Fair Market Value of such Units is fair and reasonable consideration and each Partner hereby
waives, for itself, its successors and permitted assigns, including receivables, trustees in
bankruptcy or other Persons appointed on its behalf in such circumstances, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, any and all right to claim that such redemption is unenforceable or that such
consideration is unfair or unreasonable.

12.3 Events of Dissolution

The Partners shall cause the Partnership to be wound up and dissolved forthwith upon the
happening of any of the following events:

(a) the completion of the Decommissioning Work;

(b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Partnership or the
abandonment and reclamation of all of the Partnership’s assets;

(c) any event which shall make it unlawful for the Partnership Business to
be carried on;

(d) any event which, under Applicable Laws, requires or results in the
dissolution or winding up of the Partnership; or

(e) if the Partners agree to do so by Unanimous Consent of the Partners.

12.4 Winding Up And Dissolution

(a) On the happening of any event requiring the dissolution of the
Partnership as provided in this Agreement, the General Partner shall
exercise its powers under this Agreement for the purpose of winding up
the business of the Partnership, liquidating the Partnership’s assets in an
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orderly manner, paying the debts, liabilities and expenses of the
Partnership and satisfying its other obligations, distributing any cash or
other assets of the Partnership to the Partners in accordance with Section
12.4(b), filing all notices of dissolution prescribed by the Limited
Partnerships Act, and filing all elections, determinations or designations
required under the Income Tax Act or the Electricity Act which may be
necessary or desirable. The Partnership shall not engage in any new
business during the period of such winding up and dissolution.

(b) Upon the dissolution of the Partnership, the proceeds from the
liquidation of the Partnership’s assets will be distributed, after payment
of all of the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses of the
Partnership, to the Partners in proportion to the number of Units held.

(c) No winding up, liquidation, termination or dissolution of the Partnership
or of the business of the Partnership shall relieve a Partner from any
obligation accruing or accrued to the date of such winding up,
liquidation, termination or dissolution.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing and any other provision of this
Agreement, if the Partners agree, the Partnership may be dissolved in a
manner to comply with the provisions of Subsections 85(3), 98(3) or
98(5) of the Income Tax Act or in such other tax-efficient manner as the
Partners may agree.

12.5 Effect of Addition or Withdrawal of Partners on Dissolution

The Partners hereby expressly agree that the addition or withdrawal of a Partner hereunder shall
not cause a dissolution of the Partnership unless there is only one (1) Partner remaining in the
Partnership, whereupon the Partnership shall automatically dissolve by operation of law.

ARTICLE 13
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

13.1 Dispute Resolution

The Parties will work co-operatively to resolve any Dispute. Any Dispute which has not been
resolved by the Parties will be resolved in accordance with the provisions of this Article 13.

13.2 Negotiation

Following receipt of a written request for a meeting, senior representatives of each Party will
meet to attempt to resolve such Dispute. Each Party’s senior representative will have sufficient
authority to bind the Party they represent.

13.3 Mediation

If the senior representatives are unable to resolve such Dispute within fifteen (15) Business Days
from the date the first written request for a meeting was received, the Parties may thereafter
invoke the then existing non-binding mediation procedure of the ADR Institute of Canada, Inc.
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or its successor (“ADRIC”), provided that if no ADRIC mediation procedure is in existence at
the time, the most recent mediation procedure of the Canadian Foundation for Dispute
Resolution or its successor will be used in the place thereof. The mediator will be chosen by
agreement of the Parties.

13.4 Arbitration

A Party may refer any Dispute to arbitration before a single arbitrator. Insofar as they do not
conflict with this Section 13.4, the Rules for Procedure for Commercial Arbitration of the
Arbitration and Mediation Institute of Canada Inc./International Chamber of Commerce Rules of
Arbitration in effect at the date of commencement of any arbitration held under this Agreement
will apply to the arbitration. No Party may appeal the decision of the arbitrator in any manner
whatsoever, except as permitted by the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario). A Party may enter any
judgment upon any award rendered by the arbitrator in any court having jurisdiction. The
arbitration will be conducted in English under the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario) and will take
place in either the City of Toronto or such other place as the Parties may agree and at such time
and place as the arbitrator may fix.

13.5 Dispute Regarding Transfer of Units

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, SON BtM Partner will have the right to
have any Dispute as to whether it is required to transfer its Units to HOI BtM Partner pursuant to
Section 5.10(g) or Section 9.4 adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 14
CONFIDENTIALITY

14.1 Confidentiality

Each of the Parties agrees that it will maintain as confidential all data and information relating to
the subject matter hereof, the Partnership and the BtM Project Assets, except and to the extent
that:

(a) such data and information is otherwise in the public domain;

(b) such data and information is required to be disclosed to Affiliates, rating
agencies, advisors or potential lenders (including their agents or
trustees) or potential direct or indirect purchasers or transferees of a
Partner’s Units and, in the case of HOI BtM Partner, including the
Province of Ontario, its employees, representatives, directors, advisors
or agents;

(c) such data and information is required to be disclosed to potential
transferees and their respective advisors, rating agencies, potential
lenders and Affiliates and each of their respective employees,
representatives, directors, advisors or agents; or

(d) a Party is legally compelled to disclose such data and information to a
court or regulatory authority in the proper exercise of its jurisdiction.
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Each of the Parties agrees that it will make all reasonable efforts to limit internal disclosure of
such data and information to only those of their employees, representatives, directors, officers or
agents who will need to have access to the same to fulfill the responsibilities and obligations of
the Party under this Agreement or other Project Agreements. If a Party discloses any data or
information pursuant to an exception set out in this Section 14.1, it agrees to use commercially
reasonable efforts to require the recipient to: keep such information confidential; prevent any
further disclosure of such information; abide by the obligation of confidentiality hereunder; and
not use any of such confidential data and information in a manner that could be the detrimental
to the other Parties or the Partnership.

For greater certainty, the confidentiality obligations pursuant to this Section 14.1 do not apply to
the disclosure of the terms of this Agreement and shall not prevent SON BtM Partner from
periodically reporting to members of SON on the status of its investment in the Partnership
provided such reporting does not include commercially sensitive details relating to the operation
of the Line.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties acknowledge that HOI BtM Partner is subject to the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) (“FIPPA”) and the General
Partners and HOI BtM Partner’s confidentiality covenants are expressly subject to any and all
obligations and requirements that may exist or may in the future arise under FIPPA.

This Section 14.1 will survive the termination of this Agreement for a period of two (2) years
thereafter.

ARTICLE 15
PRESS RELEASES

15.1 Press Releases

Press releases and other public announcements in respect of this Agreement, the Partnership or
the BtM Project Assets, excepting releases of information required by Applicable Laws or the
rules of any stock exchange to which a Party or an Affiliate may be subject, will be made only
with the prior written approval of each other Party, such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a press release or other
public announcement is to be made by a Party in order to comply with any Applicable Laws,
where possible the other Parties will be given prior notice of such press release and a reasonable
opportunity to review and comment thereon.

ARTICLE 16
TAXES

16.1 Tax Information and Returns

The General Partner will send to each Person who was a Partner at any time in a particular Fiscal
Year of the Partnership within ninety (90) days of the end of the Fiscal Year all Partnership
information relating to such Fiscal Year which is necessary for such Partner or former Partner to
prepare its tax or information returns. The General Partner will file, on behalf of the other
present and former Partners, any information and tax returns required to be filed by the
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Partnership under the Income Tax Act and any other applicable Canadian tax laws, statutes or
regulations in respect of the Partnership’s activities in the prescribed forms and on a timely basis.

16.2 Tax Elections

The General Partner will have the authority to act, and will act with due diligence, for the
Partnership for the purpose of making or executing any agreement, designation or election on
behalf of the Partners or the Partnership pursuant to the Income Tax Act or any other relevant
taxing legislation in Canada, and each Partner agrees to act reasonably and co-operatively with
the other Partners for the purpose of making any tax elections which are required to be made
jointly by all of the Partners.

16.3 Partner Responsible for Own Income Taxes

Except as provided in this Article 16, each Partner will be solely responsible for the payment of
the Income Taxes imposed on it or payable by it in connection with the Partnership. Without
limiting the foregoing, the Partnership, HOI BtM Partner and the General Partner will have no
liability to SON BtM Partner in the event that SON BtM Partner or its successors or assigns are
found to be taxable. Any Income Taxes which may be levied by any Governmental Authority on
a Partner will not be considered to be Partnership obligations.

16.4 GST/HST

The General Partner will pay all GST/HST on behalf of the Partnership, charge, collect and remit
GST/HST and make and file all elections and all forms, documents and tax returns and take all
other steps required to administer taxes payable under the Excise Tax Act (Canada) on behalf of
the Partnership.

ARTICLE 17
NOTICES

17.1 Notices

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, every notice required or permitted under this
Agreement must be in writing and may be delivered in person, by courier or by fax to the
applicable Party, as follows:

(a) if to HOI BtM Partner,

c/o Hydro One Inc.
483 Bay Street
15th Floor, North Tower
Toronto, ON M5G 2P5

Attention: General Counsel

Fax: (416) 345-6056

(b) if to SON BtM Partner,
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c/o Saugeen Ojibway Nation
[insert address for courier service]

Attention: 

Fax: 

(c) if to the General Partner,

c/o Hydro One Networks Inc.
483 Bay Street
15th Floor, North Tower
Toronto, ON M5G 2P5

Attention: 

Fax: 

or to any other address, fax number or individual that a Party designates. Any notice under this
Agreement, if delivered personally or by courier, will be deemed to have been given when
actually received, if delivered by fax before 3:00 p.m. on a Business Day, will be deemed to have
been delivered on that Business Day and if delivered by fax after 3:00 p.m. on a Business Day or
on a day which is not a Business Day, will be deemed to be delivered on the next Business Day.

ARTICLE 18
MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 Amendment

Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no amendment, supplement, restatement or
termination of this Agreement in whole or in part is binding unless it is in writing and signed by
each Party.

18.2 Waiver

No waiver of any term of this Agreement is binding unless it is in writing and signed by all the
Parties entitled to grant the waiver. No failure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right
or remedy under this Agreement will be deemed to be a waiver of that right or remedy. No
waiver of any breach of any term of this Agreement will be deemed to be a waiver of any
subsequent breach of that term.

18.3 Severability

If any term of this Agreement is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the illegality,
invalidity or unenforceability of that term will not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of
the remaining terms of this Agreement.
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18.4 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, the Master Implementation Agreement and all documents contemplated by or
delivered in connection with this Agreement, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede all prior agreements,
negotiations, discussions, undertakings, representations, warranties and understandings, whether
written or verbal. This Agreement replaces and supersedes the Initial Partnership Agreement.

18.5 Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by, and is to be construed and interpreted in accordance with, the
laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable in Ontario. Each of the
Parties irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Ontario.

18.6 Time of Essence

For every term of this Agreement, time is of the essence.

18.7 Enurement

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding on the Parties and their respective
successors and permitted assigns.

18.8 Further Assurances

Each Party will from time to time, and promptly upon request, sign and deliver all further
documents and take all further action reasonably necessary or appropriate to give effect to the
terms of this Agreement.

18.9 Execution in Counterparts

This Agreement and any amendment, supplement, restatement or termination of this Agreement
in whole or in part may be signed and delivered in any number of counterparts, each of which
when signed and delivered is an original, but all of which taken together constitute one and the
same instrument. This Agreement and any amendment, supplement, restatement or termination
of this Agreement in whole or in part may be delivered by means of facsimile or via e-mail in
portable document format (PDF).

The Parties have duly executed this Agreement.

[SON BtM Partner]

By:
Name: 
Title: 

By:
Name: 
Title: 
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[HOI BtM Partner]

By:
Name: 
Title: 

By:
Name: 
Title: 

[GENERAL PARTNER]

By:
Name: 
Title: 

By:
Name: 
Title: 
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THIS IS SCHEDULE “4.3”, attached to and forming part of the AMENDED AND
RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT made as of the [INSERT DATE],
2014 between [HOI BtM Partner], [SON BtM Partner] and [Bruce-to-Milton GP Inc.].

OPERATIONS AGREEMENT TERMS
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THIS IS SCHEDULE “5.5”, attached to and forming part of the AMENDED AND
RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT made as of the [INSERT DATE],
2014 between [HOI BtM Partner], [SON BtM Partner] and [the General Partner].

PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS AND UNITS

% Interest Number of Units

HOI BtM Partner % 

SON BtM Partner % 

General Partner % 
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THIS IS SCHEDULE “9.4”, attached to and forming part of the AMENDED AND
RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT made as of the [INSERT DATE],
2014 between [HOI BtM Partner], [SON BtM Partner] and [the General Partner].

PRINCIPLES OF VALUATION

(a) Valuation Procedure

Upon the provisions of this Schedule becoming applicable (but subject to subsection (d)), the
Parties shall agree upon an independent business valuator and shall cause such independent
business valuator to determine the Fair Market Value of all of the issued and outstanding Units
as at the Valuation Date.

If the Parties fail to choose an independent business valuator within fifteen (15) days following
the event giving rise to the valuation, or if an agreed-upon valuator shall not have consented to
act as valuator within ten (10) Business Days following the expiry of the fifteen (15) day period,
a business valuator shall be chosen by a Judge of the Ontario Superior Court, upon the
application of any of the Parties.

In determining the Fair Market Value of all of the issued and outstanding Units, the independent
business valuator shall take into account and apply generally accepted accounting and valuation
principles, and the valuator shall not have regard to whether the Units subject to the transaction
of purchase and sale constitute a minority block or a majority block of all of the issued and
outstanding Units and no minority or majority discount or premium shall be applied to its
valuation.

The valuation arrived at by the valuator, made as an expert and not as an umpire or arbitrator,
shall be conclusive and binding on the Parties and none of the Parties shall have any right to or
shall seek any appeal or review from or of such valuation.

(b) Calculation of Fair Market Value Per Unit

The Fair Market Value of the Units being purchased and sold shall be determined by dividing the
Fair Market Value of all of the issued and outstanding Units as at the Valuation Date, as
determined by the independent business valuator in accordance with the provisions of subsection
(a), by the number of Units then issued and outstanding and multiplying the resulting amount by
the number of Units being purchased and sold.

(c) Costs of Valuation

All costs and expenses relating to the determination of the Fair Market Value of any of the Units
of the Corporation pursuant to this Schedule shall be shared equally between the vendors and
purchasers in the subject transaction and, among multiple vendors or purchasers, shall be shared
pro rata based on the number of Units being sold or purchased.

(d) Prior Valuation Date

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Schedule, if an independent business
valuator shall have determined the Fair Market Value of all of the issued and outstanding Units
pursuant to this Agreement as at a valuation date which is within 12 months prior to the
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occurrence of a subsequent valuation date, the Fair Market Value of each Unit determined as at
the prior valuation date shall be deemed to be the Fair Market Value of each Unit as at the
subsequent valuation date.
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THIS IS SCHEDULE “11.1”, attached to and forming part of the AMENDED AND
RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT made as of the [INSERT DATE],
2014 between [HOI BtM Partner], [SON BtM Partner] and [the General Partner].

FORM OF COUNTERPART AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

RE: The Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of [Bruce-to-Milton
L.P.] made effective as of , 2014

The undersigned acknowledges that it has received a copy of the Agreement and has had an
opportunity to review the Agreement. Pursuant to Section 11.1 of the Agreement, the
undersigned agrees to be bound, as a party to and as a Partner in the Partnership, by the terms
(including all covenants, agreements and obligations) of the Agreement, as from time to time
amended, as fully and effectively as though the undersigned had executed the Agreement
together with the other parties to the Agreement.

Dated day of , 20 .

[NAME OF TRANSFEREE]

By:

Authorized Signatory



LEGAL_1:23010826.12

THIS IS SCHEDULE “11.2”, attached to and forming part of the AMENDED AND
RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT made as of the [INSERT DATE],
2014 between [HOI BtM Partner], [SON BtM Partner] and [the General Partner].

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

ASSIGNMENT OF UNITS IN
ENPOWER DEVELOPMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

In accordance with Section 11.2 of the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of
[Bruce-to-Milton L.P.] (the “Partnership”) made effective as of , 2014 (the “Partnership
Agreement”), the undersigned, a Partner of the Partnership, hereby transfers to
_______________________ (Name of Assignee) all of the undersigned’s right, title and interest
in and to ____ Units in the Partnership and assigns to the aforesaid assignee all of the interest of
the undersigned in the Partnership that is represented thereby. The undersigned agrees to furnish
to the General Partner such documents, certificates, assurances and other instruments as the
General Partner may require to effect this assignment and to continue and keep in good standing
the Partnership as a limited partnership. The undersigned agrees that the power of attorney
previously granted by the undersigned to the General Partner shall continue in full force and
effect, and shall be irrevocable, until all instruments required to effect this assignment and to
continue and keep in good standing the Partnership as a limited partnership have been furnished
to the General Partner as aforesaid and have been recorded or filed as and where required.
Capitalized terms used herein and below which are not defined herein shall have the meaning
ascribed thereto in the Partnership Agreement.

DATED this ____ day of ____________, 20__.

[NAME OF ASSIGNING PARTNER]

By:

Authorized Signatory

(Address)

(City, Province and Postal Code)
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LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 22nd day of March, 2013 

B E T W E E N: 

B2M GP INC., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario  

(the “General Partner”) 

- and - 

HYDRO ONE B2M LP INC., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the 
Province of Ontario 

(the “Limited Partner”) 

RECITALS: 

A. The Partnership is being formed by the filing of a declaration (the “Declaration”) under the 
Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario) to register the Partnership as a limited partnership under the 
laws of the Province of Ontario; 

B. The Partners wish to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of governing their respective 
rights and obligations with respect to the Partnership; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the 
mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration (the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged), the parties hereto covenant and agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 1 
THE PARTNERSHIP 

1.1 Definitions 

In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings as set out below and grammatical 
variations of such terms shall have corresponding meanings: 

“Act” means the Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario), as amended from time to time. 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person (other than an individual), any other Person (other than an 
individual), directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control 
with, such other Person. 

“Agreement” means this agreement, as amended from time to time. 

“Declaration” has the meaning set out in the recitals of this Agreement. 
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“Event of Insolvency” means, in respect of a Partner: 

(a) the institution by the Partner of any proceeding to be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent 
or to be dissolved or wound-up; 

(b) the consent of the Partner to the institution of bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or 
winding-up proceedings against it; or 

(c) the filing of a petition or consent seeking dissolution or winding-up under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency or analogous laws (including, without limitation, the Companies’ 
Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada) and the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada)) 
and the failure by the Partner to contest in good faith any such proceeding within 45 days 
of becoming aware of the proceeding. 

“General Partner” means B2M GP Inc. or, subject to the provisions of Section 6.2, any other Person 
who has executed this Agreement as a general partner or who has otherwise agreed to be bound by the 
terms of this Agreement as a general partner of the Partnership. 

“HONI” means Hydro One Networks Inc. 

“Initial Capital” has the meaning set out in Section 2.1. 

“Limited Partners” means (i) Hydro One B2M LP Inc. and (ii) such other Person(s) from time to time 
who have executed this Agreement as a limited partner or who have otherwise agreed to be bound by the 
terms of this Agreement as a limited partner of the Partnership, and each shall be a “Limited Partner”. 

“Line” means the second high-voltage electrical transmission tower line spanning approximately 180 
kilometres from the Bruce Power nuclear generating facility located in Kincardine, Ontario to HONI’s 
switchyard in Milton, Ontario. 

“Losses” has the meaning set out in Section 3.1. 

“Partner” means any one of the General Partner or the Limited Partners. 

“Partnership” means the limited partnership formed between the Partners in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

“Partnership Activities” has the meaning set out in Section 1.6. 

“Partnership Interest” has the meaning set out in Section 2.4. 

“Person” means an individual, partnership, limited partnership, corporation, unlimited liability company, 
trust, unincorporated organization, association, government, or any department or agency thereof and the 
successors and assigns thereof or the heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives of an 
individual. 

“Profits” has the meaning set out in Section 3.1. 
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“Receiver” has the meaning set out in Section 6.3. 

“Resolution” means a resolution passed by the Limited Partners, at a meeting of Limited Partners duly 
called for the purpose or by instrument in writing, the aggregate number of whose votes represents more 
than 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of votes entitled to be cast. 

“SON” means collectively Chippewas of Nawash First Nation and Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation. 

“Unit” has the meaning set out in Section 2.2. 

“Unit Certificate” means a unit certificate issued to a Partner as evidence of its ownership of Units, 
which certificate shall be in the form approved by the General Partner from time to time. 

1.2 Formation of Limited Partnership 

(a) The Partnership is hereby formed effective as of the date of this Agreement, being the 
date on which the Declaration was filed as required under the Act.  Nothing contained in 
this Agreement shall be construed to constitute any Partner the agent, partner or legal 
representative of any other Partner for any purpose other than in respect of the purpose 
set out herein, nor shall any Partner have any authority to act for or to undertake any 
obligation or responsibility on behalf of any other Partner or the Partnership except as 
otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

(b) The Partnership shall, subject to the Act, continue until terminated or dissolved in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the Act. 

1.3 Name 

The Partnership shall carry on business under the name “Bruce-to-Milton L.P.”. 

1.4 Principal Office 

The principal office of the Partnership shall be located at 483 Bay Street, 15th floor, North Tower, 
Toronto, ON M5G 2P5.  The business of the Partnership may be conducted at such other place or places 
as may from time to time be selected or approved by the General Partner.   

1.5 Fiscal Year End 

The fiscal year of the Partnership shall end on December 31 or such other date in each year as the General 
Partner in its absolute discretion shall determine. 

1.6 Purpose of the Partnership 

The purpose of the Partnership is to acquire and operate, manage and maintain the Line (the 
“Partnership Activities”).  
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1.7 Filing of Certificates 

(a) In any circumstance as may from time to time be required to preserve the nature of the 
Partnership as a limited partnership under the laws of the Province of Ontario or to permit 
the Partnership to carry on the Partnership Activities in the Province of Ontario, the 
General Partner shall cause to be executed and filed such certificates, instruments, 
declarations and documents as may be so required. 

(b) Each Partner shall execute and deliver as promptly as possible any documents that may 
be necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement or to comply with 
the Act. 

(c) The General Partner shall take all necessary actions on the basis of information available 
to it in order to maintain the status of the Partnership as a limited partnership and to 
comply with the Act. 

1.8 Title and Contracts 

Legal title to the assets of the Partnership shall be held in the name of the Partnership.  However, if the 
Partnership is not permitted under applicable law to, or if the General Partner determines that it is 
necessary or expedient for the Partnership not to, hold legal title to any of the assets of the Partnership, 
legal title to such assets may be held by the General Partner in trust for the Partnership or in any other 
manner as the General Partner determines. All contracts, documents or instruments in writing which the 
Partnership may be a party to or bound by shall be signed on behalf of the Partnership as follows “Bruce-
to-Milton L.P. by its general partner B2M GP Inc.”. 

1.9 Partnership Property 

All of the properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, used in carrying on the Partnership Activities 
shall be assets of the Partnership. For greater certainty, notwithstanding Section 1.8 above, the General 
Partner will not receive or hold any of the assets of the Partnership on its own account but shall, except as 
otherwise agreed, receive and hold all assets of the Partnership in the name and on behalf of the 
Partnership. 

1.10 The Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario) 

All restrictions, limitations and prohibitions set forth in the Act which apply to limited partnerships shall 
be deemed to be set forth in this Agreement and are hereby incorporated by reference.   

ARTICLE 2 
PARTNERSHIP INTEREST AND CAPITAL 

2.1 Initial Capital of the Partnership 

The initial capital of the Partnership (the “Initial Capital”) shall consist of $1,000.00.  The Partners agree 
to contribute the following amount of money or value of property as Initial Capital on such date as the 
Partners shall determine: 
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Name Initial Capital % of Initial Capital Initial Units 

B2M GP Inc. $999 99.9% 999 Units 

Hydro One B2M LP Inc. $1 

 

0.1% 1 Unit 

2.2 Partnership Units 

(a) The interest of the Partners in the Partnership shall be divided into and represented by an 
unlimited number of units (each a “Unit”), each representing a proportionate share of the 
aggregate interests of the Partners in the Partnership.  B2M GP Inc. is hereby issued 999 
Units representing its contribution to the Initial Capital and Hydro One B2M LP Inc. is 
hereby issued one (1) Unit representing its contribution to the Initial Capital. 

(b) Each issued and outstanding Unit is identical to each other one with respect to all matters 
including: 

(i) the right to receive distributions from the Partnership; 

(ii) the allocation of net income, net loss, taxable income and tax losses; 

(iii) voting rights; and 

(iv) rights on liquidation. 

2.3 Unit Certificates 

Each Partner shall be issued a Unit Certificate specifying the number of Units held by such Partner.  
Every Unit Certificate must be signed by at least one authorized signatory of the General Partner. 

2.4 Partnership Interest 

(a) The interest of a Partner in each item of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the 
Partnership (“Partnership Interest”) shall at any time be the percentage that the number 
of Units held by such Partner is of the aggregate number of Units held by all Partners as 
at such date.  

(b) Subject to the restrictions in Section 4.2, at any meeting of the Partners, each Partner will 
be entitled to one vote in respect of each Unit held by such Partner.  

(c) The Partners may, from time to time, contribute to the Partnership either in the form of 
cash or, with the agreement of the General Partner and the Limited Partners, other 
property or additional amounts of capital which are in addition to the Initial Capital at 
such time or times in such additional amounts as such Partner may determine, in the case 
of the General Partner, in its sole discretion, or, in the case of the Limited Partners, after 
consultation with the General Partner in return for additional Units and the increase in 
interest in the Partnership as agreed by the General Partner and the Limited Partners. The 
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Partners shall not be entitled to interest on the amount of such additional capital 
contributions. Notwithstanding any term or provision of this Agreement, including this 
Section, the Partners shall not be obligated to advance any such additional capital 
contributions to the Partnership. 

2.5 Transfer of Units 

(a) No Partner shall transfer, sell, assign, mortgage, charge, pledge or otherwise dispose of or 
encumber its Units, in whole or in part, (such an act being referred to in this Section  as a 
“disposition”) unless (i) the requirements of the Act have been complied with, (ii) in the 
case of such a disposition by a Limited Partner, the General Partner provides its prior 
written consent thereto, and (iii) in the case of such a disposition by the General Partner, 
the Limited Partners approve such disposition.  For the purpose of this subsection, an 
amalgamation or a winding-up is deemed not to be a disposition. 

Notwithstanding (ii) and (iii) above, any Partner may transfer, sell or assign its Units to 
an Affiliate of such Partner without the prior written consent of any other Partner. 

(b) A disposition of Units in whole or in part made in compliance herewith shall not cause a 
dissolution of the Partnership unless there is only one Partner remaining in the 
Partnership, whereupon the Partnership shall automatically dissolve by operation of law. 

2.6 New Partners 

The General Partner shall have the exclusive authority to admit any Person as a Limited Partner. Any 
Person may contribute to the Partnership by delivering to the General Partner a completed and executed 
contribution agreement in the form provided by the General Partner, an originally executed copy of this 
Agreement, a certified cheque, bank draft or money order immediately payable to the Partnership (or a 
transfer of other property to the Partnership of a type and value which are acceptable to the General 
Partner) for its contributed capital and such other documents and instruments as the General Partner may 
request.  

The General Partner may, in its sole and absolute discretion, refuse to accept, in whole or in part, any 
contribution of capital to the Partnership. 

Upon acceptance by the General Partner of any contribution of capital, all Partners shall be deemed to 
consent to the admission of the subscriber as a Limited Partner.  The General Partner shall also cause the 
register recording the Partners and the register recording the Units to be amended and shall file with the 
appropriate authority all such other documents as may be required by the Act and shall cause the 
admission of the new Partner to be reflected in all other relevant Partnership books and records. 

2.7 Individual Capital Accounts 

(a) A capital account shall be maintained for each Partner.  Such capital account shall be 
credited with (i) the amount of capital contributed from time to time by that Partner (and 
where such contribution to capital is made by way of a transfer of property, the amount of 
such capital shall be equal to the value as agreed upon with the General Partner as at the 
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time of the contribution of such property to capital) and (ii) the amount of any income 
allocated to that Partner by the Partnership, and shall be reduced by (iii) the amount of 
any distribution to or withdrawal of capital by that Partner and (iv) the amount of any loss 
allocated to that Partner by the Partnership. 

(b) No Partner shall be entitled to withdraw any part of its contributed capital except upon (i) 
the dissolution of the Partnership, (ii) the liquidation of the assets of the Partnership, or 
(iii) receiving the consent of the General Partner, and such withdrawal shall be in the 
form of cash unless the General Partner elects to distribute such capital in the form of 
property, in which case the value of such property shall be as determined by the General 
Partner as at the date of such distribution. 

(c) No Partner shall be entitled to receive any distribution except as permitted by the Act, 
other applicable laws and this Agreement. 

2.8 Interest on Capital Contributions 

The Partners shall not be entitled to interest on the amount of their capital accounts. 

ARTICLE 3 
PROFITS, LOSSES AND DISTRIBUTIONS 

3.1 Determination and Allocation of Profits and Losses 

The net profits (the “Profits”) and net losses (the “Losses”) of the Partnership will be determined in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied and shall include any gains 
and/or losses realized on the disposition of capital assets and other extraordinary items of the Partnership.  
The General Partner shall have the right for income tax purposes to adopt different treatment of particular 
items and to make and revoke elections on behalf of the Partnership, as the General Partner may deem 
appropriate and in the best interests of the Partners not inconsistent with this Agreement.  The aggregate 
Profits or Losses of the Partnership for a fiscal year shall be allocated among the persons that are Partners 
at the end of that fiscal year pro rata based on their respective Partnership Interests at the end of that fiscal 
year. 

3.2 Allocation of Taxable Income or Taxable Loss 

The taxable income or taxable loss of the Partnership, as determined under the Income Tax Act (Canada) 
and any applicable provincial or territorial income tax legislation, for a fiscal year shall be allocated 
among the persons that are Partners at the end of that fiscal year pro rata based on their respective 
Partnership Interests at the end of that fiscal year. 
 
3.3 Distributions of Profits to Partners 

The General Partner shall determine at such times as the General Partner deems appropriate the amount of 
cash on hand of the Partnership that is derived from any source and that is determined by the General 
Partner not to be required for use in connection with the Partnership Activities (“Distributable Income”). 
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The Distributable Income shall be distributed by the Partnership to the Partners forthwith after such 
determinations in the following manner and in the following order: 

(a) the amounts to be reimbursed to the General Partner pursuant to section 4.5 shall be 
distributed to the General Partner; and 

(b) an amount equal to the balance of the Distributable Income shall be distributed to the 
Partners pro rata based on their respective Partnership Interests. 

ARTICLE 4 
MANAGEMENT OF THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 Powers and Duties of the General Partner  

Subject to the Act, the business and affairs of the Partnership shall be managed and controlled exclusively 
by the General Partner.  The General Partner shall have all the necessary powers to manage, control and 
operate the business and affairs of the Partnership and to do or cause to be done any and all acts 
necessary, appropriate, convenient or incidental thereto.  The power of the General Partner to represent 
the Partnership to third parties is unrestricted and no Person dealing with the Partnership will be required 
to inquire into the authority of the General Partner to do any act, take any proceeding, make any decision 
or execute and deliver any instrument, deed, agreement or document for or on behalf of or in the name of 
the Partnership.  

4.2 Limitations on Authority of the Limited Partner  

Other than as expressly permitted under the Act, no Limited Partner shall take part in the management or 
control of the business or affairs of the Partnership nor shall any Limited Partner have the power to bind 
the Partnership.  However, any Limited Partner may from time to time: 

(a) examine into the state and progress of the business of the Partnership and advise as to its 
management; 

(b) act as a contractor for or an agent or employee of the Partnership or of a General Partner; 
or 

(c) act as a surety for the Partnership. 

Each Limited Partner shall comply with the provisions of the Act in force or in effect from time to time 
and shall not take any action which will jeopardize or eliminate the status of the Partnership as a limited 
partnership. 

4.3 Services 

The duties of the General Partner in its capacity as general partner of the Partnership shall be carried out 
by the General Partner, by employees of the General Partner or by agents or independent contractors 
retained by the General Partner for such purposes. The General Partner may cause the Partnership to 



- 9 - 
 
 

 

LEGAL_1:25850328.5   

employ or retain any Person (including, without limitation, the General Partner) to provide services to the 
Partnership in connection with the Partnership Activities. 

4.4 Delegation 

The General Partner may contract with any Person to carry out any of the duties of the General Partner 
and may delegate to such Person any power and authority of the General Partner hereunder, but no such 
contract or delegation shall relieve the General Partner of any of its obligations hereunder. 

4.5 Reimbursement of General Partner 

The General Partner is entitled to reimbursement by the Partnership for all costs and expenses that are 
incurred by the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership, and, at any time that its sole activity consists 
of acting as General Partner for the Partnership, shall be entitled to be reimbursed for all legal and audit 
expenses, capital taxes, filing and reporting fees and expenses incurred solely for the purpose of 
maintaining its corporate existence. 

4.6 Power of Attorney 

Each Limited Partner (subject to the Powers of Attorney Act (Ontario)) hereby irrevocably nominates, 
constitutes and appoints the General Partner to act, with full power of substitution, as its true and lawful 
attorney and agent, with full power and authority in its name, place and stead, to: 

(a) execute, swear to and record in the appropriate public offices any certificates, 
declarations, amendments to certificates and other instruments necessary to form, qualify 
or continue the Partnership as a limited partnership in Ontario and, subject to Section 7.3, 
all instruments and certificates necessary to reflect any amendment of this Agreement or 
change in the Partnership; 

(b) execute and file with any governmental body or agency, division, department or 
instrumentality thereof, whether of the Government of Canada or a Province or any 
municipality or other governmental division, any documents necessary to be filed in 
connection with the business, property, assets and undertaking of the Partnership; and 

(c) execute and deliver such documents on behalf and in the name of the Partnership as may 
be necessary to give effect to the purpose of the Partnership as described in Section 1.6. 

Subject to the provisions of the Powers of Attorney Act (Ontario), as from time to time amended, the 
power of attorney granted herein is irrevocable and is a power coupled with an interest and will survive 
the death, dissolution, disability or incapacity of the Limited Partner or any member thereof, as the case 
may be, and extends to the legal representatives, heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns 
of the Limited Partner and each member thereof, and may be exercised by the General Partner on behalf 
of the Limited Partner. 
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4.7 Transactions Including Affiliates 

The validity of any transaction, agreement or payment involving the Partnership and the General Partner 
or any affiliate (within the meaning of the Business Corporations Act (Ontario)) of the General Partner 
shall not be invalidated or otherwise affected by reason of the relationship between the General Partner 
and the Partnership or the General Partner and such affiliate or by reason of the approval of the said 
transaction, agreement or payment by the directors of the General Partner, all or some of whom may be 
officers, directors or shareholders of or otherwise interested in or related to such affiliate. 

ARTICLE 5 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTNERS 

5.1 Unlimited Liability of General Partner 

The General Partner shall have unlimited liability for the debts, liabilities and obligations of the 
Partnership. 

5.2 Limitation of Liability of Limited Partners 

Subject to the provisions of the Act and this Agreement, no Limited Partner shall be obliged to make any 
contribution to the capital of the Partnership in excess of the capital it has agreed to contribute, nor shall a 
Limited Partner be required to restore a negative capital account, nor shall it have any personal liability 
for any of the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Partnership or for any of the losses of the Partnership, 
beyond the value of money and other property such Limited Partner contributes, or agrees to contribute, 
to the Partnership, as stated in the record of Limited Partners. 

ARTICLE 6 
DISSOLUTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP 

6.1 Dissolution 

Subject to the Act, the Partnership may be dissolved or terminated only with the unanimous written 
consent of the General Partner and the Limited Partners.  Notwithstanding any rule of law or equity to the 
contrary, the Partnership shall not be dissolved or terminated except as provided herein. In particular, the 
Partnership shall continue notwithstanding the amendment and restatement of this Agreement, the 
admission of a new Partner, the withdrawal of a Partner (unless there is only one Partner remaining), and 
the dissolution of, death of or Event of Insolvency in respect of any Partner unless the Partnership is 
dissolved or terminated as aforesaid. 

6.2 Deemed Resignation 

(a) The General Partner shall be deemed to have resigned as General Partner immediately 
upon the occurrence of any Event of Insolvency in respect of the General Partner and, as 
soon as possible, a successor General Partner shall be admitted to the Partnership by 
Resolution. 
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(b) The General Partner may be removed as General Partner by Resolution, which resolution 
must also admit a successor General Partner. 

(c) Subject to Section 6.2(a), the deemed resignation or removal of the General Partner 
pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon the date specified in such Resolution. 

(d) On the effective date of the resignation or removal of the General Partner, the Partnership 
shall return to the departing General Partner the amount, if any, that it contributed to the 
capital of the Partnership. 

(e) If a successor General Partner is admitted, the Units of the departing General Partner 
shall be automatically transferred and assigned from the departing General Partner to the 
successor General Partner in consideration for the successor General Partner assuming 
the obligations and duties of the departing General Partner under this Agreement, the 
successor General Partner shall become a party to this Agreement and shall forthwith 
contribute to the Partnership an amount of capital equal to the amount returned to the 
departing General Partner pursuant to Section 6.2(d) and assume the obligations and 
duties of the departing General Partner hereunder, and the departing General Partner shall 
do all things and take all steps necessary or advisable to transfer: (i) title to all the real 
property and other assets in which the Partnership has an interest, (ii) management of the 
business of the Partnership and (iii) the books, records and accounts of the Partnership to 
the successor General Partner and shall execute and deliver all documents and 
instruments necessary or advisable to effect such transfers. 

6.3 Liquidation of Partnership Assets 

In the event of the dissolution of the Partnership, the General Partner (or in the event of an Event of 
Insolvency in respect of the General Partner, a receiver (the “Receiver”) selected by the Limited Partners 
by Resolution) shall commence to wind up the affairs of the Partnership and to liquidate its assets.  The 
Partners shall continue to share profits and losses during the period of liquidation in the same proportion 
as before the dissolution. The General Partner (or the Receiver) shall have full right and unlimited 
discretion to determine the time, manner and terms of any sale or sales of the assets of the Partnership 
pursuant to such liquidation, having due regard to the activity and condition of the relevant market and 
general financial economic conditions. 

6.4 Distributions of Capital on Liquidation or Dissolution 

Following the payment of or provision for all debts and liabilities of the Partnership and all expenses of 
liquidation, the proceeds of the liquidation and any other funds of the Partnership shall be applied and 
distributed in the following order: 

(a) first, to the setting up of any reserves which the General Partner (or the Receiver) may 
deem necessary for any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the 
Partnership; said reserves may be paid over by the Partnership to a bank or trust company 
acceptable to the General Partner (or the Receiver) in escrow to be held by it for the 
purpose of distributing such reserves in payment of any such liabilities or obligations, and 
at the expiration of such period as the General Partner (or the Receiver) shall deem 
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advisable, distributing the balance, if any, thereafter remaining, in the manner hereinafter 
provided; 

(b) second, to each Partner with a positive balance in its capital account (determined after 
giving effect to all contributions, distributions and allocations for all periods) in 
proportion to such balances until such balances are reduced to zero; and 

(c) third, any balance remaining shall be distributed to the Partners in accordance with their 
respective Partnership Interests at the time of such distribution. 

Other than as aforesaid, there shall be no distributions of capital unless agreed to by the Partners by 
Resolution. 

6.5 Dissolution 

Notwithstanding the above, if the Limited Partners and the General Partner (or the Receiver) agree, the 
dissolution may be undertaken in a manner to comply with the provisions of Subsections 85(3), 98(3) or 
98(5) of the Income Tax Act (Canada) or in such other tax-efficient manner as the Limited Partners and 
the General Partner (or the Receiver) may agree. 

ARTICLE 7 
MISCELLANEOUS 

7.1 Competing Interests 

Any Partner shall be entitled to carry on, engage in and participate in, whether financially or otherwise, 
any business of the same nature as, or competing with that of, the Partnership, and shall not be liable to 
account to any Partner or the Partnership therefor and all Partners are deemed to consent to all such 
activities by any Partner.  

7.2 Limited Partner Not a General Partner 

In the event any provision of this Agreement should have the effect of imposing upon a Limited Partner 
any of the obligations of a General Partner, such provision shall be of no force or effect and shall not be 
considered a part of this Agreement, but the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in effect. 

7.3 Amendments 

(a) Save and except for amendments which affect or amend Section 1.6, 1.9, 2.7, 3.3, 6.1 or 
6.2 (which shall require the consent of all Partners), this Agreement may be amended by 
the General Partner by instrument in writing signed by the General Partner without the 
consent of or notice to the Partners: 

(i) to add covenants, restrictions or provisions which, in the opinion of the General 
Partner, are for the protection or benefit of the Limited Partners; 
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(ii) to cure any ambiguity or error, provided that in the opinion of the General 
Partner, such amendment does not and shall not materially adversely affect the 
interest of the Limited Partners; or 

(iii) to make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this 
Agreement which in the opinion of the General Partner do not and shall not 
materially adversely affect the interest of the Limited Partners. 

(b) This Agreement may be amended to make any other amendment not referred to in 
Section 7.3(a) with the unanimous consent of the Partners. 

7.4 Section Headings 

Section headings have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be full or 
accurate descriptions of the contents thereof. 

7.5 Quantity and Gender 

In construing this Agreement, words in the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa and words 
importing the feminine shall include the masculine and the neuter and vice-versa and words importing 
persons shall include corporations and vice-versa. 

7.6 Severability  

Whenever possible, each provision or portion of any provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in 
such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision or portion of any 
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any 
applicable law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any 
other provision or portion of any provision in such jurisdiction, and this Agreement will be revised, 
construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion 
of any provision had never been contained herein. 

7.7 Assignment 

Subject to the restrictions on assignment and transfer herein contained, this Agreement shall enure to the 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, 
successors and permitted assigns. 

7.8 Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed by the Partners in separate counterparts each of which when so 
executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the 
same instrument. 

7.9 Entire Agreement 

Except as expressly stated herein, this Agreement, the Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin Agreement in 
respect of the Bruce to Milton Transmission Line Limited Partnership dated June 18, 2012 between the 
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SON and HONI and the Letter Agreement dated December 18, 2012 between HONI, Hydro One Inc. and 
the SON constitute the entire agreement between the Partners pertaining to the subject matter hereof and 
supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, of 
the Partners pertaining to the subject matter hereof.  No supplement, modification, waiver or termination 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by the Partner to be bound thereby.  No 
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any 
other provisions (whether or not similar) nor shall such waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless 
otherwise expressly provided. 

7.10 Further Assurances 

The parties hereto agree that they will from time to time at the reasonable request of any of them execute 
and deliver such instruments, conveyances and assignments and take such further action as may be 
required pursuant to the terms hereof to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement. 

7.11 Governing Law  

This Agreement shall be governed by and shall be performed, construed and enforced exclusively in 
accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein.  
Any action or proceeding contemplated by any of the parties hereto for the purpose of enforcing this 
Agreement shall be commenced and continued only in Ontario before the appropriate tribunal having 
jurisdiction and each of the parties hereto hereby attorns to such jurisdiction. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first above 
written. 

B2MGPINC. 

By:~ 
Name:~ 
Title: ~u_~,.. 

HYDRO ONE B2M LP INC. 
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Tax Ruling Applications 

 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































 2013-2017 HYDRO ONE BUSINESS PLAN 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ($M)

Assets

Fixed assets
Fixed assets in service 14,480.7            14,702.4            15,373.8            16,327.9            17,059.6            
Less: Accumulated depreciation 5,021.3              5,302.0              5,599.4              5,924.5              6,261.7              

9,459.4              9,400.4              9,774.4              10,403.4            10,798.0            
Construction in progress 873.9                 1,111.9              1,309.1              1,186.6              1,294.4              

10,333.3            10,512.3            11,083.6            11,590.0            12,092.3            

Current assets
Cash and short-term investments (361.4)                (189.0)                (242.5)                (221.5)                (240.2)                
Accounts receivable 150.1                 151.1                 159.7                 167.2                 173.4                 
Fuel for electric generation -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Materials and supplies 3.4                     3.5                     3.4                     3.4                     3.4                     
Future income tax asset -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Other current assets 3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     

(204.5)                (31.1)                  (76.0)                  (47.5)                  (60.1)                  

Other assets
OPEB regulatory asset (0.0)                    (0.0)                    (0.0)                    (0.0)                    (0.0)                    
Other regulatory assets 102.2                 95.4                   92.7                   90.4                   88.0                   
Deferred pension asset -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Goodwill -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Intangibles (net of amortization) 111.5                 111.5                 111.5                 111.5                 111.5                 
Future income tax asset 778.7                 870.8                 965.3                 1,058.9              1,160.9              
Long-term accounts receivable & other assets 15.0                   624.4                 624.2                 624.0                 623.9                 

1,007.4              1,702.1              1,793.7              1,884.9              1,984.3              

Total Assets 11,136.2            12,183.2            12,801.3            13,427.4            14,016.5            

Liabilities & Equity

Long-term debt
Long-term debt 5,265.1              6,049.0              6,454.2              6,852.3              7,187.9              
Unamortized debt costs (12.7)                  (17.1)                  (19.4)                  (21.5)                  (23.5)                  
Less: Payable within one year 325.0                 337.2                 270.0                 405.0                 221.2                 

4,927.5              5,694.6              6,164.8              6,425.8              6,943.2              

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued charges 217.4                 219.4                 220.1                 230.3                 242.2                 
Income tax payable 3.0                     3.2                     17.3                   12.9                   5.5                     
Dividends payable 3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     3.3                     
Accrued interest 57.8                   66.8                   71.1                   74.5                   79.0                   
Long-term debt payable within one year 325.0                 337.2                 270.0                 405.0                 221.2                 

606.5                 629.9                 581.8                 725.9                 551.2                 

Other liabilities
Other post-employment benefits 507.5                 529.7                 509.4                 502.0                 506.1                 
Regulatory liabilities 43.8                   9.8                     9.2                     8.7                     9.1                     
Environmental liability 90.5                   88.1                   86.0                   83.8                   81.4                   
Future income tax liability 757.5                 859.3                 954.5                 1,048.8              1,151.1              
Long-term accounts payable & accrued charges 8.2                     7.9                     7.7                     7.4                     7.1                     

1,407.6              1,494.8              1,566.8              1,650.6              1,754.8              

Equity
Preferred equity 239.0                 239.0                 239.0                 239.0                 239.0                 
Common equity 2,083.0              2,083.0              2,083.0              2,083.0              2,083.0              
Retained earnings 1,878.8              2,047.9              2,171.8              2,308.7              2,450.7              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (6.3)                    (6.1)                    (5.9)                    (5.6)                    (5.4)                    

4,194.6              4,363.8              4,488.0              4,625.0              4,767.3              

Total Liabilities & Equity 11,136.2            12,183.2            12,801.3            13,427.4            14,016.5            

HONI - Transmission

Copy of Tx Proforma excluding BxM.xlsx ‐ Tx (exc BxM) 2013‐03‐20 ‐ 15:47



 2013-2017 HYDRO ONE BUSINESS PLAN 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

HONI - Transmission

OPERATING STATEMENT ($M)

Revenues
External 1,435.1              1,481.4              1,547.8              1,634.6              1,706.1              
Inter-BU 5.9                     5.9                     5.9                     5.9                     5.9                     

1,441.0              1,487.2              1,553.7              1,640.6              1,712.1              

Costs
OM&A 440.5                 448.8                 460.2                 462.5                 462.3                 
Cost contingency / (reduction) 7.5                     5.0                     5.0                     5.0                     5.0                     
Cost of power -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Depreciation 344.5                 367.6                 369.0                 389.5                 411.3                 
Interest 213.2                 224.4                 251.9                 281.2                 299.8                 
Capital tax -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

1,005.7              1,045.7              1,086.1              1,138.3              1,178.4              

Income Before Income Tax 435.3                 441.5                 467.6                 502.3                 533.7                 
Current income tax 41.8                   39.7                   53.8                   63.7                   66.1                   
Future income tax 0.6                     9.7                     0.7                     0.7                     0.4                     
Total Income tax 42.3                   49.4                   54.5                   64.3                   66.5                   

Income Before Write-offs 393.0                 392.1                 413.0                 437.9                 467.2                 

Write-offs (before income tax) -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Income tax on write-offs -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Net write-offs -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Net Income 393.0                 392.1                 413.0                 437.9                 467.2                 

Other comprehensive income 0.2                     0.2                     0.2                     0.2                     0.2                     

Comprehensive Income 393.2                 392.3                 413.2                 438.1                 467.4                 

Net Income 393.0                 392.1                 413.0                 437.9                 467.2                 

Less:
Preferred dividends 13.1                   13.1                   13.1                   13.1                   13.1                   
Common dividends 222.0                 210.0                 276.0                 288.0                 312.0                 

235.1                 223.1                 289.1                 301.1                 325.1                 

Change in Retained Earnings 157.9                 169.0                 123.9                 136.8                 142.1                 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT ($M)

Cash Flow from Operations
Net income (before write-offs) 393.0                 392.1                 413.0                 437.9                 467.2                 
Depreciation (net of asset removal costs) 310.3                 327.1                 338.0                 355.4                 375.0                 
Change in working capital 14.4                   10.2                   10.4                   1.6                     2.8                     

717.8                 729.4                 761.4                 794.9                 844.9                 

Less:
Capital expenditures 982.4                 1,114.9              913.1                 866.8                 883.0                 
Changes in other assets & liabilities (51.3)                  2.9                     17.9                   4.1                     (8.7)                    
Dividends 235.1                 223.1                 289.1                 301.1                 325.1                 

1,166.2              1,340.9              1,220.1              1,172.0              1,199.4              

Net Cash Flow (448.5)                (611.5)                (458.7)                (377.1)                (354.4)                

Copy of Tx Proforma excluding BxM.xlsx ‐ Tx (exc BxM) 2013‐03‐20 ‐ 15:47



B2M Limited Partnership Model
LP Financials
in $M

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Balance Sheet

Assets
Gross Fixed Assets 616.2          619.4          622.7          625.9          629.2          
Accumulated Depreciation (6.3)             (12.6)           (18.9)           (25.3)           (31.8)           
Total Assets 609.9        606.9        603.7        600.6          597.4        

Liabilities
Note Payable to GPCo 365.9          364.1          362.2          360.4          358.5          

Equity 243.8          243.8          243.8          243.8          243.8          
Distributions (22.3)           (47.0)           (72.6)           (98.4)           (124.0)         
Retained Earnings 22.5            46.0            70.3            94.8            119.2          

Total Liabilities & Equity 609.9        606.9        603.7        600.6          597.4        

Profit Loss Statement

Revenue (Revenue Requirement including tax allo 47.9            48.2            49.9            49.5            49.5            

Expenses
OM&A (2.3)             (1.2)             (1.8)             (1.2)             (1.7)             
Depreciation (6.3)             (6.3)             (6.4)             (6.4)             (6.4)             
Interest (16.3)           (16.5)           (16.8)           (16.7)           (16.6)           
Total Expenses (24.8)           (24.0)           (25.0)           (24.3)           (24.8)           

Net Income Before Taxes 23.1            24.1            24.9            25.2            24.8            

Calculated Taxes 0.6              0.6              0.6              0.7              0.4              

Net Income 22.5          23.5          24.3          24.5            24.4          

Statement of Cash Flow

Net Income 22.5            23.5            24.3            24.5            24.4            
Less: Repayment of Debt 0.2              (1.8)             (1.9)             (1.9)             (1.9)             
Less: Distributions to Partners (22.3)           (24.7)           (25.5)           (25.8)           (25.7)           
Add: Depreciation 6.3              6.3              6.4              6.4              6.4              
Less: Capex (6.6)             (3.3)             (3.2)             (3.2)             (3.2)             
Cash Flow -              -              -              -              -              

LP Financials



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 10 

SON LP Co. Loan Term Sheets 



 

 

March 25, 2013 
 
 

SAUGEEN OJIBWAY NATION 
Debt Private Placement 

 
Summary of Terms and Conditions of the Offering 

 

Loan Amount: Up to $50,000,000 referred to herein as the “Loan” to be issued under a credit 
agreement related to Saugeen Ojibway Nation (“SON”) equity contribution to the 
Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project (the “Project”). 

Sponsor: Saugeen Ojibway Nation 

Issuer: SON (the “Issuer”). The Loan will be direct full recourse obligations of the Issuer 
subject to the Security. 

Issue Date: [June 1, 2013] 

Loan Guarantee: The Loan will be fully guaranteed, unconditionally and irrevocably, by the 
Province of Ontario under the Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program. 

Recourse: The Loan will be direct full recourse obligations of the Issuer subject to the 
Security. The loan will be non-recourse to the Sponsor. 

Credit Rating: The Loan will be unrated 

Term: Up to [15] years (fully amortizing over the term) 

Maturity Date: ●, [2028] 

Average Life: The average life of the loan is approximately [8.4] years 

Loan Margin: [100] basis points plus the Province of Ontario semi-annual yield of [2.619]%, as 
calculated by interpolation of semi-annual yields on the 3.15% June 2, 2022 
Province of Ontario bond and 2.85% June 2, 2023 Province of Ontario bond, to 
most closely match the Average Life of the Loan. 
 

Interest Rate: [3.619]% per annum calculated semi-annually, not in advance. 

Payments: [Monthly] blended payments of interest and principal will be due and payable 
each [month], commencing on ● until and including ● as setout in Schedule A. 
The Loan will be fully amortizing over the term of the Loan. 

Maturity: Unless previously purchased or redeemed, the Issuer will repay the aggregate 
outstanding principal amount of the Loan on the Maturity Date 

Use of Proceeds: The proceeds of the Loan will initially be advanced to the Project and will 
subsequently be converted to the Issuer’s equity contribution in the Bruce to 
Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project. 

Optional 
Redemption: 

The Issuer will have the right to redeem the Loan at any time and from time to 
time, in whole or in part, upon payment of a redemption amount equal to the sum 
of the principal amount then outstanding on the Loan so called for redemption 
and the Make-Whole Amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest up to 
but excluding the date fixed for redemption.  

Prospectus 
Exemption: 

The Loan will be exempt from the prospectus requirements of the securities laws 
of all of the provinces and territories of Canada 

Governing Law: All documentation will be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and 
the laws of Canada applicable therein. 

Advance Date: On ● or such other date as may be agreed upon 
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Placement Agent: TD Securities Inc. (100%) 

Legal Counsel for 
the Issuer: 

McMillan LLP 

Legal Counsel for 
the Lender: 

McCarthy Tétrault LLP 

Account Bank / 
Administrative 
Agent: 

First Nations Bank of Canada 

Trustee: ● 
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Schedule A - Summary Loan Amortization Table 
 
 

Period Date Opening Balance Payment Interest Principal Ending Balance
0 1-Jun-13
1 1-Dec-13 50,000,000$        2,174,444$        904,750$           1,269,694$        48,730,306$      
2 1-Jun-14 48,730,306         2,174,444          881,775            1,292,669          47,437,637        
3 1-Dec-14 47,437,637         2,174,444          858,384            1,316,060          46,121,576        
4 1-Jun-15 46,121,576         2,174,444          834,570            1,339,874          44,781,702        
5 1-Dec-15 44,781,702         2,174,444          810,325            1,364,119          43,417,583        
6 1-Jun-16 43,417,583         2,174,444          785,641            1,388,803          42,028,780        
7 1-Dec-16 42,028,780         2,174,444          760,511            1,413,933          40,614,847        
8 1-Jun-17 40,614,847         2,174,444          734,926            1,439,519          39,175,328        
9 1-Dec-17 39,175,328         2,174,444          708,878            1,465,567          37,709,761        
10 1-Jun-18 37,709,761         2,174,444          682,358            1,492,086          36,217,675        
11 1-Dec-18 36,217,675         2,174,444          655,359            1,519,085          34,698,590        
12 1-Jun-19 34,698,590         2,174,444          627,871            1,546,573          33,152,017        
13 1-Dec-19 33,152,017         2,174,444          599,886            1,574,558          31,577,458        
14 1-Jun-20 31,577,458         2,174,444          571,394            1,603,050          29,974,408        
15 1-Dec-20 29,974,408         2,174,444          542,387            1,632,057          28,342,351        
16 1-Jun-21 28,342,351         2,174,444          512,855            1,661,589          26,680,762        
17 1-Dec-21 26,680,762         2,174,444          482,788            1,691,656          24,989,106        
18 1-Jun-22 24,989,106         2,174,444          452,178            1,722,266          23,266,840        
19 1-Dec-22 23,266,840         2,174,444          421,013            1,753,431          21,513,409        
20 1-Jun-23 21,513,409         2,174,444          389,285            1,785,159          19,728,250        
21 1-Dec-23 19,728,250         2,174,444          356,983            1,817,461          17,910,789        
22 1-Jun-24 17,910,789         2,174,444          324,096            1,850,348          16,060,440        
23 1-Dec-24 16,060,440         2,174,444          290,614            1,883,830          14,176,610        
24 1-Jun-25 14,176,610         2,174,444          256,526            1,917,918          12,258,691        
25 1-Dec-25 12,258,691         2,174,444          221,821            1,952,623          10,306,068        
26 1-Jun-26 10,306,068         2,174,444          186,488            1,987,956          8,318,112          
27 1-Dec-26 8,318,112           2,174,444          150,516            2,023,928          6,294,184          
28 1-Jun-27 6,294,184           2,174,444          113,893            2,060,551          4,233,633          
29 1-Dec-27 4,233,633           2,174,444          76,608              2,097,837          2,135,797          
30 1-Jun-28 2,135,797           2,174,444          38,647              2,135,797          -                    

 
 
 



 

 

March 25, 2013 
 
 

SAUGEEN OJIBWAY NATION 
Debt Private Placement 

 
Summary of Terms and Conditions of the Offering 

 

Loan Amount: Up to $[22,000,000] referred to herein as the “Loan” to be issued under a credit 
agreement related to Saugeen Ojibway Nation (“SON”) equity contribution to the 
Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project (the “Project”). 

Sponsor: Saugeen Ojibway Nation 

Issuer: [New Partnership] (the “Issuer”). The Loan will be direct full recourse obligations 
of the Issuer subject to the Security. 

Issue Date: [June 1, 2013] 

Recourse: The Loan will be direct full recourse obligations of the Issuer subject to the 
Security. The loan will be non-recourse to the Sponsor. 

Credit Rating: The Loan will be unrated 

Term: Up to [15] years (fully amortizing over the term) 

Maturity Date: ●, [2028] 

Average Life: The average life of the loan is approximately [8.7] years 

Loan Margin: [250] basis points plus the Province of Ontario semi-annual yield of [2.665]%, as 
calculated by interpolation of semi-annual yields on the 3.15% June 2, 2022 
Province of Ontario bond and 2.85% June 2, 2023 Province of Ontario bond, to 
most closely match the Average Life of the Loan. 
 

Interest Rate: [5.119]% per annum calculated semi-annually, not in advance. 

Payments: [Monthly] blended payments of interest and principal will be due and payable 
each [month], commencing on ● until and including ● as setout in Schedule A. 
The Loan will be fully amortizing over the term of the Loan. 

Maturity: Unless previously purchased or redeemed, the Issuer will repay the aggregate 
outstanding principal amount of the Loan on the Maturity Date 

Use of Proceeds: The proceeds of the Loan will initially be advanced to the Project and will 
subsequently be converted to the Issuer’s equity contribution in the Bruce to 
Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project. 

Optional 
Redemption: 

The Issuer will have the right to redeem the Loan at any time and from time to 
time, in whole or in part, upon payment of a redemption amount equal to the sum 
of the principal amount then outstanding on the Loan so called for redemption 
and the Make-Whole Amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest up to 
but excluding the date fixed for redemption.  

Prospectus 
Exemption: 

The Loan will be exempt from the prospectus requirements of the securities laws 
of all of the provinces and territories of Canada 

Governing Law: All documentation will be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and 
the laws of Canada applicable therein. 

Advance Date: On ● or such other date as may be agreed upon 

Placement Agent: TD Securities Inc. (100%) 
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Legal Counsel for 
the Issuer: 

McMillan LLP 

Legal Counsel for 
the Lender: 

McCarthy Tétrault LLP 

Account Bank / 
Administrative 
Agent: 

First Nations Bank of Canada 

Trustee: ● 
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Schedule A - Summary Loan Amortization Table 
 
 

Period Date Opening Balance Payment Interest Principal Ending Balance
0 1-Jun-13
1 1-Dec-13 22,000,000$        1,059,465$        563,090$           496,375$           21,503,625$      
2 1-Jun-14 21,503,625         1,059,465          550,385            509,079            20,994,546        
3 1-Dec-14 20,994,546         1,059,465          537,355            522,109            20,472,437        
4 1-Jun-15 20,472,437         1,059,465          523,992            535,473            19,936,964        
5 1-Dec-15 19,936,964         1,059,465          510,287            549,178            19,387,786        
6 1-Jun-16 19,387,786         1,059,465          496,230            563,234            18,824,551        
7 1-Dec-16 18,824,551         1,059,465          481,814            577,650            18,246,901        
8 1-Jun-17 18,246,901         1,059,465          467,029            592,435            17,654,466        
9 1-Dec-17 17,654,466         1,059,465          451,866            607,599            17,046,867        
10 1-Jun-18 17,046,867         1,059,465          436,315            623,150            16,423,717        
11 1-Dec-18 16,423,717         1,059,465          420,365            639,100            15,784,617        
12 1-Jun-19 15,784,617         1,059,465          404,007            655,457            15,129,160        
13 1-Dec-19 15,129,160         1,059,465          387,231            672,234            14,456,926        
14 1-Jun-20 14,456,926         1,059,465          370,025            689,440            13,767,486        
15 1-Dec-20 13,767,486         1,059,465          352,379            707,086            13,060,400        
16 1-Jun-21 13,060,400         1,059,465          334,281            725,184            12,335,217        
17 1-Dec-21 12,335,217         1,059,465          315,720            743,745            11,591,472        
18 1-Jun-22 11,591,472         1,059,465          296,684            762,781            10,828,691        
19 1-Dec-22 10,828,691         1,059,465          277,160            782,304            10,046,386        
20 1-Jun-23 10,046,386         1,059,465          257,137            802,327            9,244,059          
21 1-Dec-23 9,244,059           1,059,465          236,602            822,863            8,421,196          
22 1-Jun-24 8,421,196           1,059,465          215,541            843,924            7,577,272          
23 1-Dec-24 7,577,272           1,059,465          193,940            865,524            6,711,747          
24 1-Jun-25 6,711,747           1,059,465          171,787            887,678            5,824,070          
25 1-Dec-25 5,824,070           1,059,465          149,067            910,398            4,913,672          
26 1-Jun-26 4,913,672           1,059,465          125,765            933,699            3,979,973          
27 1-Dec-26 3,979,973           1,059,465          101,867            957,597            3,022,376          
28 1-Jun-27 3,022,376           1,059,465          77,358              982,107            2,040,268          
29 1-Dec-27 2,040,268           1,059,465          52,221              1,007,244          1,033,024          
30 1-Jun-28 1,033,024           1,059,465          26,440              1,033,024          (0)                      

 
 
 


	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	1.1 This joint submission is made on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc., B2M Limited Partnership, and SON LP Co.  It is made in support of three interrelated applications for Ontario Energy Board (“OEB” or “Board”) approvals regarding the sale of certa...
	1.2 Hydro One Networks Inc. (“HONI”), is applying pursuant to section 86(1)(b) of the Act for approval to sell certain transmission assets located between its Bruce and Milton transmission stations.  The proposed purchaser of these assets is a newly f...
	1.3 B2M LP is seeking transmitter licensing authority in accordance with section 60 of the Act so that it may own and operate the transferred assets as its transmission system.  Following the transfer of the transmission assets to B2M LP, the partners...
	1.4 SON LP Co. is applying pursuant to section 86(2) of the Act for approval to purchase up to a 30 percent partnership interest in B2M LP. SON LP Co. will be owned and controlled by SON.  SON LP Co.’s investment in B2M LP is intended to provide SON w...
	1.5 The purpose of these three applications is to give effect to a key commercial arrangement negotiated between the SON and Hydro One which has fundamentally allowed for the timely development, construction and in-service operation of HONI’s Bruce to...
	1.6 The BxM Project was approved by the Board pursuant to Proceeding  EB- 2007-0050.  The Project comprises two 500 kV transmission circuits, now known as B501M and B502M.  Construction and operation of these facilities has provided necessary transmis...
	1.7 This filing provides additional information regarding the proposed transaction.  It is organized as follows:
	Section 2 describes the parties involved in the transaction.
	Section 3 describes the transmission assets to be transferred.
	Section 4 provides details of the proposed transaction and describes the transaction documents.
	Section 5 examines the economic efficiency and viability of the transaction including the commercial rationale for the SON’s involvement in the transaction.
	Section 6 examines the potential impacts that the transaction may have on consumers.
	Section 7 describes the relief requested and timing considerations associated with the transaction.
	Section 8 includes the OEB Form of Application made by HONI for Leave to Sell the BxM Project transmission assets to B2M LP in accordance with Section 86(1) of the Act.
	Section 9 includes the OEB Form of Application made by B2M LP for a Transmitter Licence approval in accordance with Section 60 of the OEB Act.
	Section 10 includes the OEB Form of Application made by SON LP Co., for Leave to Purchase up to a 30 percent partnership interest in B2M LP in accordance with Section 86(2) of the Act.
	Section 11 provides all supporting information referred to in the above as scheduled Appendices.


	2.0 Description of Parties Involved in the Transaction
	2.1 This section provides a description of the parties involved in the proposed transaction.
	A. Hydro One Networks Inc.

	2.2 HONI is the owner and operator of the BxM Project.  HONI is the largest transmitter and distributor of electricity in the Province of Ontario.  HONI and its regulated affiliates serve distribution and transmission customers throughout the province...
	2.3 HONI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One Inc., which is a business corporation wholly owned by the Province of Ontario.  An organizational chart for the Hydro One group of companies is found in Section 11, Appendix 1.
	2.4 The audited Financial Statements of HONI Transmission for 2010, 2011 and 2012 are found in Section 11 Appendix 2.  All other information that Hydro One has filed with the Ontario Securities Commission for the past two years (i.e. annual informatio...
	B. B2M Limited Partnership

	2.5 B2M LP is a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario for purposes related specifically to the transaction.  B2M LP will be acquiring certain BxM Project transmission assets from HONI.  The business to be carried out by B2M LP will conc...
	2.6 As B2M LP is a newly formed limited partnership, no historical audited financial information or statements are available.
	C. Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., B2M GP Inc., Hydro One B2M LP Inc.

	2.7 Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Hydro One and has been formed for purposes of this transaction.  Following certain intercompany transfer steps associated with the transaction, Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc. will ha...
	2.8 B2M GP Inc. will hold the general partner interests and carry out the general partner responsibilities of B2M LP, and will also retain substantially all of Hydro One’s partnership interests in B2M LP.  B2M GP Inc. will be responsible for ensuring ...
	2.9 Hydro One B2M LP Inc. and B2M GP Inc. will hold Hydro One’s interest in B2M LP.  The aggregate partnership interest in B2M LP held by Hydro One (through its ownership of Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., the parent of Hydro One B2M LP INC. and B2M GP I...
	2.10 An organizational chart depicting the ownership structure of these entities following the intercompany transfer steps is found in Section 11 Appendix 3.
	2.11 As each of Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., B2M GP Inc., and Hydro One B2M LP Inc. are newly formed entities, no historical audited financial information or statements are available.
	D. Saugeen Ojibway Nation (“SON”)

	The Saugeen Ojibway Nations consist of the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and the Chippewas of Nawash Unceded First Nation. SON traditional territory extends east from Lake Huron to the Nottawasaga River and south from the tip of the Bruce Peninsul...
	E. SON LP Co.

	SON LP Co is an Ontario corporation that has been formed specifically as the vehicle for SON to be able to participate in the B2M LP.  SON LP Co will have no assets other than its partnership interest in the B2M LP and no liabilities other than its pr...
	SON LP Co confirms that all applicable licence, code and rule requirements will be followed following completion of the transaction.
	2.12 As SON LP Co. is a newly formed entity, no historical audited financial information or statements are available.

	3.0 Description of Transferred Assets
	3.1 The proposed transferred assets currently form part of the BxM Project.  All Project facilities were constructed and placed into operation in accordance with approvals made in respect of OEB Proceeding 2007-0050.
	3.2 The BxM Project involved the construction and operation of two 500 kV transmission circuits now known as B501M and B502M.  These circuits interface at the north west end with HONI’s Bruce A and B transmission stations and terminate at the south ea...
	3.3 The BxM Project transmission assets to be transferred generally comprise the B501M and B502M circuits, namely, 717 steel-lattice transmission towers, the transmission lines and certain rights to HONI’s existing transmission corridor on which the c...
	3.4 The current net book value of the Transferred Assets is approximately $600 million.
	3.5 A final net book value calculation of the Transferred Assets will occur on the closing of the transaction and which amount will form the final basis for the transaction.

	4.0 Transaction Details
	4.1 The overall objective of the transaction is to formalize a long-term cooperative commercial arrangement between HONI and SON and in so doing, provide the SON with the opportunity to invest in and acquire up to a 30 percent ownership interest in th...
	4.2 The steps involved in the transaction are described in the Anishnaabeking Naagnigewin Agreement dated June 18, 2012 as supplemented by the side letter agreement of December 18, 2012 (collectively, the“AN Agreement”).  A copy of the AN Agreement is...
	4.3 Under the terms of the AN Agreement, Hydro One will facilitate the creation of a limited partnership (B2M LP), incorporate and organize two entities that will hold the general partnership interest (B2M GP Inc) and a nominal limited partnership int...
	4.4 Upon receiving all necessary approvals, HONI will transfer the Transferred Assets to B2M LP.  Through a series of related party transactions, HONI and its parent, Hydro One, will receive from B2M LP consideration in the form of cash, a promissory ...
	4.5 SON LP Co. will acquire limited partnership units in B2M LP which in total represents up to 30 percent of the value of the Transferred Assets.
	4.6 Valuation of the interests held by Hydro One (indirectly) and SON LP Co. in B2M LP  will be based on the net book value of the Transferred Assets.
	4.7 Cash consideration paid by SON LP Co. to B2M LP for the acquisition of limited partnership units will, in the final step of the transaction, be used to reduce the level of debt that B2M LP will have owing to B2M GP Inc. such that a 60/40 capital s...
	4.8 Based on the Transferred Assets having a net book value of approximately $600 million at the time of the transaction closing, the Transferred Assets will be financed by $360 million in total debt and equity of $240 million.  The cost of the debt i...
	An example outlining the closing steps, calculations and descriptions of  the transaction is found at Schedule A of the December 18, 2012 Side Letter Agreement (see Section 11 Attachment C).
	4.9 The AN Agreement describes the key terms to the transaction and describes the implementation steps to be taken by the parties in order to give effect to the transaction.
	4.10 The AN Agreement has been approved by the Board of Directors of Hydro One Inc. as well as through Band Council Resolutions from the SON.  Copies of these approvals are found in Section 11, Appendix 6.
	4.11 The transfer of the BxM Project transmission assets will be effected through an asset purchase agreement made between HONI and B2M LP. Preparation of this agreement is underway and a copy will be filed with the Board once it is finalized.  The fi...
	4.12 Governance of B2M LP will initially be through a limited partnership agreement which has been executed (the “Limited Partnership Agreement”).  Upon closing, governance of the B2M LP will be effected through the execution of an Amended and Restate...
	4.13 The AN Agreement contemplates HONI and SON obtaining favourable tax rulings from both provincial and federal tax authorities.  The nature of these rulings are described in Attachment “A” to the AN Agreement and sections 10 and 11 of the Side Lett...
	4.14 The AN Agreement contemplates B2M LP entering into an operations and management services agreement with B2M GP Inc. and HONI for the provision of services for the ongoing operation and management of the Transferred Assets.  The form of the operat...
	4.15 Pro-forma financial statements for HONI Transmission and B2M LP for a period of five years following the expected closing of the transaction are found in Section 11, Appendix 9.

	5.0 Economic Rationale for the Transaction
	5.1 During the development phase of the BxM Project, Hydro One and SON carried out significant mutual engagement under a Protocol Agreement respecting the BxM Project and its potential impacts on SON Rights and interest.  The purpose of this engagemen...
	5.2 Engagement in early phases focused on identifying and mitigating potential environmental impacts of the BxM Project.  Later discussions were aimed at identifying mechanisms for SON economic participation in the BxM Projects that would provide mean...
	5.3 The proposed transaction has achieved these objectives.  It provides SON with a commercial opportunity to invest in a major infrastructure project within its traditional territory.  It is consistent with SON’s overall objective of supporting and p...
	5.4 SON’s decision to make a significant financial investment in the Transferred Assets causes SON and HONI to have a long-term alignment of economic interests.  As partners, both SON and Hydro One have the incentive to ensure the Transferred Assets c...
	5.5 The initial capital invested by SON will be sourced from competing financial lending institutions in part guaranteed by the Province’s Aboriginal Loan Guarantee Program. The cost to finance the acquisition of additional B2M LP partnership units wi...
	5.6 SON participated in lengthy and complex negotiations with Hydro One and government officials to ensure that the construction of the transmission line through their traditional territories would provide economic benefits to the First Nations.  The ...
	5.7 One of the key economic risks to the SON associated with the transaction concerns the timing of all necessary regulatory approvals.  SON’s economic interests in this transaction are directly related to its ability to obtain all necessary financing...
	5.8 Barring exceptional circumstances, a substantial portion of the income of B2M LP is expected to be distributed to its partners annually, subject to the requirements of prudent operation and management of the Transferred Assets.  As these facilitie...
	5.9 Furthermore, it is expected that, barring unforeseen events such as major storm damage which would necessitate material capital replacements, the annual depreciation expense for the Transferred Assets will generally exceed capital expenditures.  A...
	5.10 Nonetheless, any and all activities, including the distribution of partnership income by B2M LP, will be in keeping with the maintenance of the long-term financial stability of the regulated entity, as determined by the general partner.

	6.0 Potential Consumer Impacts of the Transaction
	6.1 The structure of the proposed transaction will not cause a material change in the manner in which the  Transferred Assets are operated and maintained.  HONI will remain the party primarily responsible for the ongoing operation and management of th...
	6.2 The proposed transaction is structured so that favourable tax rulings regarding the taxable position of B2M LP and SON LP Co. can result in reductions to the rates that B2M LP charges for transmission service to customers over the long term.  The ...
	6.3 In the short term, the transaction is expected to cause a slight increase in rates during the first year following the completion of the transaction.  This result is largely due to incremental transaction and administration costs and the delayed b...
	6.4 The current breakdown of the estimated incremental transaction and administration costs concern the following:
	Costs incurred to negotiate and complete the transaction;
	Costs associated with all necessary regulatory approvals;
	Ongoing regulatory costs incurred by B2M LP;
	Ongoing administration and management costs of B2M LP;
	Incremental insurance costs incurred by B2M LP; and
	Audit and accounting costs incurred by B2M LP.

	6.5 At the present time, the total preliminary estimate of incremental costs are $1 million (one time cost) and an average of $1.1 million every two years.
	6.6 The analysis depicting this result is found in Figure 1 below.  From a rate impact perspective, the expected Year 1 increase over the “HONI Status Quo Revenue Requirement” (approximately $3.7 million) would cause an estimated 0.02 cent or 0.53% in...
	6.7 Details respecting all rate impacts of the transaction will be considered in applications to be made by B2M LP and HONI pursuant to section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.  These applications are expected to be filed following timely app...

	7.0 Requested Relief & Timing Consideration
	7.1 The parties to the transaction respectfully request the OEB to approve the contemplated asset transfer by HONI to B2M LP, the granting of a transmitter licence to B2M LP and the purchase by SON LP Co. of up to a 30 percent ownership interest in B2...
	7.2 In the collective view of the parties, the transaction is in the public interest and is consistent with the objectives found in the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.  The proposed transaction will not cause harm to transmission rate payers.  The tra...
	7.3 The proposed transaction will ensure that the Transferred  Assets are operated in a safe and reliable manner and without any change to the manner and conduct that they are managed today by HONI.
	7.4 The proposed transaction establishes a new and important benchmark for the parties.  In particular, Hydro One and SON will become commercial partners with a common alignment of economic interests.
	7.5 Timely consideration of these applications is essential to the parties.  SON and Hydro One have been engaged for over 6 years in a process that would allow the BxM Project to be developed, approved and implemented in a timely way, while protecting...
	7.6 For clarification, the assumptions throughout this application that underpin the success of the transaction are based upon a final execution date of January 1, 2014.  In order to meet this closing date, the parties are seeking approval of the 3 ap...
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